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version shall prevail.
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CORPORATE PROFIL
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Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited (the “Company”] is a joint stock limited company registered in the People's Republic of
China (the “PRC") on 12 July 2004 under the Company Law of the PRC. lis ultimate holding company is Zhejiang Shibao
Holding Group Co., lid. ("Zhejiang Shibao Holding"], a limited liability company established in the PRC. The Company’s
H Shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2006 and were fransfer
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on @ March 2011, and its sfock code is 1057 .HK.

The Company and its subsidiaries (fogether, the “Group”) is a leading OEM supplier of automotive steering system in the
PRC.

The Group has committed ifself to the research and development of automotive sfeering products and mainly engaged in
the develop, design, manufacture and sales of automotive steering gears and other key components and parts of steering
system, and accumulated extensive industry experience in the PRC. The Group is one of the early movers in the development
of hydraulic power steering gears in the PRC, and also the early domestic enferprise having built the capacity of independent

mechanical and electrical integration technologies and volume production of electric power steering (EPS| system.

Mr. Zhang Shi Quan, the founder of the Group and Chairman, enfered into the manufacture of automotive steering gear
products in 1984, and esfablished Zhejiang Shibao Steering Gear Co., Lid. ("Zhejiang Shibao Steering”), the predecessor

of the Company in Yiwu, Zhejiang Province in 1993, which was reorganized into a joint stock company in 2004.

The Group has established manufacturing and research bases in Hangzhou and Yiwu, Zhejiang Province, Siping, Jilin
Province, VWuhu, Anhui Province and Beijing respectively, and supply four types of steering products fo large automakers:
power recirculating ball steering gear for use in light, medium and heavy duty trucks and buses, hydraulic power rack-and-
pinion steering gear and steering knuckle for use in passenger cars and EPS system for use in green cars and fuelefficient

and low-emission vehicles (with own intellectual property rights).

The Group has a large and reputable customer base of automakers, including FAW Group Corporation "FAW Group”),
Dongfeng Motor Group Co. ltd. ["DFM”), Anhui Jianghuai Automobile Group Co.,ld. [JAC"), Kinglong United Automobile
Industry (Suzhou] Co., Lid. ("Kinglong Bus”), Beigi Foton Motor Co., ltd. ["Foton Motor”), Chery Automobile Co., Ltd. "Chery
Auto"), Geely Automobile Holdings Limited ("Geely Auto”), Iran Saipa Automotive Group (“Iran Saipa”). The Group also
is the core supplier of FAW Car Co., ltd. ["FAW Car”) and the qualified supplier of FAW-W Automobile Co., ltd. ["FAW-
VW', In order fo develop aftermarket sales, the Group has also sef up affermarket sales network that covers major areas

in the PRC.

The Group has rich OEMs experiences, strong R&D and design capacity and adopted lean production system. By confinuously
investing on research and development, the Group is now capable of jointdesign with the local and infernational vehicle
design team. The Group is further exploring opportunities with leading auto-makers in modular supply and “Justn-Time"
delivery. The Group's business objective is fo be an outstanding steering system supplier and a reliable and longterm partner

of China and International leading automakers.

6 Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The audited results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years ended 31 December 201 1. The relevant

information were prepared on a consolidated basis, and based on PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for

year 2011 and 2010, and based on International Financial Reporting Standards for year 2009, 2008 and 2007.

RESULTS
2011
RMBO'000
Revenue 62,592
Total profit 12,589
Net profit 11,065
Minority inferests (222)
Net profits attributable o equity
holders of the Parent 11,287
Basic earings per share (RMB) 0.43
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2011
RMBO0'000
Non-current assefs 52,709
Current assets 52,426
Current liabilifies 33,145
Net current assefs 19,281
Equity atiibutable to equity
holders of the Parent 64,137
Tofal liabilities and
shareholders' equity 105,135

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December

2010
RMBO'000
[Restated)

54,594
11,866
10,434

94

10,340
0.39

2010
RMBO'000
[Restated)

40,778
40,324
20,751
19,573
55,205

81,102

2009
RMBO'000

36,352
7,604
6,716

80

6,635
0.2526

As at 31 December
2009
RMBO'000

30,842
29,178
12,430
16,748

46,041

47,050

2008
RMBO'000

25,622
4,804
4,150

63

4,088
0.1556

2008
RMBO'000

25,244
26,159

9,029
17,130

41,319

41,708

2007
RMBO'000

21,197
4,760
3,891

67

3,824
0.1456

2007
RMBO'000

22,211
25,814

8,347
17,467

38,545

38,931
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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| would like to present on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) the report of the audited results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The Group has committed ifself to the research and development of automotive sfeering products and mainly engaged in
the development, design, manufacture and sales of automotive steering gears and other key components and parts of steering
system. The Group is also the early domestic enterprise having built the capacity of independent mechanical and electrical

infegration technologies and volume production of electric power steering (EPS] system.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB625,917,119.21, representing an increase
of approximately 14.65% as compared with 2010. The increase was mainly due fo a significant increase in the sales of

hydraulic power rack-and-pinion steering gear for passenger cars.

The gross profit margin of the Group during the year under review was approximately 35.47% (2010: approximately
35.91%), representing a slight decrease as compared with 2010. The slight decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly
due fo a price cut of steering knuckle resulting in a decrease in the gross profit margin of steering knuckle, however the gross
profit margin of hydraulic power rack-and-pinion steering gear for passenger cars was increased, therefore reduced the impact
of decrease of gross profit margin of steering knuckle to the gross profit margin of the Group and resulted in a slight decrease

of the gross profit margin of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, net profit of the Group was RMB110,647,997.28 (2010:
RMB104,339,149.32), representing an increase of approximately 6.05% as compared with 2010. Net profit atiributable
fo equity holders of the Parent was RMB112,872,143.11 (2010: RMB103,403,049.81), representing an increase of
approximately 9.16% as compared with 2010.

During the year under review, growth of automobile industry slowed down and therefore impacted to the growth of the Group's
revenue. However, with the advantages in fechnology and quality, the Group's revenue generated from hydraulic power
rack-and-pinion sfeering gear for passenger cars was largely increased. During the year under review, revenue generated
from the Group's key customers kept increased. The revenue from top five customers of the Group accounted for more than
69.53% of the total revenue.

During the year under review, the Group has been awarded the “Supplier of the Year” by FAW Car for the fifth consecutive
year. Also, the Group has been awarded the “Supplier of the Year” by FAW Group and DFM Liuzhou Automobile Company
as well as the "Quality Perfection” by JAC.

During the year under review, the Company proposed the resolutions of issue of A Shares and were duly passed, which
included the resolutions of proposed issue of not more than 65,000,000 A Shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each.
Since the Company's H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company has established sound corporate governance
practices and achieved large increase in revenue. Reasons for propose issue of A Shares are as follows: ] to increase the
Group's reputation in China mainland market; i) to establish a flexible mechanism for staff incentive and recruitment; i fo

raise fund to support the development of the Company.

8 | Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

In 2011, both the growth of automobile production and sales in China, being the global largest automobile market, have
slowed down remarkably due to its macroeconomic adjusiment and refreat of automobile consumption incentive policy.
Looking forward, under the perspective that China economy will keep growing fast in the foreseeable future, China automobile
industry, being the supporting industry of China, will keep up with stable and healthy growth trend. After fast growth of
automobile indusiry and stable increase of resident income in China in the past fen years, China has formed multi-level
demands for automobile consumption. At the same time when demand for the first automobile is keep increasing, demand

for second automobile is arising, and together driving the market growth.

2011 is the first year of “12th Five-year Plan” of China. In the "12th Five-year Plan of China Automotive Steering Industry”,
the objective of the industry has been stated clearly and sfrongly as to develop China-brand steering enterprises, increase
China innovation capacity and shift to energy-saving and lightweight steering system and expand applications of electric
power steering (EPS) system for green-car. Under this background, the Group has planned to increase ifs capacity to achieve
a consolidated annual steering products capacity of 4,050,000 units/sets, which consist of 1,000,000 units/sets of
hydraulic power rack-and-pinion sfeering gear and eleciric power steering system each, 1,400,000 units of steering knuckle

and 650,000 units/sets of hydraulic power recirculating ball sfeering gear.

The Group has sfrong capacity in technology innovation and development which are demonsirated by the projects that the
Group has worked together with China leading automakers in the areas of technology improvement of hydraulic steering
gear and customized development of electric power steering (EPS) system. Meanwhile, the Group has invested a lot on the
upstream indusfry and the start of volume production of electric power steering (EPS) system. The Group is also planned to
build a state-level automotive steering R&D center. Among which, the skid pad project has been completed in 2011. It is
the first skid pad built by steering manufacturer in China. The Group believes that by taking the above measures, it will provide

sustaining drive forces for the future growth of the Group.

Zhang Shi Quan

Chairman

Hangzhou, Zhejiang, the PRC
16 March 2012

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW
AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURE AND SALES

In 2011, automobile production and sales in China both exceeded 18 million units, representing a slight increase as
compared fo last year. Being the global largest automobile market, the increase of production and sales of automobile in
China has been slowed down remarkably due to macroeconomic adjustment and control, and withdrawal of stimulating

policies by the China government.

In 2011, production and sales volume of China auto indusiry was 18,419,000 units and 18,505,000 units respectively,
representing an increase of approximately 0.84% and 2.45% as compared with 2010. Among these, production and sales
of passenger cars were 14,485,000 units and 14,472,000 units respectively, representing an increase of approximately
4.23% and 5.19% as compared with 2010; production and sales of commercial vehicles were 3,934,000 units and
4,033,000 units respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 9.94% and 6.31% as compared with 2010. In
2011, growth of passenger cars was better than the growth of auto industry as a whole, among which sales of sedans with
engine size 1.6 liter and below was increased slightly. Sales of China-brand sedans was 2,946,000 units, representing
an increase of approximately 0.46%, which accounted for 29.11% of total sales of sedans, representing an decrease of
approximately 1.78%. Among commercial vehicles, sales of buses was kept growing and sales of trucks and lorry were

depressed.

In 2011, top ten automaker groups in China produced 16,024,000 units of automobiles, representing 87.00% of the

production of automobile industry, an increase of 0.86% as compared to last year, and an increase in indusiry concentration.

TREND OF THE CHINA AUTOMOTIVE STEERING INDUSTRY

Independent R&D capacity of China automotive steering enterprises has been escalating, especially in the R&D of steerings
for commercial vehicles and economical sedans. Types and models of steerings made by China automotive steering
enterprises are expanded and their quality and technical level are improved. These provided solid foundation for the

development, replacement and fechnology improvement of China-brand vehicles.

According to the description of the “12th Five-year Plan of China Automotive Steering Indusiry”, China automotive steering
industry is expected fo grow stably and in line with the growth of China automobile industry, independent innovation capacity
will be enhanced remarkably, and China-brand steering products will be further penetrated info the passenger cars market
in China and entered into global automotive components supply chain. Indusfrial concentration ratio will increase in China
aufomotive steering industry. As a result, four fo five leading enterprises will emerge, each with independent infellectual property
and international competition ability and having 4,000,000 units annual production capacity. Conventional hydraulic power
steering system will be improved in ferms of energy saving, efficiency and lightweight. Development of electric power sfeering

(EPS) system used in green-car will grow sfrongly.

Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
OPERATION RESULT

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB625,917,119.21, representing an increase
of approximately 14.65% as compared with 2010. Net profit atfributable to the equity holders of the Parent was
RMB112,872,143.11, representing an increase of approximately 9.16% as compared with 2010.

The increase of the Group's revenue was mainly due to a significant increase in the sales of hydraulic power rack-and-pinion

steering gear for passenger cars.

During the year under review, the Group's entire gross profit increased by approximately 13.25% as compared with 2010.
The gross profit margin of the Group was approximately 35.47% (2010: approximately 35.91%). The slight decrease in
the gross profit margin was mainly due to a price cut of steering knuckle resulting in a decrease in the gross profit margin
of steering knuckle, however the gross profit margin of hydraulic power rack-and-pinion steering gear for passenger cars
was increased, therefore reduced the impact of decrease of gross profit margin of steering knuckle fo the gross profit margin

of the Group and resulted in a slight decrease of the gross profit margin of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group's selling expenses decreased by RMB1,626,831.55 as compared with 2010.
The rafio of selling expenses fo revenue also decreased as compared to 2010. Decrease in selling expenses was mainly
due to: i] a decrease in fransportation expenses as delivery destination for some of the products were close; ii] a decrease
in salesperson’s commission as the growth of revenue was decreased comparing with 2010; and i) a decrease in the

provision of warranty expenses as a result of improvement of production processes and quality control.

During the year under review, the Group's general and administrative expenses increased by RMB10,675,678.23 as
compared with 2010. The ratio of general and administrative expenses to revenue also increased as compared with 2010.
Increase in general and adminisirative expenses was mainly due to an increase in administrative staff costs and research
and development expenses as a result of the development of the Group's new businesses, i.e. volume production preparation

for electric power steering (EPS| system and precious iron casting.

During the year under review, the Group's financial expenses increased by RMB5,178,886.81 as compared with 2010.
Increase in financial expenses was mainly due fo an increase in interest costs for bank borrowings to meet demands on

increasing capital expenditures and operating expenses when the Group's operation and production scale expanded.

In view of the above, for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has a net profit of RMB110,647,997.28,
representing an increase of approximately 6.05% as compared with approximately RMB104,339,149.32 for the previous

year.

During the year under review, there were no material changes in the business and regional segmentfs.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2071 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MARKETING AND NEW PRODUCTS

The Group secured six new development projects during the year under review and held nineteen development projects in
fotal as at the end of the year under review. During the year under review, the Group has four development projects started
volume production, among which the Group's eleciric power steering (EPS| system started volume production for Changhe
Auto.

During the year under review, the application of precious casting products of Jilin Shibao Machinery Manufacturing Co.,
Lid. {"Jilin Shibao") to the Group's steering knuckles and recirculating ball steering gears represented 30% and 15% respectively

of the Group's fofal production of steering knuckles and recirculating ball steering gears. The volume was increased by month.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year under review, the second production line for precious casting has arrived for installation and testing in Jilin
Shibao. Main products of the second line for precious casting are same as the first line, that are precious iron casfings for

steering knuckle and housing of recirculating ball steering gear, and will be supplied fo intra-group market entirely.

During the year under review, transfer of electric power steering [EPS] system R&D and manufacture from Hangzhou Shibao
Auto Steering Gear Co., lid. ["Hangzhou Shibao”] to Hangzhou New Shibao Electric Power Steering Co., Lid. ("Hangzhou
New Shibao”) has been completed. Meanwhile, Hangzhou New Shibao has added new festing, inspection and production

faciliies and prepared for the volume production.

During the year under review, an assembly line for manual rack-and-pinion steering gear has been arrived for installation
and testing in Hangzhou Shibao, to support the volume production of electric power steering (EPS) system. The annual
production capacity of the above assembly line is 200,000 units of manual rack-and-pinion steering gears. Meanwhile,
Hangzhou Shibao has added relevant machining facilities o solve the bottleneck of the production capacity of steering control

valve. Steering control valve is the key parts of hydraulic power steering gear.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the Group has four applications been issued ceriificate of patent by the State Infellectual Property
Office, among which one application was patent of invention. As at the date of this report, the Group holds twenty-four patents

and two software copy-rights.

During the year under review, the Group has built a skid pad in Hangzhou which is the first one in automotive steering industry

in China. The skid pad is part of the Group’s project of building a statelevel automotive steering R&D center.

During the year under review, the Group has been awarded the “Supplier of the Year” by FAW Car for the fifth consecutive
year. Also, the Group has been awarded the “Supplier of the Year” by FAW Group and DFM Liuzhou Automobile Company
as well as the "Quality Perfection” by JAC.

Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
TURNOVER
REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB625,917,119.21, representing an increase
of approximately 14.65% as compared with 2010. The increase was mainly due fo a significant increase in the sales of

hydraulic power rack-and-pinion steering gear for passenger cars.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group's gross profit was RMB222,030,000.81, increased by approximately
13.25% as compared with RMB196,049,746.15 in 2010. The gross profit margin of the Group during the year under
review was approximately 35.47% (2010: approximately 35.91%). The slight decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly
due fo a price cut of steering knuckle resulting in a decrease in the gross profit margin of steering knuckle, however the gross
profit margin of hydraulic power rack-and-pinion steering gear for passenger cars was increased, therefore reduced the impact
of decrease of gross profit margin of steering knuckle to the gross profit margin of the Group and resulted in a slight decrease

of the gross profit margin of the Group.

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Non-operating income mainly included government grants income. Such income for the year ended 31 December 2011
was RMB5,406,050.02, representing an increase of approximately 20.95% as compared with RMB4,469,816.98 in
2010.

SELLING EXPENSES

The Group's selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 were RMB35,881,539.03, representing a decrease
of approximately 4.34% compared with RMB37,508,370.58 in 2010. Decrease in selling expenses was mainly due fo:
i) a decrease in fransportation expenses as the delivery destination for some of the products were close; ii] a decrease in
salesperson's commission as the growth of revenue was decreased comparing with 2010; and iii) a decrease in the provision
of warranty expenses as a result of improve of production processes and quality control. The rafio of selling expenses to the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately 5.7 3%, representing a decrease as compared
to approximately 6.87% in 2010.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011 13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group's general and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 were RMB54,553,179.60,
representing an increase of approximately 24.33% compared with approximately RMB43,877,501.37 in 2010. Increase
in general and administrative expenses was mainly due fo an increase in administrative sfaff costs and research and
development expenses as a result of the development of the Group's new businesses, i.e. volume production preparation
for electric power steering (EPS) system and precious iron casting. The rafio of general and administrative expenses fo the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately 8.72%, representing an increase as compared

fo approximately 8.04% in 2010.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

The Group's financial expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 were RMB5,694,893.68, representing an increase
as compared with RMB516,006.87 in 2010. Increase in financial expenses was mainly due fo an increase in inferest cosfs
for bank borrowings to meet demands on increasing capital expenditures and operating expenses when the Group's operation

and production scale expanded.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

The Group's research and development expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 were RMB14,678,574.46,
representing a ratio of approximately 2.35% to the Group's revenue and an increase of RMB2,349,178.00 as compared
with RMB12,329,396.46 in 2010.

NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

Based on the above factors, the Group's net profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB110,647,997 .28,
representing an increase of approximately 6.05% compared with RMB104,339,149.32 of the previous year. The Group's

net profit margin (percentage of net profit to the Group's revenue) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately

17.68% (2010: approximately 19.11%).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
LIQUIDITY RATIOS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had cash of RMB43,234,111.34 {2010: RMB65,301,493.65), including restricted
cash on hand and at banks of RMB2,522,130.61 (2010: RMB16,363,229.50). The restricted cash on hand and at banks

of the Group with limited ownership right refers to the deposits for issuance of bank bills and lefters of credit.

As at 31 December 2011, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.58 (2010: approximately 1.94), the quick
ratio was approximately 1.21 {2010: approximately 1.28).

Net current assets as at 31 December 2011 was RMB192,811,168.15 (2010: RMB195,727,185.46).

Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2011, non-urrent liabilities were RMB57,920,986.95 (2010: RMB26,729,031.66), increased by
RMB31,191,955.29 when compared with last year mainly as a result of an increase in longerm bank borrowings and
other non-current liabilities. Other non-current liabilities refer o assetrelated government grants, including the grants provided
by the National Development and Reform Commission for the manufacturing and processing projects of precision cast
automotive components, the special grants provided by the National Development and Reform Commission to support the
sedans steering knuckle assembly project developed by the Group and the grants provided by the Management Committee
of the Siping Tiedong Economic Development Zone for the manufacturing and processing projects of precision cast automotive

components.

Taking info account the Group's intemnally generated funds and available banking facilities, the Directors are of the opinion

that the Group has sufficient working capital for ifs current needs.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's gearing rafio as at 31 December 2011 was approximately 37.03% (2010: approximately 28.88%). The
calculation of gearing ratio is o divide fofal liabilities by the total assets. Total liabilities is the sum of liabilities bearing by
the Group, includes currentliabilities and long-erm liabilities. Total assets is the sum of assets holding by the Group, includes

current assets and non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2011, the amount of total loans and borrowings was RMB157,100,232.00 (2010:
RMB55,090,000.00), in which RMB144,079,832.00 (2010: RMB50,000,000.00) were bank loans. Total loans and
borrowings increased by RMB102,010,232.00 when compared with last year, the increased loans and borrowings were
mainly used for expansion of production capacity of automotive steering gear, preparation of volume production of eleciric
power sfeering (EPS) system and capacity building of automotive component precious casfing. Shortferm and current of long
term loans and borrowings amounted to RMB127,079,832.00 (2010: RMB35,000,000.00), representing a share of

80.89% (2010: approximately 63.53%) in fofal loans and borrowings. loans and borrowings af fixed inferest rates were

RMB8,300,232.00.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, and loans and borrowings were mainly denominated in Renminbi.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, the restricted cash on hand and at banks of the Group was RMB2,522,130.61 (2010:
RMB16,363,229.50) which refers to the deposits for issuance of bank bills and letters of credit.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other pledges on it's assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year of 2011, the Group did not have any material acquisiion and disposal conceming subsidiaries and associated

companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER MATTERS
PROPOSED ISSUE OF A SHARES

Al resolutions proposed at the EGM, H Shares Class Meeting and Domestic Shares Class Meeting all held on 20 June 2011
were duly passed, which included the resolutions of proposed issue of not more than 65,000,000 A Shares with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each ("Issue of A share”), proposed amendments o the Articles and the rules of procedures, and proposed

adoption of the internal rules.

The Issue of A Shares will be subject to, among other things, the approval by the CSRC. Details of the Issue of A Shares
are set out in the Company's announcement dated 7 April 2011 and 20 June 2011, and circular dated 4 May 2011.

INCREASE IN EQUITY IN AN ASSOCIATE WUHU STERLING

On 8 April 2011, the Company (the “Transferee”) and Sun Ya Hong (the “Transferor”] enfered into an equity transfer
agreement where the Transferor agreed to transfer 10% of the equity of Wuhu Sterling Steering System Co., ltd. ("Wuhu
Sterling”) to the Company. The fransfer consideration is RMB4,840,000.00 in cash. Wuhu Sterling is mainly engaged in

the development, manufacturing and sale of automobile steering system and related products.

Before the completion of the equity transfer agreement, the Company and the Transferor hold 36% and 15% of equity of
Wuhu Sterling respectively. The Transferor intended to sell all his interest in the equity of Wuhu Sterling, among which 10%
of the equity of Wuhu Sterling selling to the Company and the remaining 5% selling to an existing shareholder of Wuhu
Sterling. After the completion of the equity transfer agreement, the Company holds 46% of the equity of Wuhu Sterling.

Amendment of the business registration in relation fo the transfer of the equity has been complefed. The Company used intemal

resources fo pay the fransfer consideration.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

For the year ended 31 December 2011, both the sales and purchases of the Group were principally denominated in
Renminbi. The Group was not subject fo significant exposure in foreign currency risk. No hedge arrangement has been entered

info by the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Apart from commitments sef out on page 159 in the annual report, the Group has no other material capital commitments

as at 31 December 2011,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no material confingent liabiliies as at 31 December 2011,

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a fotal of 1,605 employees as af 31 December 2011 (2010: 1,592).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, tofal salaries and welfares costs of the employees amounted fo RMB66,452,998.00
(2010: RMB62,957,000.00). The Group provides substantial remuneration benefits o employees in accordance with market

practice, and provided refirement benefits in accordance with the related laws of the PRC.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (Sktt##) | aged 62, is the Chairman and General Manager of the Company. He is a senior
economist. From 1990 to 1993, he was appointed as the legal representative and general manager of Qianjin Steering
Cear Factory (BT ) . From 1993 to 2004, he was appointed as the Chairman of Zhejiang Shibao Steering.
Since 2004, he has been appointed as the Chairman and General Manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang Shi Quan was
awarded the fitle of “China Outstanding Private Entrepreneurs” (P EIMEF R E R ¥FK). He was also awarded "Top Ten
Distinguished Persons for the Second Year for China's Industrial Economy” (% = [@H Bl T 4% F /2 +AGEH AY)
granted by the Office for Election of Distinguished Persons for China's Industrial Economy (#H BI T 345 7 4 & A Y572
WARZE) in 2006. Mr. Zhang Shi Quan is the father of Mr. Zhang Bao Yi and Ms. Zhang Lan Jun; fatherinlaw of Mr. Tang
Hao Han; and elder brother of Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong, all are Directors of the Company. Mr. Zhang Shi Quan is also a director
of Zhejiang Shibao Holding.

Mr. Zhang Bao Vi (5kE% ) , aged 39, is a vice Chairman and deputy general manager of the Company. He has a
Bachelar's degree. From 1996 to 2004, he was appointed as production manager and the general manager of Zhejiang
Shibao Steering successively. Since 2004, he has been appointed as vice Chairman and deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang Bao Yi was granted the fifle of “Llabour Model” of Yiwu City (2 &1 25 &% &5 )in 2004. Mr. Zhang
Bao Yi is the son of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan.

Mr. Tang Hoo Han (5&#) , aged 44, is a vice Chairman and deputy general manager of the Company. He has a
Doctor’s degree and a qualification of senior professional manager of China. Mr. Tang Hao Han was a tutor at Nanjing
College for Population Programme Management (B ARQEIRHEBERHED) | a secretary, an assistant to general
manager and head of general office concurrently and deputy general manger of Zhejiang Shibao Steering successively.
Since 1998, Mr. Tao Hao Han has been appointed as the general manager of Siping Steering Gear Co., ltd. ("Siping
Steering”). Since 2004, he has been appointed as a vice Chairman and deputy general manager of the Company. Since
2008, he has been appointed the Chairman of Jilin Shibao. Mr. Tang Hao Han is currently a vice chairman of Siping City
Federation of Industry and Commerce, a standing member of the 6th Term Commitiee of Siping People’s Political Consultative
Conference, an executive member of Jilin Province Federation of Industry and Commerce, a representative of the 8th Term
of Jilin Province Party Congress, a representative of the 10th Term and 11th Term of Jilin People’s Congress. Mr. Tang Hao
Han was awarded the “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Jilin Province”, “Labour Model of Jilin Province”, “National Outstanding
Youth Enfrepreneur leader”, "Outstanding Entrepreneur of National Privately-Owned Technological Enterprises” and “National
Labour Day Medal”. Mr. Tao Hao Han is the son-indaw of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhu Jie Rong (R#B#8) , aged 64, is a director and deputy general manager of the Company. He has a college's
degree and is an engineer. Mr. Zhu Jie Rong was a manager of technical depariment of DMF(FRBIZE — /A& B ) sfeering
fransmission company, a deputy plant manager of fechnical and a deputy chief engineer of automotive steering plant of
Zhejiang Wanda Group and a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Shibao Steering successively. Since 2004, he was
appointed as a direcfor and deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhu Jie Rong is also a supervisor of Zhejiang

Shibao Holding.

Ms. Zhang lan Jun (3RB% ) , aged 37, is a director and deputy general manager of the Company. She has a master's
degree. Ms. Zhang Lan Jun has over 10 years of experience in finance and accounting. She was a director of Hangzhou
Shibao and a finance manager of Zhejiang Shibao Steering. Since 2004, she has been appointed as a director and deputy
general manager of the Company and concurrently the finance manager of Hangzhou Shibao. Ms. Zhang Lan Jun is the

daughter of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong(3ktt/8), aged 51, is a director of the Company. From 1990 to 1993, he was a deputy general
manager of Qianjin Steering Gear Factory (BT A#E) . From 1993 to 2004, he was a deputy general manager
of Zhejiang Shibao Steering. Since 2004, he has been appointed as a director of the Company. Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong
is the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan.

Mr. Lou Run Zheng(#BIIE), aged 48, is a director of the Company. He was graduated from Open University of Hong
Kong and has a master’s degree. He was a tufor at faculty of agriculture machine of Zhejiang Agriculiure University, a general
manager of Zhejiang Yuanzheng Technology Industry Company, a standing deputy general manager of Zhejiang Yuanzheng
Technology Indusiry Controlling Company, a vice president of Zhejiang University Yuanzheng Group succesively. Since
2009, he has been the general manager of Zhejiang Yuan Zheng Hotel Management Co. ltd. He was first appointed as
a director of the Company on 4 November 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald ([E#858) , aged 49, is an independent director of the Company. He is a graduate of
University of San Francisco, USA and has a master’s degree. Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald has over 20 years' experience
in corporate finance. He is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a practising member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is now practising as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is
a council member of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors in Hong Kong. He is an independent director of China
Water Affairs Group Limited and Carpenter Tan Holdings Limited (both are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange);
and an independent director of Eco-Tek Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange); a finance director of Winox Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchangel; a
director and the general manager of Donald & Associates Consulting Services Limited; a director of Gold Concord (H.K.)
Limited and Brilliant Concept Technologies Limited; and a partner of CC Alliance CPA & Co. He was first appointed as an
independent director of the Company on 4 November 2009.

Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi(#%E% ), aged 66, is an independent director of the Company. He is a senior economist. Mr. Zhao
Chun Zhi was a manager and an assistant to general manager of FAW Forging Factory, a deputy general manager of FAW
steering gear factory and the general manager of FAW Lliao-Beng Factory (—/ T3 RM) successively and retired in 2006,
He was first appointed as an independent director of the Company on 5 June 2009.

Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi (548 ), aged 46, is an independent director of the Company. He has a bachelor’s degree and
is an economist. Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi has over 20 years of experience in areas of banking, securities and investment. He
was a manager of Bank of China, Minsheng Securities and Wuzhou Securities succesively. He is a vice general manager
of Henan Nanyang Cijan Auto Shock Absorber Co., Lid. GalE R 5 #1RUTEE R B 28 B R A & )and a supervisor of Henan
Honghui Technology Co., lid. C#iFa 1B R B R 2R currently. He was first appointed as an independent director of
the Company on 20 June 2011.

Mr. Li Zi Biao(ZBE1R), aged 66, is an independent director of the Company. He is a professor grade senior engineer.
He was a vice section chief (BIEH&) and a vice chief engineer (BI2T2E0) in China Nanjing Automobile (Group)
Corporation Steering Gear Plant (Fa )72 & B A A& [R5 KR ) and refired in 2008. Since 1984, he has been a member
and Deputy Director of the Association of Steering Techno|ogy under the Society of Automobile Engineers of China  (#
BRETREREERRMAEEE REIFEE). Since 1991, he has been Secretary-General of Steering Commitiee of the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers (q:‘lmﬁ_l—_%ﬁ%é‘ﬁ?ﬁagé“ 2WER) and Secrefary-General of
steeringnet under CAIN - (2B TEFERMERBE MBEEHWER) . Since 2008, he has been Standing Vice
Secrefary-General of Steering System Technical Sub-Committee of National Automotive Standardisation Technical Commitiee

(ZETEREMRMEZESBRARAGKMEE D GEBMWER) . He wos first appointed as an independent director
of the Company on 10 February 2012.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Du Min (1£81), aged 57, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company. He has a bachelor's degree.
Mr. Du Min was a section chief and a deputy directorial inspector of Bureau of Finance of Siping City. Since 2002, he
was appointed as an assistant fo general manager of Siping Steering. Since March 2007, he was appointed as the chairman

of the Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yang Di Shan (#5311) ,aged 74, is a supervisor of the Company. He has a bachelor’s degree and is a senior engineer.
Mr. Yang Di Shan was an engineer of R&D Center, deputy manager of chassis department and light car department of FAW
Group (—/A% &) and refired from Changchun Auto Research Insfitute (R&EAEMFEAT) in 1998. He is a depuly general
manager of Beijing Keguan Vehicle Hitech Development Co., ltd. currently. Mr. Yang Di Shan has been appointed as a
supervisor of the Company since 5 June 2009. Mr. Yang Di Shan is also director of Zhejiang Shibao Holding.

Mr. Wu lang Ping (RIRF) ,age 49, is a supervisor of the Company. He has a college degree. Mr. Wu Lang Ping was
a chief controller of production of Qianjin Steering Gear Factory (BIH#EFRMERR) . Since 1993, he was appointed as
a manager of production process of Hangzhou Shibao. Mr. Wu Llang Ping has been appointed as a supervisor of the

Company since 5 June 2009.

Mr. Shen Song Sheng GL¥A%), aged 75, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr Shen Song Sheng was a staff of Hangzhou
Hong Qi Spare Parts Factory (F/HALEETEZE M) and soles manager of Hangzhou Shibao. He refired from the
Company in 2009. Mr. Shen Song Sheng has been appointed as a supervisor of the Company since June 2004.

Mr. Wang Kui Quan (F£ZE5R), aged 48, is a supervisor of the Company. He has a master's degree. Mr. Wang Kui Quan
was a tutor at Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics CTPEFTAEAZE) and a tutor at and vice president of Zhejiang
School of Finance LB 242 ) He is a tutor and a director of the Development and Planning Office of Zhejiang University

of Finance & Economics (MM EF & Ft) . Mr. Wang Kui Quan has been appointed as a supervisor of the Company since
January 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Zhong Chao (E&#), age 47, is a deputy general manager of the Company. He has a bachelor's degree and
is an engineer. Mr. Yu Zhong Chao was a designer of automobile layout of DFM Hangzhou Automobile Company, a manger
of purchase of DFM Nissan Diesel Automobile Co., lid., a vice president of Zhejiang Changxing Aufo leasing Sales Co.,
lid.. Since 2004, he was appointed as a deputy general manager of Hangzhou Shibao. Since 2006, he was appointed

as a deputy general manager of the Company.

Ms. Liu Xico Ping (2I8F) , age 41, is the Board secrefary of the Company. She has a Master's degree. Ms. Liu Xiao
Ping was a manager of overseas department of Beijing Kerui Group Co., lid., a manager of investors’ relations depariment
of Xinao Gas Holding Co., lid., the head of general office of Zhejiang Shibao Holding. Since 2006, she was appointed
as a direcfor of securities and investment department of the Company. Since May 2011, she was appointed as the Board

secrefary of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY AS DEFINED BY THE RULES GOVERNING THE LISTING OF
SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE (THE “LISTING RULES”)

Ms. Huen Lai Chun (fBB%), aged 46, is the company secretary of the Company. She was appointed as the company
secrefary and authorised representative of the Company under the Listing Rules since May 2009. Ms. Huen Lai Chun is o
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an Associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secrefaries and The Institute of Chartered Secrefaries and Administrators. Ms. Huen Lai Chun has over 10 years of professional

experience in company secrefarial work, professional auditing, accounting and financial management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board hereby presents the annual report and audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2011,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has committed itself to the research and development of automotive steering products and mainly engaged in
the development, design, manufacture and sales of automotive steering gears and other key components and parts of steering
system. The acfivities of ifs subsidiaries and associated companies are set out on page 89 and page 104 in the annual report

respectively.

No segmental analysis by business and geographical segments is presented for the year and ifs explanation is set out on

page 145 in the annual report.

RESULTS

Results and financial position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out on page 47 to page 50 in

the annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Summary of the Group's results and assets and liabilities for the past five financial years are set out on page 7 in the annual

report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final cash dividend of RMBO. 10 per share (inclusive of applicable tax| for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (“Final Dividend"), with a fotal amount of approximately RMB26,266,000. For disfribution
of the final cash dividends, cash dividends for holders of Domestic Shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi, while
cash dividends for holders of H Shares will be declared in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (conversion rafe of
Renminbi info Hong Kong dollars shall be calculated on the average price of the conversion of Renminbi into Hong Kong

dollars in five (5) days as announced by the People’s Bank of China five (5] working days preceding 25 May 2012).

The Company will submit a proposal for the disfribution of final cash dividends on the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders, the Company is expected fo distribute final cash dividends to shareholders,
whose names are listed on the register of members as at Wednesday 30 May 2012 (the “Record Date”), on or about 22
June 2012. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 31 May 2012 to Tuesday, 5 June 2012,
both days inclusive, during which period no fransfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. All transfers accompanied
by the relevant H Share certificates must be lodged with the Company's H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited (for holders of H Shares only) af Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 May 2012.

The Company did not pay any inferim dividends fo shareholders for the year under review.
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WITHHOLDING AND PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND INCOME TAX
Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax on behalf of Overseas Non-Resident Enferprises Shareholders

Pursuant fo the applicable provisions of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China({HZE AR £ A
B (R P15 H0%)) and its implementing rules, the Company will withhold and pay enterprise income tax af the rate of 10%
when it distributes Final Dividend to non-resident enterprise holders of H shares (including any H shares registered in the name
of HKSCC Nominees Limited).

Withholding and Payment of Individual Income Tax on behalf of Overseas Individual Shareholders

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Individual Income Tax law of the People’s Republic of China  ((FP#E A R 3t
FEMEA FT1EHE)) and ifs implementing rules as well as the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation
o the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative] (Guo Shui
Fa [2009] No.124) KERRBEREREDE GEEREXRRBEFBEEE (F17)) H@EM) (BH%E
[2009]1245%%)) (the "Tax Notice"), the Company will implement the following arrangements in relation to the withholding
and payment of individual income tax on behalf of individual holders of H shares who are entifled to receive the Final Dividend

(“Individual H Shareholders"):

e ForlIndividual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents or whose country [region) of domicile is a country
(region] which has entered info a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a fax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax af the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders in the distribution of Final
Dividend:

e For Individual H Shareholders whose country (region) of domicile is a country (region) which has entered info a fax
freaty with the PRC stipulating a tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will temporarily withhold and pay individual
income fax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders in the distribution of Final Dividend. If relevant
Individual H Shareholders would like to apply for a refund of the excess amount of tax withheld and paid, the Company
will handle, on their behalf, the applications for tax preferential treatments under relevant tox freaties according to the
Tax Notice. Qualified shareholders please submit in time a letter of entrustment and all application materials as required
under the Tax Notice fo the Company's H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. The
Company will then submit the above documents to competent tax authorities and, after their examination and approval,

the Company will assist in refunding the excess amount of tax withheld and paid;

*  ForIndividual H Shareholders whose country (region| of domicile is a country (region) which has entered into a tax
freaty with the PRC stipulating a tax rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the effective tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty on behalf of the Individual H
Shareholders in the distribution of Final Dividend: and
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e For Individual H Shareholders whose country (region) of domicile is a country (region) which has entered into a tax

freaty with the PRC stipulating a tax rate of 20%, or a country [region) which has not enfered into any tax freaties with

the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay individual income fax af the rate of

20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders in the distribution of Final Dividend.

Should the H shareholders of the Company have any doubt as fo the aforesaid arrangements, they are recommended fo
consult their tax advisors on the relevant tax impact in Mainland China, Hong Kong and other countries [regions) on the

possession and disposal of H shares of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group's distributable reserve is approximately RMB256,035,761.06 (2010:
RMB176,929,012.57).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes of the Company's share capital during the year are sef out in note 29 of the nofes fo the major items of

the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

The Group has not granted any convertible debentures, futures, options or other similar rights.

RESERVES

Reserves of the Group as at 31 December 2011, its preparation is based on PRC Accounting Standards for Business
Enferprises, and ifs changes during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Details of the

relevant reserves are set out in note 30, 31, and 32 of the nofes fo the maijor items of the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes of the Group's properties, plant and equipment are sef out in note 10 of the nofes to the major items of

the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHERS BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's bank and other borrowings are set out in note 17, 25, and 27 of the nofes to the major items of the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company's Directors and Supervisors during the year and as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (5&t#E) (Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. Zhang Bao Yi (FRE%)

Mr. Tang Hao Han (3%7& )

Mr. Zhu Jie Rong (R#E#E)

Ms. Zhang lan Jun (GREE)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong (FRtEH)

Mr. lou Run Zheng (12H1E)

Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (REFE) (resigned on 20 June 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi GBE&EZE)
Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald ([E#558)

Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi (RA%E) (appointed on 20 June 2011)

Mr. li Zi Bioo (£B1E) [appointed on 10 February 2012)
Mr. Chen Guo Feng (FRETIE) (resigned on 10 February 2012)
Supervisors

Mr. Du Min (1t &)

Mr. Yang Di Shan (#53#1L)
Mr. Wu lang Ping (RIRF)
Mr. Shen Song Sheng (JEAA4E)
Mr. Wang Kui Quan (FZER)

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
each of the Supervisors has entered into a service confract with the Company for a term of three years and thereafter to be
renewed subject fo the consent of both parties and re-election of the directors in accordance with the provisions of the Arficles
of Association until ferminated by either party by giving no less than one month nofice in writing to the other party thereafter

or by the Company upon the occurrence of cerfain events as set out in the contract.
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None of the Direcfors and Supervisors has entered info any service contract with the Company which is not ferminable by

the Company within one year without payment of compensation [other than statufory compensation).

The Company confirms that it has received annual letter of confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that they are independent as referred fo in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS" REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of Direcfors, Supervisors and the five highest paid employees are set out on page 165 to page

169 in the annual report.

STANDARDS FOR DETERMINING THE REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company's remuneration policies are applicable o Directors and Supervisors. When defermining the remuneration of
Directors and Supervisors, besides taking reference to market basis, considerations will also be made on personal
responsibilities, experiences, workload, the time of service in the Company and its subsidiaries. Other welfare treatments
such as medical insurance which the Directors and Supervisors are entitled to shall be in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Company's internal regulations. The Directfors are entifled to discrefionary bonuses as
determined under the full discrefionary of the Board. In addition fo the above service fees and discrefionary bonuses, the
Directors shall also be entitled to allowances and benefits given by the Company to other staff. The Directors are entitled

to share option schemes (if any) under the relevant provisions of the Company.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 11 March 2011, the Company (the “Buyer”) and Ms. Zhang Hai Qin (the “Seller”) entered into a share fransfer agreement
(the "Share Transfer Agreement”) for the transfer of 1% equity interest of Hangzhou Shibao (the “Target Company”) at a
purchase consideration of RMB1,150,000.00 in cash [the “ Consideration”). The Seller is the wife of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan
[an executive Director, Chairman and General Manager of the Company). Mr. Zhang Shi Quan holds 40% inferest in the
registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding, the ultimate holding company of the Company, which in furns holds 62.97%
of the issued shares of the Company. Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Seller is the connected party of the
Company. Therefore the transaction pursuant fo the Share Transfer Agreement forms the connected party transaction of the
Company. Take into consideration that the applicable percentage ratio (except profit ratio) of the proposed fransaction
pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement is exceeded 0.1% but less than 5%, such transactions are required to comply with
the reporting and announcement requirements contained in Chapter 20 of the Lisfing Rules, but exempted from the independent

shareholders” approval requirement. Before the completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, the Company and the Seller
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holds 99% and 1% of the equity interest in the Target Company respectively. The Consideration is decided through fare
negofiation between the Company and the Seller take info consideration of the latest audited net assets of the Target Company
after the disfribution of dividends of the financial year of 2010. The Consideration is paid by infernal resources of the
Company. At the time of establishment of the Target Company, the Company Law of the PRC required that there shall be
at least two investors. At present, the Directors are of the view that, by acquiring 1% equity interest in the Target Company
and making it a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company would enhance the governance of the Company, improve
its shareholding sfructure and benefit ifs longterm development. Upon the completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, the
Target Company will become a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the related accounts will continue fo
be consolidated fo the Group's accounts. On 25 March 2011, the Share Transfer was complefed. Details of the connected

party transaction are set out in the Company's announcement dated 1 April 201 1.

Apart from the above fransaction, in relation to the related party fransactions as set out in Note 8 in the annual report, the
Board has confirmed that during the year under review these fransactions [other than the sale of goods to and purchase of
goods from Wuhu Sterling, an associate of the Company) constitute connected fransactions within the meaning of the Listing
Rules, however, such fransactions are infra-group fransactions exempted under Rule 14A.31(1) of the Listing Rules from all
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements confained in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Apart from the above transaction, for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has no fransaction which required

fo be made connected transaction disclosures under the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of each Director, Supervisor and Chief Executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required fo be entered in the register pursuant fo section
352 of the SFO or interests or short positions which are required, pursuant to Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and

the Exchange were as follows:

(1) long position in Domestic Shares of the Company:

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage in
shareholding the Company’s
Number of in same class fotal issued
Name of Director Capacity Domestic Shares of shares share capital
Mr. Zhang Shi Quan Inferest in a controlled 165,387,223 94.00% 62.97%
("Mr. Zhang') corporation
(Note 1)
Beneficial owner 10,556,632 6.00% 4.02%
(Note 2|
Note:

(1) Mr. Zhang holds 40% inferest in the registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
which in turn holds 165,387,223 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Zhang is entifled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meetings of Zhejiang Shibao Holding, Mr. Zhang is taken or deemed to be interested in all
of the 165,387,223 Domestic Shares held by Zhejiang Shibao Holding.

(2)  Mr. Zhang himself has acquired from eight nature persons, i.e., Du Chun Mao, Hui Yan, Wang Yu Jie, Zheng Yong Ping, Fu Zhong
Xian, Zhang Qin Fang, Zhang Jun Yi and Wu Wei Xu, in aggregate 10,556,632 Domestic Share with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, representing approximately 4.02% of the issued capital of the Company as at the date of announcement and af present,
at RMB2.64 per Domestic Share. Details of the Share Transfer are sef out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 April 2011.
On 23 June 2011, the Share Transfer was completed.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(2)  long positions in the registered capital of the ultimate holding company, Zhejiang Shibao Holding, an associated

corporation of the Company:

Approximate
percentage
in the registered

Contribution capital of Zhejiang

Name of Director Capacity in the registered capital Shibao Holding
Mr. Zhang Beneficial owner RMB20,000,000 40%
Mr. Zhang Bao Yi Beneficial owner RMB10,000,000 20%
Mr. Tang Hoo Han Beneficial owner RMB10,000,000 20%
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun Beneficial owner RMB7,500,000 15%
Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong Beneficial owner RMB?2,500,000 5%

Note: Zhejiang Shibao Holding holds 165,387,223 Domestic Shares representing 94% of the Domestic Shares in issue and
approximately 62.97% of the tofal issued share capital of the Company and accordingly is an associated corporation of the

Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(3

(4)

long positions in the registered capital of a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Jilin Shibao Mechanical and Electrical

Automation Co., ltd. ("Jilin Shibao Automation”), an associated corporation of the Company:

Approximate

percentage

in the registered

capital of

Contribution in the Jilin Shibao

Name of Director Capacity registered capital Automation
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled RMBT,600,000 80%

corporation

Note: Jilin Shibao Automation, a subsidiary of the Zhejiang Shibao Holding, the ultimate holding company of the Company, is owned
as fo 80% by Zhejiang Shibao Holding. As Mr. Zhang holds 40% interest in the registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding
and therefore is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Zhejiang
Shibao Holding, Mr. Zhang is taken or deemed to be interested in the 80% interest directly held by Zhejiang Shibao Holding in

Jilin Shibao Automation.

On 8 August 2011, the registration of Jilin Shibao Automation was officially cancelled.

long positions in the registered capital of a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Changchun Shili Automotive Brake Parts

Co., ltd. ("Changchun Shili Automotive”), an associated corporation of the Company:

Approximate

percentage

in the registered

capital of

Contribution in the Changchun

Name of Director Capacity registered capital Shili Automotive
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled RMB6,300,000 Q0%

corporation

Note: Changchun Shili Automotive, a subsidiary of the Zhejiang Shibao Holding, the ultimate holding company of the Company, is owned
as fo 90% by Zhejiang Shibao Holding. As Mr. Zhang holds 40% interest in the registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding
and therefore is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Zhejiang
Shibao Holding, Mr. Zhang is taken or deemed to be interested in the Q0% interest directly held by Zhejiang Shibao Holding in
Changchun Shili Automotive.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(5] long positions in the registered capital of a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Anhui Changshan Auto Parts
Manufacturing Co., ltd. ["Anhui Changshan”, formerly known as Anhui Shibao Casting Industry Co., lid.), an

associated corporation of the Company:

Approximate
percentage in

the registered

Contribution in the capital of
Name of Director Capacity registered capital Anhui Shibao
Mr. Zhang Interest in a confrolled RMB10,000,000 100%

corporation

Note: Anhui Changshan, a subsidiary of Zhejiang Shibao Holding, the ultimate holding company of the Company, is owned as to 100%
by Zhejiang Shibao Holding. As Mr. Zhang holds 40% interest in the registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding and therefore
is entitled o exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Zhejiang Shibao Holding,
M. Zhang is taken or deemed fo be inferested in the 100% interest directly held by Zhejiang Shibao Holding in Anhui Changshan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors are not aware of any Director, Supervisor and Chief
Executive of the Company had or was deemed fo have any interests or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of SFO) which will be required to be nofified
to the Company and the Exchange pursuant fo the Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or will be required pursuant fo Section
352 of the SFO o be entered in the register maintained by the Company, or will be required pursuant to the Model Code
relating fo securities fransactions by Directors, Supervisors or Chief Executive of the Company to be nofified to the Company

and the Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2011, so far as is known fo the Directors, Supervisors or Chief Executive of the Company, the following
persons [other than the Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executive of the Company as disclosed above) had inferests or short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required fo be kept under Section

336 of the SFO:
long position in shares of the Company:

Approximate

Approximate percentage
percentage of in the
shareholding Company's
Number and in same class total issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity class of Shares of Shares share capital
Zhejiang Shibao Beneficial owner 165,387,223 94.00% 62.97%
Holding [Note 1&3) Domestic Shares
M:r. Zhang Interest 165,387,223 Q4.00% 62.97%
in controlled Domestic Shares
corporation (Note 1&3)
Beneficial 10,556,632 6.00% 4.02%
owner (Note 2&3) Domestic Shares
Mr. Gu Weirong Beneficial owner 4,432,000 511% 1.69%
[Mr. Gu) H Shares

Note:

(1) Asat 31 December 2011, Zhejiang Shibao Holding owned 165,387,223 Domestic Shares of the Company. As Mr. Zhang holds 40%
interest in the registered capital of Zhejiang Shibao Holding, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in all of the 165,387,223 Domestic
Shares of the Company held by Zhejiang Shibao Holding.

[2]  Mr. Zhang himself has acquired from eight nature persons, i.e., Du Chun Mao, Hui Yan, Wang Yu Jie, Zheng Yong Ping, Fu Zhong Xian,
Zhang Qin Fang, Zhang Jun Yi and Wu Wei Xu, in aggregate 10,556,632 Domestic Share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued capital of the Company as af the date of announcement and at present, af RMB2.64
per Domestic Share. Details of the Share Transfer are sef out in the Company's announcement dated 19 April 2011. On 23 June 2011,

the Share Transfer was completed.

[3) M. Zhang's inferest in these 175,943,855 Domestic Shares of the Company, including 165,387,223 Domestic Shares of the Company
owned by Zhejiang Shibao Holding and 10,556,632 Domestic Share of the Company directly owned by himself, are also disclosed
in the paragraph headed "Disclosure of the interests and short positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executive in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”. These 165,387,223 Domeslic Shares of the
Company owned by Zhejiang Shibao Holding represent the same inferest and therefore duplicate amongst Zhejiang Shibao Holding
and Mr. Zhang.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, Directors are not aware of any other person [other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executive of the Company as disclosed above) who had an interest or short position in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the registered to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of its ulimate holding company has entered into
any arrangement, allowing Directors of the Company can be benefited from the purchase of the shares or debentures of
the Company or any other legal person entities, and none of the Direcfors, Supervisors and Chief Executive or their respectively

spouse or children under 18 has any right or has exercised any right fo subscribe for securities of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has not implemented any share option scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed above in the service contracts of directors, no confract of significance to which the Company, any
of ifs subsidiaries, its controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors were directly

and indirectly materially inferested subsisted af the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had a tofal of 1,605 employees. For the year ended 31 December
2011, total salaries and welfares of the employees amounted to RMB66,452,998.00 (2010: RMB62,957,000.00). The
Group provided substantial remuneration benefits to employees in accordance with market practices, and provided refirement

benefits in accordance with the related laws of the PRC.

Our Directors believe that our Group mainfains good working relationships with its employees and has not experienced any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining employees. Our Group has not experienced any significant disruption in

its operations due fo labour disputes.

Our Company and its subsidiaries make contributions to municipal government refirement scheme for their respective qualified
employees in the PRC. According to applicable PRC laws, both employers and employees are required fo make contributions
o the scheme at the specified rates pursuant to the rules of the scheme. The only obligation of our Company and its subsidiaries
with respect fo the scheme is to make the required contributions. The contributions payable under the scheme were properly

accrued for the year ended 31 December 2011,

The contributions to be made by employees under the scheme are charged fo the income statement af the respective rafes

equivalent fo the contributions paid or payable by our Company and ifs subsidiaries under the rules of the scheme.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders or the management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules| or their respective associates has an inferest in a business which competfes or may compete with the business of the

Group, or has any other conflicts of inferest with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

There were no management or administrative contract relating to the entire or any material operation of the Company enfered

or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, purchases attributable o the Group's five largest suppliers and revenue attributable
o the five largest customers represented approximately 34.32% and 69.53% of the Group's total purchases and total revenue
respectively. In addition, the largest supplier and the largest customer represented approximately 22.28% and 26.33% of

the Group's tofal purchases and revenue respectively.

To the best of the Directors” knowledge, neither the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders who fo the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group's

five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company esfablished an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”] on 26 April 2006 and has sfipulated written terms
of reference for the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Commitiee are fo review and supervise the financial

reporting process and infernal control system of the Group.

The Audit Committee has three members, namely Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald, Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi and Mr. Zhang Shi
Zhong. Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald and Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi are independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang
Shi Zhong is a non-executive Director. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald.

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 26 April 2006 and has sfipulated
written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies and structure for the Directors and senior management
of the Company; (ii) sefing up a formal and transparent procedure for defermination of such remuneration policies; and |iii)

evaluating performances and formulating the remuneration policies based on such evaluations.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, comprising Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald, Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi
and Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong. Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald and Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi are independent non-executive Directors
and Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong is a non-executive Director. The Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee is Mr. Chau Kam Wing,
Donald.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination commitiee (the “Nomination Committee”) on 13 May 2011 and has stipulated written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include (i) study the
standards and processes of the selection of directors, general manager and other senior executives, and make suggestions
to the Board; i) look for qualified candidates of directors, general manager and other senior executives extensively; and

(iii) examine and make suggestions on the candidates of directors, general manager and other senior executives.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, comprising Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald, Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi and
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun. Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald and Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi are independent non-executive Directors and

Ms. Zhang Lan Jun is an executive Director. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald.

THE MODEL CODE ON SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors securities fransactions on ferms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors and
was not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities fransactions during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Since the commencement of listing of the H Shares of the Company on GEM on 16 May 2006 and the transfer listing from
GEM to the Main Board on @ March 2011, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or

redeemed any listed shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive right under the Arficles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the place of jurisdiction
where the Company established, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and fo the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, the Company is in compliance with the Listing Rules which required at least 25% of the total issued share capital

of the Company be held by the public.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report adopted by the Company is set out on page 39 to page 44 in the annual report.

AUDITORS

As sef out in the company’s announcement dated 12 August 2011, based on the acceptance of Mainland Accounting and
Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit Firms by the Stock Exchange, in order to improve efficiency and reduce the cost
of disclosure, the Board has decided to prepare only one set of financial statements for the Company under China Accounting
Standards for any financial period commencing on or affer 1 January 2011 for the purpose of fulfilling its statutory obligation
and the periodic financial reporting requirements of the Listing Rules. Emst & Young has tendered its resignation lefter fo resign
as international auditors of the Company on 12 August 2011. Ernst & Young Hua Ming, the current domestic audifors of
the Company is taken over from the inferational auditors all responsibilities under the Listing Rules, includes but not limited
fo the preliminary announcement of annual results and annual audit of continuing connected transactions. Ernst & Young has
confirmed that there were no matters regarding ifs resignation that need fo be brought fo the atfention of the shareholders
of the Company. The Board confirms that there is no matter regarding the resignation of Emst & Young that needs to be brought
fo the atfention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board and the audit committee of the Company confirmed that there

were no disagreement among the Company and Emst & Young regarding the resignation of Ernst & Young.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been audited by Emst & Young Hua Ming. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Emst & Young Hua Ming as the

Company's audifor.

By order of the Board
Zhang Shi Quan

Chairman

Hangzhou, Zhejiang, the PRC
16 March 2012
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To all shareholders:

For the year 2011, the Supervisory Commitiee carefully discharged its duties in sirict compliance with the related provisions
of the Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of GEM and the Listing Rules of Main Board, the Articles of Association

and the Organization and Procedural Rules and Regulations for the Meetings of the Supervisory Committee.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee held two meetings, attended Board meetings, and heard reports
regarding the finance and profit distribution, connected fransactions and operating results of the Company. Through the
aforementioned work, the Supervisory Commitiee reinforced ifs supervision over the financial staff and senior management
of the Company during their discharge of duties, improved the effect of supervision and profected the inferests of shareholders

and the Company.

The Supervisory Commitiee is of the view that all members of the Board and other senior management of the Company have
honestly and diligently discharged their duties, strived to maintain the inferests of shareholders and made great efforts for
better operating results of the company in 201 1. No violation of laws and regulations of the PRC or the place of listing and
the Arficles of Association of the Company has been discovered during the discharge of their duties. The Supervisory

Committee is optimistic about the prospect of the Company.

Having reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 prepared by Emst & Young Hua Ming
based on PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the Supervisory Committee is of the view that the financial

sfatements provide an obijective, true and full view of the financial position and operating results of the Company.

In the coming year, the Supervisory Committee will continue fo strictly comply with the Articles of Association of the Company
and the relevant provisions, so as o maintain the inferests of the Company and shareholders as its own duty, and fo supervise

the Company fo realize its commitments to the shareholders for the best of performance.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Du Min

Convenor of the Supervisory Committee

Hangzhou, Zhejiang, the PRC
16 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had been in compliance with majority of the Code on Corporate
Govemance Pracfices as set out in Appendix 14 1o the Listing Rules by adopting a compliance manual that requires compliance
with, amongst others, the Code on Corporate Governance Pracfices. This report describes its corporate governance practices,

and explains the application of and deviation (if any) from the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

MODEL CODE ON SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors” securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors and
was not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities fransactions during the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board comprises eleven Directors, of which five are executive Directors, two are non-executive Directors and four are

independent non-executive Directors.
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The Board holds regular board meetings at least four fimes each year. For the year under review, the Board held fourteen

meetings in fofal. Records of Directors’ attendance in Board meetings during the year under review are as follows:

Number of
attendance
in the

whole year
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (Chairman and General Manager] 14/14
Mr. Zhang Bao Yi 14/14
M:r. Tang Hao Han 14/14
Mr. Zhu Jie Rong 13/14
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun 14/14

Non-executive Directors

M:r. Zhang Shi Zhong 14/14
Mr. Lou Run Zheng 13/14
Ms. Zhang Mei Jun resigned on 20 June 2011) 7/14

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi 13/14
Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald 13/14
Mtr. Zhang Hong Zhi (appointed on 20 June 2011) 5/14
M. li Zi Bico (appointyed on 10 Febraury 2012) Nil
Mr. Chen Guo Feng (resigned on 10 Febraury 2012) 13/14

Each of the Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
each of the Supervisors has entered into a service confract with the Company for a term of three years and thereafter to be
renewed subject fo the consent of both parties and re-election of the Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association until terminated by either party by giving no less than one month notice in writing to the other party thereafter

or by the Company upon the occurrences of cerfain events as set out in the confract.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Supervisors has entered info any service contract with the Company

which is not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than sfatutory compensation).

The Company has fully complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2] of the Listing Rules, and has appointed four independent non-
executive Directors, of which at least one possesses appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent parties under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and has received annual independence confirmation lefters from each of the independent non-

executive Direcfors as required by the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong (a nonexecutive Director of the Company) is the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (Chairman and
General Manager of the Company). Mr. Zhang Bao Yi (an executive Director of the Company] is the son of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan
(Chairman of the Company). Ms. Zhang Lan Jun (an executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (resigned as
a nonexecutive Director of the Company on 20 June 201 1) are daughters of Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (Chairman of the Company).
Mr. Tang Hao Han (an executive Director of the Company) is husband of Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (resigned as a nonexecutive Director
of the Company on 20 June 201 1) and the sorrindaw of the Mr. Zhang Shi Quan (Chairman of the Company). Save for the above,

there is no other financial, business, family or material relationship between the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the Company, approval
of business plans, assessment of the Group's performance and supervision on the management. The Board is also responsible

fo instruct and supervise the Company’s businesses to promote the success of the Company and ifs businesses.
The Board is focused on the overall sirategies and policies, in particular on the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board designates the Group's daily operation works to be handled by the executive Directors and senior management.
The Board makes decisions on certain important matters, including annual business plans; annual financial budgets; annual
remuneration plans; quarterly, interim and annual financial reports; preliminary distribution plans in respect of quarterly, inferim
profit and full year profit; and material issues involving development, acquisiion or corporate reorganization of the Company.

The Board transmits its decisions to the management through executive Directors who attend Board meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under Rule A.2.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive shall
be separated, and shall not be undertaken by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Shi Quan has been the Chairman and General
Manager of the Company during the year under review. Mr. Zhang Shi Quan was the Group's founder, responsible for
overlooking the overall sirategic planning, business development and sales and marketing sfrategies of new products. In view
of the nature of the Company's business, the Board considers that the current management structure arrangement is
considerably effective in making response over market changes and finalization of strategic plans. The Board will review

the efficiency of such management structure arrangement from time fo fime.

INTERNAL CONTROL

An effective infernal confrol sysfem is very important for the protection of the Group's assefs and shareholders” investments,
ensuring the reliability of financial information announcements and compliance with the Lisfing Rules. The Board is also aware
of its responsibility fowards the Group's infernal confrol, financial control and risk management, and its responsibility of

supervising the efficiency from time to time.

The Internal Audit Team of the Group carried out reviews and submitted report on the internal control system of the Group
in 201 1. The scope of the review covered all important aspects of the control, including the control in finance, operation,
compliance and risk management, as well as the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs and budget. With reference to the assessment made
by the Audit Committee on the report of internal control submitted by the Internal Audit Team, the Board considered that the

existing infernal control sysfem is sufficient and effective.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee on 26 April 2006 and has sfipulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee. The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i) propose fo the Board in respect of the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company's directors and senior management; (i) set up a formal and fransparent
procedure for the determination of such remuneration policy; and |iii] assess performances and set up remuneration policy

based on such assessment.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Commitiee comprises three members, comprising Mr. Chau Kam Wing,
Donald (independent non-executive Director], Mr. Chen Guo Feng (independent non-executive Director, resigned on 10
February 2012), Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong [non-executive Director, appointed on 20 June 201 1) and Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (non-
executive Director, resigned on 20 June 2011). The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chau Kam Wing,
Donald (independent non-executive Director). During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
fo review the remuneration packages of Direcfors and Supervisors, and records of attendance of members of the committee

in the meeting of the Remuneration Commitiee are as follows:

Number of

attendance

in the

whole year

Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald 1/1
M:r. Zhang Shi Zhong [appointed on 20 June 2011) 1/1
Mr. Zhang Hong Zhi (appointed on 10 February 2012) Nil
Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (resigned on 20 June 2011) 0/0
Mtr. Chen Guo Feng (resigned on 10 February 2012) 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 13 May 2011 and has stipulated written terms of reference for
the Nomination Commitiee. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include (i) study the standards and processes
of the selection of directors, general manager and other senior executives, and make suggestions to the Board:; {ii] look for
qualified candidates of directors, general manager and other senior executives extensively; and [iii] examine and make

suggestions on the candidates of directors, general manager and other senior executives.
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The Nomination Commitiee consists of three members, comprising Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald, Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi and
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun. Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald and Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi are independent non-executive Directors and
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun is an executive Director. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald
(independent non-executive Director]. During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one meefing to examine
and make suggestions on director candidates. Records of attendance of members of the committee in the meeting of the

Nomination Committee are as follows:

Number of
attendance
in the

who|e year

Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald 1/1
Mr. Zhao Chun Zhi 1/1
Ms. Zhang Lan Jun 1/1

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises five members, Mr.Du Min, Mr.Yang Di Shan, Mr. Wu lang Ping,
Mr. Shen Song Sheng and Mr. Wang Kui Quan, and Mr. Du Min is the chairman of the Supervisory Commitiee.

The establishment of the Supervisory Committee is in compliance with the Company Law of the PRC. Each of the Supervisors
have made their best efforts o discharge their duties, and effectively supervise whether the financial matters of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulatory requirements, and supervise the Directors and senior management in

performing their duties.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

Remuneration received by Emst & Young Hua Ming, the auditors of the Company, in respect of their audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately RMB1,200,000. The auditors did not provide any non-audit services
in 2011.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company esfablished the Audit Commitiee on 26 April 2006 and has stipulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee. The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are fo provide proposals to the Board in respect of the
appointment and removal of external auditors, approve the remuneration and appointment terms of external audifors, review
financial information and supervise financial reporting system and internal control procedures. The Committee shall also
supervise the Company's progress on the implementation of the provisions under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

as required by the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee comprises three members, who are Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald
independent non-executive director], Mr. Chen Guo Feng (independent non-executive director, resigned on 10 February
2012, Mr. Zhang Shi Zhong [non-executive director, appointed on 20 June 201 1) and Ms. Zhang Mei Jun (non-executive
director, resigned on 20 June 2011). Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald (independent non-executive Director is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Group's unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2011 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee,
and the Audit Committee considers that these reports had been prepared in compliance with the relevant accounting standards
and provisions. The Group's audited consolidated results for the year ended 31 December 2011 had also been reviewed

by the Audit Committee. In addition, the Audit Commitiee had reviewed the system of infernal control in 2011,

Two meetings had been held by the Audit Commitiee during the year under review. Records of attendance in the meefings

of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Number of

attendance

in the

whole year

Mr. Chau Kam Wing, Donald 2/2
Mtr. Zhang Shi Zhong (appointed on 20 June 2011) 1/2
M:r. Zhang Hong Zhi (appointed on 10 February 2012) Nil
Mr. Chen Guo Feng (resigned on 10 February 2012) 2/2
Ms. Zhang Mei Jun resigned on 20 June 2011) 1/2

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS ON THE ACCOUNTS

The Board confirms its responsibilities on the preparation of the Group's financial statements. The Directors shall ensure that
the Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and the applicable

accounting standards.

Statements of the Company's audifors in respect of their reporting responsibilities on the Group’s financial statements are

set out on page 45 of the Auditors’ Report in this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group has undertaken to maintain the highest level of transparency, and to apply the policy of making public and timely
disclosures of the relevant information to shareholders. The Company also maintains communications with shareholder through

its annual reports and inferim reports.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Group regularly mef with analysts and attended various forums, so as fo strengthen relationship with the investment sector.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

(English Translation for Reference Only)

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2012) Shen Zi No. 60468008_B0?2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHEJIANG SHIBAO COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Zhejiang Shibao Company limited, which comprise the

consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated and company income statements,

the consolidated and company stafements of changes in equity and the consolidated and company statements of cash flows

for the year then ended, and the nofes o the financial statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and mainfaining internal control as management determines is
necessary fo enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Certified Public Accountants’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial stafements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with the Code of Ethics
for Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the audit fo obtain a reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
stafements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial stafements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider the infernal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

[English Translation for Reference Only)

ll.  Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the consolidated and company financial
position of Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited as at 31 December 2011 and the consolidated and company financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Emst & Young Hua Ming Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Qian Jiang
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yi Fan

16 March 2012
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

Assets

Current Assets
Cash
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories

Other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current Assets
longterm equity investments
Fixed assefs
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total Assets

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEE

N O O AN —

e R = T e

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
43,234,111.34 65,301,493.65
137,538,266.04 60,152,693.51
203,618,895.42 127,888,570.64
6,354,952.61 6,971,004.76
9,216,366.98 3,914,239.70
122,418,117.92 138,0006,793.84
1,876,410.23 1,004,992.67
524,257,120.54  403,239,788.77

11,696,900.10
290,304,220.05
140,976,414.81
74,352,887.70

1,525,065.14

6,615,273.15
282,301,214.46
12,297,067 .81
/8,640,983.02

3,696,580.97

8,239,189.54 24,226,795.00
527,094,677.34 407,777 ,914.41
1,051,351,797.88 811,01/,703.18
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities
Shortferm loans
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Advance from cusfomers
Employee benifits payable
Taxes payable
Interests payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
longterm borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Annual Report 2011

Note 5

2/

28

s T Y |

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
114,079,832.00 30,000,000.00
14,771,590.00 14,730,000.00
165,119,836.40 119,447.751.59
2,235,262.83 1,104,151.26
3,524,754.51 8,737,908.35
5,743,037.16 12,958,662.68
1,366,471.76 1,167,729.19
951,788.17 3,721,551.24
13,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
10,653,379.56 10,644,849.00
331,445,952.39 207,512,603.31
30,020,400.00 20,090,000.00
1,698,208.33 1,890,458.33
26,202,378.62 4,748,573.33
57,920,986.95 26,729,031.66
389,366,939.34  234,241,634.97

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Owners' Equity
Share capital
Capital reserve

Surplus reserve

Refained earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent

Minority interests

Total Owners' Equity

Total Liabilities and Owners’ Equity

Signature:

legal representative:

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Finance director:

Note 5

29
30
31
32

33

31 December
2011

262,657,855.00
27,587,397.23
95,087,541.52
256,035,761.06

31 December
2010

262,657,855.00
27,500,772.59
84,961,353.85
176,929,012.57

641,368,554.81  552,048,994.01
20,616,303.73 24,727,074.20
661,984,858.54  576,776,068.21
1,051,351,797.88 811,017,703.18

Finance manager:

Annual Report 2071
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

Note 5

Revenue 34

less: Cost of sales 34
Sales taxes and surcharges 35
Selling expenses 36
General and administrative expenses 37
Financial expenses 38
Provision for assefs impairment 39

Add: Investment gains /(losses) 40
Including: Share of gains /(losses| from associates

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income 4

Less: Non-operating expenses 42
Including: Loss on disposal of non-current assets

Total profit

Less: Income fax expenses 43

Net profit

Net profit aftributable to equity holders of the Parent

Minority interests

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 44

Diluted earnings per share 44

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Including:
Total comprehensive income

atiributable to equity holders of the Parent

Total comprehensive income

attributable fo minority shareholders

50 | Annual Report 2071
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2011 2010
625917,119.21  545,943,926.52
403,887,118.40  349,894,180.37

5,156,884.62 1,599,061.69
35,881,539.03 37,508,370.58
54,553,179.60 43,877,501.37
5,694,893.68 516,006.87
(1,014,037.16) (1,522,528.50)
(127,683.62) 1,146,008.13
(127,683.62) 1,146,008.13
121,629,857.42  115,217,342.27
5,406,050.02 4,469,816.98
1,141,411.63 1,025,627.63
318,526.97 126,458.03
125,894,495.81  118,661,531.62
15,246,498.53 14,322,382.30
110,647,997.28  104,339,149.32
112,872,143.11  103,403,049.81
(2,224,145.83) 936,099.51

0.43 0.39

0.43 0.39
110,647,997.28  104,339,149.32
112,872,143.11  103,403,049.81

(2,224,145.83) 936,099.51

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2011

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

1. Balance at the

beginning of year

2, Movements
during the year
(1) Net profi
(2] Other comprehensive

income
Tofal comprehensive income

(3] Contribution by
sharefolders
and decrease
in capital
a. Purchase of
minority interests
in subsidiaries
(4) Appropriation of profit
a. Surplus reserve
b. Distribution fo

shareholders

3. Balance at

the end of year

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

2011

Atributable to equity holders of the Parent

Total

Share capital ~ Capifal reserve  Surplus reserve  Retained earnings Sub-fotal  Minority interests ~ Owners' equity
262,657,855.00  27,500,772.59  84,961,353.85 176,929,012.57 552,048 994.01 2472707420  576,776,068.21
= = — 11287214311 112,872,143.11  (2,224,145.83) 110,647,997.28
= = — 11287214311 112,872,14311  (2,224,145.83) 110,647,997.28

= 86,624.64 = = 86,624.64  (1,236,624.64)  (1,150,000.00 ]
= — 10,126,187.67  (10,126,187.67 | = = =

= = —  (23,639,206.95) (23,639,20.95)  (650,000.00) (24,289,206.95
262,657,855.00  27,587,397.23  95,087,541.52  256,035,761.06  641,368,554.81  20,616,303.73  661,984,858.54

Annual Report 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ( conTinuec_f)

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2010
Afributable to equity holders of the Parent Tofol
Share capital ~ Capilal reseve Surplus reserve  Refained eamings Subrtofal  Minority inferests — Owners' equity
1. Balonce at the
beginning of yeor 262,657.855.00  26,879,156.19  69,233,445.61 107,639,921.00 466,410,377.80  4,088,888.59 470,499,266.39

2, Moverments
during the year
(1] Nefprofi - —

(2] Other comprehensive

103,403,049.81 103,403,049.81 936,099.51 104,339,149.32

income - - - - - - -

103,403,049.81  103,403,049.81 936,099.51 104,339,149.32

Tofol comprehensive income - -

3] Confribution by shareholders

and decrease in capital

=

Purchase of minority
interests in subsidiaries - - - — — 292370250  2,.923,702.50
b Increase in registered
capitol by minority
interests in subsidiaries — 621,616.40 — — 621,616.40 17,378,383.60  18,000,000.00
(4] Appropriation of profits

a. Transfer fo siafufory
reserve funds — — 15,727908.24 [15,727,908.24) — — —
b Distrioution fo shoreholders - - — [18,386,050.00) (18,386,050.00)  {600,000.00] (18,986,050.00 |

3. Bolance of the end of year ~ 262,657,855.00  27,500,772.59  84,961,353.85 176,929,012.57 552,048 994.01  24,727,074.20 576,776,068.21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2011

RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Note 5 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sale of goods or

rendering of services 610,777,602.75  613,445,192.44
Cash received relating to other operating activities 45 18,246,017.93 2,951,630.72
Subrotal of cash inflows from operating acfivities 629,023,620.68  616,396,823.16
Cash paid for goods and services 391,331,440.54  395,581,613.39
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 64,110,244.73 46,001,868.68
Cash paid for taxes and levies 61,961,709.17 45,853,664.85
Cash paid relafing to other operating acitivities 45 66,661,925.83 62,216,556.21
Sub-otal of cash outflows from operating activities 584,065,320.27  549,653,703.13
Net cash flows from operating acitivities 46 44,958,300.41 66,743,120.03
Cash flows from investing acfivities
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other longterm assets 334,729.87 717,453.12
Cash received relafing to other investing activities 45 25,780,761.72 791,368.76
Sub-otal of cash inflows from investing activities 26,115,491.59 1,508,821.88
Cash paid for acqusition of fixed assets, infangible

assets and other long ferm assets 142,167,862.11 75,978,069.24
Cash paid for acquisition of an associate 4,840,000.00 -
Net cash paid for acquisition of a subsidiary 46 — 6,191,967.16
Net cash paid for purchase of minority

interests in a subsidiary 1,150,000.00 —
Sub-otal of cash outflows from investing activities 148,157,862.11 82,170,036.40
Net cash flows used in invesfing acfivities (122,042,370.52) (80,661,214.52)

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

54

Cash flows from financing acfivities

Cash received from borrowings
Subrotal of cash inflows from financial activities

Cash paid for debt repayments
Cash payments for distribution of dividends,
profit or inferest expenses
Including: dividends and profit to minority
inferests by a subsidiary

Cash paid relafing fo other financing acfivities
Subrotal of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flow froms financing activities

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rafes

on cash and cash equivalents

Net Increase/ (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents

Add: cash and cash equivalents af beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents af end of year

Annual Report 2011

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Note 5

46

2011 2010
190,600,000.00 50,000,000.00
190,600,000.00 50,000,000.00

88,589,768.00 —
30,818,188.55 19,952,427 .43
650,000.00 600,000.00
2,334,256.76 —
121,742,213.31 19,052,427 .43
68,857,786.96 30,047,572.57
(8,226,283.42) 16,129,478.08

48,938,264.15

32,808,786.07

40,711,980.73

48,038,2064.15

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Assets

Current Assets
Cash
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories

Other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current Assets
longterm equity investments
Fixed assefs
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets

Total Assets

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Note 7/

|

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
997,762.45 628,878.36
350,000.00 310,000.00
18,242,228.66 17,307,693.08
48,575.75 303,797.16
223,681,859.79 193,304,212.19
5,872,699.92 6,061,516.05
41,813.34 29,356.14
249,234,939.91 217,945,452 .98
139,696,900.10 134,079,378.10
6,567,783.15 6,956,455.50
5,613,713.08 5,786,359.12
125,580.45 155,252.97
152,003,976.78 146,977,445 .69
401,238,916.69 364,922,898.67

Annual Report 2071
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BALANCE SHEET (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Assets

Current Liabilities
Shortterm loans
Accounts payable
Advance from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Interests payable
Other payables

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Owners’ Equity

Share capital

Capital reserve

Surplus reserve

Accumulated losses
Total Owners’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Owners’ Equity

Annual Report 2071

Note /

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
55,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
6,097,383.53 5,542,381.54
91,100.00 73,534.00
638,263.53 962,564.69
(18,414.33) 249.772.73
163,848.82 51,359.75
682,672.00 7,806,169.70
1,200,000.00 400,000.00
63,854,853.55 35,085,782.41
63,854,853.55 35,085,782.41
262,657,855.00 262,657,855.00
26,879,156.19 26,879,156.19
49,368,130.86 46,249,515.48
(1,521,078.91) (5,949,410.41)
337,384,063.14 329,837,116.26

401,238,916.69

364,922,898.67

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

Revenue

less: Operating costs
Business faxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Provision for assefs impairment

Add: Investment gains

Including: Share of gains /(losses| from associates

Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit

Less: Income fax expenses

Net Profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Note /

2011 2010
46,431,236.29 44,644,895.85
35,782,492.96 37,654,232.91

240,323.76 94,031.49
391,652.40 548,074.78
7,923,195.26 5,604,259.97
2,371,040.09 87,124.36
148,578.58 —
28,907,586.00 21,046,008.13
(942,414.00) 1,146,008.13
28,481,539.24 21,703,180.47
3,485,402.51 321,522.04
5,827.31 8,197.26
31,961,114.44 22,016,505.25
774,960.61 242,731.19
31,186,153.83 21,773,774.06
31,186,153.83 21,773,774.06

Annual Report 2071
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

I Balance at the beginning
of year

2. Movements in current year
(1) Net profit
(2) Other comprehensive

income
Total comprehensive income
(3) Appropriation of profits
a. Surplus reserve

b. Disfribution fo

shareholders

3. Balonce at the end of year

Annual Report 2071

2011
Statutory Accumulated Total
Share capital Capital reserve reserve funds losses ~ shareholders’ equity
262,657,855.00 26,879,156.19 46,249,515.48 (5,949,410.41)  329,837,116.26
= = = 31,186,153.83 31,186,153.83
= = = 31,186,153.83 31,186,153.83
= = 3,118,615.38 (3,118,615.38) =
= = = (23,639,206.95)  (23,639,206.95)
262,657,855.00 26,879,156.19 49,368,130.86 (1,521,078.91)  337,384,063.14

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



STAT

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

T OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

2010
Statutory  Retained eamings/  Tofal shareholders’
Share capifal Capitol reserve reserve funds  Accumulated losses equity
I Balance af the beginning
of year 202,657,855.00  26,879,156.19  35,899,412.48 1,012,968.53  326,449,392.20
2. Increase/(decrease) during
the year
(1) Net profit - - - 21,773,774.06 21,773,774.06
(2) Other comprehensive income — — - - —
Total comprehensive income — — — 2177377406 21,773,774.06
(3) Appropriation of profits
a. Surplus reserve — — 10,350,103.00  (10,350,103.00] —
b. Distribution fo shareholders - — —  (18,386,050.00)  (18,386,050.00]
3. Balonce at the end of year 262,657,855.00 26,879,156.19 46,249,515.48 (5,949,410.41)  329,.837,116.26
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

1. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services

Cash received relating fo other operating activities
SubHotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Cash paid for taxes and levies

Cash paid relating to other operating activities
Subrtotal of cash outflows from operating acfivities
Net cash flows used in operating acitivities

2. Cash flows from investing acfivities
Cash received from investment gains
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assefs,
infangible assefs and other longferm assets

Cash received relating fo other investing activities
SubHotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assefs, infangible assets
and other long ferm assets

Cash paid for acquisition of an associate

Cash paid fo invest in a subsidiary

Net cash paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash paid for purchase of minority inferests in a subsidiary
Sub-otal of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flows from investing acfivities

60 Annual Report 2071
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2011 2010
93,851,256.05 37,451,412.10
3,485,402.51 124,266.64
97,336,658.56 37,575,678.74
39,156,102.55 40,869,560.50
3,389,304.17 3,287,132.97
3,411,910.08 3,267,420.99
81,326,284.81 3,433,395.59
127,283,601.61 50,857,510.05
(29,946,943.05)  (13,281,831.31)
29,850,000.00 19,200,000.00
= 519,240.12

348,681.16 525,600.00
30,198,681.16 20,944,840.12
396,659.22 689,437.89
4,840,000.00 —
= 2,000,000.00

= /,000,000.00
1,150,000.00 —
6,386,659.22 9,689,437.89
23,812,021.94 11,255,402.23

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



Year ended 31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

3. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from borrowings
Subrtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

Cash paid for debt repayments
Cash payments for distribution of dividends,
profit or inferest expenses

Cash paid relating fo other financing activities
Sub-otal of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

4. Effect of changes in foreign exchange rafes on

cash and cash equivalents

5. Net increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Add: cash and cash equivalents af beginning of year

6. Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

2011 2010
110,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
110,000,000.00 20,000,000.00

75,000,000.00 —
26,161,938.04 18,999,650.00
2,334,256.76 —
103,496,194.80 18,999,650.00
6,503,805.20 1,000,350.00
368,884.09 (1,026,079.08)
628,878.36 1,654,957.44
997,762.45 628,878.36
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2011

RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited (the “Company”] is a joint sfock limited company registered in Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China [the "PRC") and approved by the document (ZHE SHANG SHI [2004] 37) (# &
] 2004] 375% ) issued by the Listing Affairs Team ( = Z{EZEZE/]NE ) of the People’s Government of Zhejiang
Province on 30 April 2004. The Company was esfablished by ways of promotion jointly by Zhejiang Shibao Holding
Group Co., ld. ("Zhejiang Shibao Holding"), Wu Wei Xu ( R{Z18 ), Wu lang Yue ( RZRE2 ), Du Chun Mao (1
%7%) and Chen Wen Hong (BR304). The Company was approved by and registered with Zhejiang Administration
For Industry & Commerce. Iis business license registration number is 3300001010738. The Company’s H Shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The headquarters of the Company
is located at No.1 Shuanglin Road, Fotang Town, Yiwu, Zhejiang Province. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) is mainly engaged in the manufaciure and sale of automotive steering gear products. The Group

mainly produces automotive steering gear products and is classified fo automotive components manufacturing industry.

The Company was reformed fo a joint stock limited company from Zhejiang Shibao Steering Gear Co., lid., the

predecessor of the Company, on 12 July 2004.

As at the registration, the Company's registered capital was RMB175,943,855, and total share capital was
175,943,855 shares, among which 165,387,223 shares were legal person shares and 10,556,632 shares were

natural person shares. The nominal value of the Company's shares is RMB1.00 each.

On 22 August 2005, the Company was granted the document of “Approval of Issuance of Offshore Listing Foreign
Shares of Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited” issued by China Securities Regulatory Commitiee [the “CSRC") (ZHENG
JIAN GUO HE ZI[2005] 22) | FE B & F [2005] 22 5% ), whereas the CSRC approved the Company fo issue
offshore listing foreign shares. On 16 May 20006, the Company completed the initial public offering of H Shares and
the Company’s H Shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The total number of issued H Shares of the
Company was 86,714,000 H Shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each. After the issuance, the Company's
registered capifal was increased to RMB262,657,855, among which Zhejiang Shibao Holding, holders of H Shares
and Wu Wei Xu together with three other natural persons held 62.97%, 33.01% and 4.02% of the Company's shares
respectively. The increased capital contribution of RMB86,714,000 was verified by Emest & Young Hua Ming (AN
YONG HUA MING (2007) YAN ZI DI 60468008_BO1] [ 25k 288 [2007] B &% 60468008_BO1 5% ). In
November 2007, Wu Wei Xu ( R{Z1E ) and three other natural person shareholders signed the “Share Transfer
Agreement Of Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited” with Wang Yu Jie [ £ E2& | and five other natural persons
respeciively fo transfer a total of 2.87% of the Company's shares. After the completion of the transfer, Zhejiang Shibao
Holding, holders of H Shares and Wu Wei Xu | 2128 | together with seven other natural persons held 62.97%,
33.01% and 4.02% of the Company’s shares respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 19 April, 2011, Zhang Shi Quan (3Rt #) signed the “Share Transfer Agreement Of Zhejiang Shibao Company
Limited” with Wu Wei Xu | R1/8 ), Zhang Jun Yi (3&%&Z ), Fu Zhong Xian (821l ), Hui Yan [ E&), Wang Yu
Jie [EEZ), Zhang Qin Fang (5&%E% |, Zheng Yong Ping | B85k F ) and Du Chun Mao [ - &% ) respectively,
whereas VWu Wei Xu ( R1218 ) and the seven other natural persons fransferred a total of 4.02% of the Company’s
shares to Zhang Shi Quan (SRHEHE). After the completion of the transfer, Zhejiang Shibao Holding, holders of H Shares
and Zhang Shi Quan (& ) held 62.97%, 33.01% and 4.02% of the Company's shares respectively.

On 24 March 2010, the Company submitted an application to the CSRC for the fransfer listing from the GEM of the
Stock Exchange to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. On 22 December 2010, the Company received the
approval lefter from the CSRC dated 16 December 2010, and the CSRC approved the Company's proposal of fransfer
listing of the Company’s H Shares from the GEM of the Stock Exchange to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The Company then submitted an application of transfer listing of the Company’s H Shares from the GEM of the Stock
Exchange fo the Main Board of the Stock Exchange to the Stock Exchange on 17 January 2011. On 9 March 2011,
the Company’s H Shares were approved fo be listed and traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The business scope of the Company is: manufacture and sale of automotive components, sale of metal materials,

eletromechanical products and electronic products and sale of automobiles.

The Group's parent company is Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., ltd., which was registered in the PRC. The
Group’s ultimate holding parties are Zhang Shi Quan &4 | and his family members, i.e. Zhang Bao Yi [ RE
# |, Tang Hao Hang (#%7& 8 |, Zhang lan Jun (RBZE ) and Zhang Shi Zhong ( 3Rttt /8 ).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(1) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
— General Standards ([ &5H#E8| —EAX%ER|]) and 38 ifems of specific accounting standards, application
guidance issued thereafter, inferpretations and other related sfipulations (together, “Accounting Standards for
Business Enferprises’) ([ &&T2ER]) issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in February 2006.

The Company's financial stafements were used to be prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial
Reporting Standards for information disclosure purposes on the Stock Exchange. According to the “Consuliation
Conclusions on Acceptance of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit Firms for
Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong™ published by the Stock Exchange in December 2010,
with effect from this financial year, the Company decided to prepare its financial statements using "'Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises’ and the related regulations issued by the PRC's Ministry of Finance “PRC

Accounting Standards") for information disclosure purposes on the Stock Exchange.
The financial stafements are presented on the going concemn basis.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments.

In case of impairment, the corresponding impairment provision shall be accrued based on the relevant regulations.

(2) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES

The financial statements comply with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enferprises and fairly
and completely reflect the financial position of the Group and the Company as af 31 December 2011 and their

operating results and cash flows for the year then ended.

(3) ACCOUNTING YEAR

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.

(4) FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency. All values are presented fo the nearest Yuan, except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(5)

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Business combination represents a fransaction or matter of combining two or more individual enterprises info one
reporting entity. Business combination comprises business combination under common confrol and business

combination not under common control.

Business combinations under common control

A business combination under common control is a business combination in which all of the combining enterprises
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that
control is not transitory. In a business combination under common control, the party which obtains control of other
combining enferprise(s| on the combination date is the merging party, the other combining enterprise(s) is (are]
the merged party. The “combination date” refers fo the date on which the merging party actually obtains control

of the merged parties.

The assets and liabilities that the merging party obtains in a business combination shall be measured on the basis
of their carrying amounts in the merged parties on the date of combination. The difference between the carrying
amount of the nef assefs which the merging party obtains and the carrying amount of the consideration which
it pays (or the total par value of the shares issued| shall adjust the additional capital reserves. If the additional

capital reserves are not sufficient to be offset, the refained eamings shall be adjusted.

Business combinations not under common control

A business combination not under common control is a business combination in which the combining enterprises
are not ultimately confrolled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination. In a
business combination not under common control, the party which obtains control of other combining enterprise(s)
on the purchase date is the acquirer, other combining enterprise(s) is (are| the acquirees. The “acquisition date”

refers to the date on which the acquirer actually obtains confrol of the acquirees.

The identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities under business combinations not under common confrol

shall be measured af fair value af the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(5) BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration payable for a business combination and the fair value
of the acquiree’s equity held before the acquisition date over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable net assefs is recorded as goodwill, which is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. If the acquirer's interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable nef assets
exceeds the sum of the fair value of the consideration payable for a business combination and the fair value
of the acquiree's equity held before the acquisition date, the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities or
contingent liabilities as well as the fair value of the consideration payable for a business combination and the
fair value of the acquiree’s equity held before the acquisition date are reassessed, and affer reassessment, any
excess of the acquirer's inferest in the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets over the sum of the fair
value of the consideration payable for a business combination and the fair value of the acquiree’s equity held

before the acquisition date is recognized as current profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.

(6) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidation scope is determined based on control. The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 201 1. Subsidiaries

represent entities controlled by the Company.

When preparing the consolidated financial stafements, same accounting year and accounting policies are
applied to subsidiaries and the Company. All balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses resulting

from infercompany transactions and dividends within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the current loss assumed by the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the minority inferests of
equity of the beginning of year, the balance of minority interests shows as a deficit. Any change in the minority

interests without losing its control is recognized as an equiy fransaction.

Where the Company combines a subsidiary during the reporting period through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the results and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains the control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary are consolidated from the date that control commences, based
on the fair value of those identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed af the

date of acquisition.
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NOT

ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(6)

(7)

(8)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Where the Company combines a subsidiary during the reporting period through a business combination involving
entifies under common control, the results and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated from the beginning
of the period during which the combination occurs. In preparing the comparative consolidated financial
sfatements, adjustments were made fo relevant items in financial stafements in previous periods as if the reporting
entity formed after the consolidation had been in existence since the ulimate controlling party starfed fo exercise

effective contral.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash represents cash on hand and bank deposits which can be used for payment at any time; cash equivalents
represent shortterm highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which

are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value.

FOREIGN CURRENCY BUSINESS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY STATEMENT TRANSLATION

The Group converts the amounts of foreign currency transactions in fo ifs funcfional currency.

Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rate of exchange on the first
day of the month of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The exchange
differences arising from the above franslation, except for those arising from special foreign currency borrowings
for the consfruction of assets eligible for capitalization, which shall be dealt with according to the principle of
borrowing cost capitalization, are taken fo the consolidated income sfatement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated using exchange rafe af the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monefary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rafes at the date when the fair value was determined, and the differences are taken fo the income

statement or other comprehensive income.

Cash flows in foreign currencies are franslated info RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. The effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuation on cash is separately disclosed in the consolidated statement

of cash flows.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011

67



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(9)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial insfrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when, and only when, the

Group becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)

is derecognized where:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

(2] the Group has fransferred its rights o receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation fo
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “passthrough” arrangement; and (a) has
fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b] has neither fransferred nor refained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are subsfantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respecfive carrying amounts is recognized in the income sfatement.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, the day that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

markefplace. Trade dafe means the date when the Group is committed fo purchase or sell the financial asset.
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ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Category and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are categorized info the following categories upon initial recognition: financial
assefs af fair value through profit or loss; heldfo-maturity investments; loans and receivables; availablefarsale
financial assets; or derivatives designated as effective hedging instruments. The Group determines the
categorization of the financial assets at initial recognition. VWhen financial assets are recognized initially, they
are measured at fair value. Transaction costs on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are expensed

immediately, while on other financial assets they are expensed at the amount subsequent to initial recognition.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assefs af fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for frading and those measured
at fair value through profit or loss designated upon inifial recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they satisfy one of the following conditions: the purpose to acquire such financial assets is fo sell them
in the near term; they belong to a part of identifiable combined financial instruments and objective evidence
exists that they are acquired principally for the purpose of obtaining profit in the near term; they are derivatives
which are also classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments, financial
guarantee agreements, or related o an equity instrument which has no quoted market price, and their fair value
cannot be measured reliably and seftled through exchange of the equity instrument. Subsequent to initial
recognifion, financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein
are recognized in the consolidated income statement. Dividends or interest income derived from financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deferminable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity when the Group has the positive infenfion and ability to hold to maturity. Heldto-maturity investments
are subsequently measured of amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized
in the consolidated income statement when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through

the amortization process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
() FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Category and measurement of financial assefs (continued)

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such financial assefs are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

rate method. Gains or losses arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in the income statement.

Available-forsale financial assets

Availableforsale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as availablefor-sale or
are not classified in any of the above categories. Alfter initial recognition, such financial assets are measured
at fair value. Their discount or premium is amortized using effective interest rate method and recognized as interest
income or expense. Except for impairment losses and exchange differences of monetary financial assets
denominated in foreign currencies which are recognized in the income statement, changes in fair value of
availableforsale financial assets are recognized as other comprehensive income in the capital reserve until the
investment is derecognized or there is an impairment, then the cumulative gain or loss will be included in the
consolidated income sfatement. Inferests and dividends eamed are reported as interest income and dividend

income, respectively and are recognized in the income stafement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securifies cannot be reliably measured, such securities are stated af cost.

Category and measurement of financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group are classified initially as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, other financial liobilities and derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. The
fransaction costs of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are charged fo the income statement,

while the transaction costs of other financial liabilities are recognized as part of the initial amount of liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Category and measurement of financial liabilities (continued)

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they safisfy one of the following conditions: they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term, belong fo a part of identifiable combined financial insfruments which are managed centrally and
objective evidence exists that they are acquired principally for the purpose of obtaining profit in the near ferm;
belong fo derivatives, unless those are designated as effective hedging instruments, under financial guarantee
agreements or related fo equity instruments without a quoted market price, and the fair values of which cannot
be measured reliably and sefiled through exchanges of the equity instruments. These financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, and all the realized or unrealized gains or losses are recognized in the

income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Fair valve of financial instruments

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference
fo the quoted market bid price. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is defermined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market fransactions; reference fo the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and

option pricing models.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
() FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses af each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss will be provided. There
is objective evidence that an impairment loss exists when the present value of the estimated future cash flows

is adversely affected after inifial recognition, and the amount can be measured reliably.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of esfimated future cash flows [excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective inferest rate,
[i.e., the effective rate computed initial recognition) affer taking info consideration of the value of the collaterals,
if any. In respect of the floating inferest rate, the current effective interest rate is used as the discount rate in

caleulating the present future cash flows.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis for individually significant financial assets, an impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement when there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred. For individually insignificant financial assets, an impairment assessment is made
collectively for financial assets which share similar credit risk characteristics. For the financial assefs without
impairment loss based on individual test {including individually significant or insignificant financial assets), an
assessment is made collectively for financial assets which share similar credit risk characteristics. For financial
assets with impairment loss recognized based on individual test basis, another assessment is not required to be

made collectively for the financial assefs which share similar credit risk characterisfics.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed by adjusfing the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
in the consolidated income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its

amortized cost at the reversal date.
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RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-forsale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-forsale asset is impaired, accumulated losses arising from
decreases in fair values will be removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.
Accumulated losses represent an amount comprising the difference between its cost (nef of any principal payment
and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in the consolidated

income statement.

An impairment loss on debt instruments can be reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the
instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring affer the impairment loss was recognized. Impairment
losses on equity insfruments are not reversed through profit or loss. An increase in fair value after impairment is

recognized as other comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that
is nof carried at fair value because ifs fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are

not reversed.

According to Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Longterm Equity Invesiments, the above
accounting principle should also apply fo the longferm equity investments under the cost method when the active

market price and fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
() FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Transfers of financial assets

If the Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards related to the ownership of a financial asset
fo the fransferee, the Group derecognizes the financial asset. However, if it has substantially retained all of the

risks and rewards related fo the ownership of a financial asset, the Group continues recognizing the asset.

When the Group does not either fransfer substantially or refain all of the risks and rewards related fo the ownership
of a financial asset, the Group treats it depending on individual circumstances as follows: if the Group relinquishes
control over the financial asset, the Group derecognizes the financial assef; or if the Group does not relinquish
control over the financial asset, the Group, to the extent of its confinuous involvement in the financial asse,

recognizes it as a related financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability accordingly.

(10) RECEIVABLES
Individually significant receivables

The Group recognizes the account receivables with an individual balance exceeding RMB100 million and other

receivables as individually significant receivables.

The Group conducts an independent impairment fest on the individually significant receivables to separately test
financial assefs that have never been impaired, including impairment tests conducted within a group of financial
assefs sharing similar credit risk features. Accounts receivable, the impairment loss of which has been recognized
are separately tested, excluding impairment tests conducted for a group of accounts receivable sharing similar

credit risk features.

Receivables individually insignificant but of greater credit risk after aggregation by credit risk characteristics

In respect of accounts receivable that are individually insignificant and those that are significant but are not
impaired upon individual testing, the Group classifies financial assets based on the similarity and relevancy of
credit risk features. These credit risks usually reflect debtors” ability to sefile all amounts that fall due based on

the contracted terms of the assets, and are relevant fo the estimated future cash flows of the inspected assets.

When an impairment fest is performed by means of a group, bad debt provision will be assessed and ascertained
according to the sfructure of the group of accounts receivable and similar credit risk features (debtors” ability o
seffle outstanding amounts based on contracted terms), taking info account historical experience of losses and

losses that are expected to incur in the group of accounts receivable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(11)

(12)

INVENTORIES

Inventories include raw materials, workin-progress, finished goods and low-value consumables.

Inventories are stated at cost initially. Inventories costs comprise purchase costs, processing costs and other costs.
The actual cost of delivery of inventories is defermined by the weighted average method. Low-value consumables

are amortized using the one-off write-off method.
The Group adopts the inventory perpetual physical count method.

On the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, the excess of
the cost over the net realisable value of the inventories is recognized as a provision for diminution in the value
of inventories in the income statement. If the factor for diminution in the value of inventories disappears and the
net realisable value of inventories is higher than their carrying amount, the provision previously recognized can

be reversed in the consolidated income statement to the extent of the previously recognized provision amount.

Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less any estimated
costs fo completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. Inventories provision is

made according fo category of inventories with respect of raw materials and finished goods.

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Longterm equity investments comprise equity investments in subsidiaries and associates as well as other long-
ferm equity invesiments where the Group does not have control, joint control or significant influence over the

investees, and which are not quoted in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

The initial recognition of long-term equity invesiments is measured at initial investment cost upon acquisition. For
business combination under common confrol, the initial investment cost is the share of the investee’s equity. For
business combination not under common control, the initial investment cost is the combination cost. The
combination cost comprises the sum of the assets provided by the acquirer, the liability incurred or taken and
the fair value of the equity securities issued. For the longferm equity investments acquired by a way other than
business combination, the initial investment cost is recognized as follows: for a longferm equity investment
acquired by cash payment, the inifial investment cost shall be the actual purchase price, and those costs, taxes
and other necessary expenditures directly affributable fo the acquisition of the longterm equity invesiment. For
a longterm equity investment acquired by the issue of equity securifies, the initial investment cost shall be the
fair value of the securities issued. For the longterm equity invesiment made by investors, the initial investment cost
is defermined based on the amount as agreed in the investment confract or agreement, unless the amount agreed

does not represent the fair value.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(12) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (continued)

Other longerm equity investments where the Group does not have control, joint control or significant influence
over the investee, not quoted in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are
accounted for using the cost method. longterm equity investments where the Company has the control over the
investees are accounted for using the cost method when preparing the financial statements of the Company.
Control refers fo the right fo decide on the financial and operating policies of a company and to obtain profit

from operating earnings of the company.

When the cost method is used, longterm equity investments are measured at initial investment costs. Cash
dividends or profit appropriation declared by the investees are recognized as investment income in the current
period, except for the declared but unpaid parts of the cash dividends or profit appropriation which were included
in the cash payment for acquiring the invesiment. Impairment is fested for long-term invesiments in accordance

with the relevant asset impairment policies.

When the Group has joint control or significant influence over the invesfees, the Group's inferests in these entities
are accounted for using the equity accounting method. Joint control represents the contractually agreement in
sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only when the strategic financial and operating decisions
relating fo the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers|. Significant
influence is the power fo participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control

or joint control over those policies.

When the equity accounting method is used, where the inifial invesiment cost exceeds the Group's share of the
fair value of the investee's identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition, the investment is initially measured
at cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the Group's share of the fair value of the invesfee's identifiable
net assefs at the time of acquisition, the difference is included in the consolidated income statement for the current

period and the cost of the longterm equity investment is adjusfed accordingly.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(12) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Group's share of net profit or loss of the investee is defermined based on the fair value of identifiable assets
of investee on the acquisition dafe and the Group's share of the postacquisition results and reserves of jointly-
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and ifs jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated 1o the extent of the Group's inferests in the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealized losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced by the Group's
share of the profit distribution or cash dividends declared by an investee. The Group discontinues recognising
its share of nef losses of an investee after the carrying amount of the longterm equity investment together with
any long-erm inferests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net invesiment in the investee are reduced
fo zero, except fo the extent that the Group has an obligation fo assume additional losses. For changes in owners'
equity of the investee other than those arising from its net profit or loss, the Group records directly in equity its

share of net book value changes.

When a longterm equity investment is disposed of, the differences between the carrying amount and actual
consideration received are recognized in the income statement. If longterm equity investments are accounted
for using equity accounting, on disposal, the amounts previously recognized in equity and the portion disposed

of are transferred to profit or loss.

For the details of impairment test and provision for long term equity investments related to subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates, please refer to Note 2 (22). For details of impairment fest and provision for
other long-term equity investments without a quoted price in the active market and fair values of which cannot

be measured reliably, please refer to Note 2 (9).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(13) FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets shall be recognized if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably. For subsequent expenditures of
fixed assefs, if the recognition conditions are satisfied, they are recognized as cost of fixed assets and the carrying
amount of replaced components is derecognized. Otherwise, it is normally charged to the consolidated income

statement in the period in which it is incurred.

Fixed assets are measured af cost initially, the cost of fixed assets comprises purchase price, including relevant
faxes, and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for ifs intended

use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis fo write off the cost of each item of fixed assets o its residual
value over ifs estimated useful life. The esfimated useful lives, estimated residual value and annual depreciation

rates of fixed assets are as follows:

Annual

Estimated depreciation

Useful lives  residual value rates

Buildings and sfructures 10-35 years 5% 2.7%9.5%
Machinery and equipment 10 years 5% 9.5%
Motor vehicles 5 years 5% 19.0%
Office equipment and others 5 years 5% 19.0%

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, af least

at each balance sheet date.

For defails of impairment test and provision methods of fixed assets, please refer to Note 2 (22).

(14) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The cost of construction in progress is defermined by actual construction expenditures, which comprise the direct
expenditures of construction, capitalised borrowing costs before the consfruction is ready for use and other relevant

EXPENnses.

Construction in progress is reclassified fo the appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and is ready

for use.

For details of impairment test and provision methods of consfruction in progress, please refer to Note 2 (22).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(15) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs refer fo the interest on or other cost of loan borrowed by the Group, including interest,
amortization of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses and exchange difference from loans in foreign currencies,

efc.

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition or consfruction of qualifying assefs, i.e., fixed assefs,
investment properties and inventories that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets. Except for the above, borrowing costs are

recognized as financial expenses in the consolidated income statement when incurred.
Borrowing costs are capitalised when safisfying all of the following conditions:

(a)  Capital expenditures were incurred;

(b)  Borrowing costs were incurred;

[c]  Acquisition or construction activities for the assets o be ready for use or sale have started.

The capitalisation of such borrowing cosfs ceases when the qualifying assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale. Subsequent borrowing costs are charged fo the income statement.

In the capitalisation period, the amount of interest to be capitalised in each accounting period is defermined

as follows:

[a)  where funds are borrowed specifically for the construction of a qualifying asset, the amount of inferest o
be capifalised is the inferest expense incurred during the period less any interest income earned from
depositing the borrowed funds or any invesiment income on the temporary investment of those funds before

being used on the asset;

(b)  where funds are borrowed generally and used for the consfruction of a qualifying asset, the amount of
interest fo be capitalised on such borrowings is defermined by applying a capitalisation rafe fo the weighted
average of the excess amounts of cumulative expenditure on the asset over the above amounts of specific

borrowings.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011

79



< : a2 ___.______r:am
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(15) BORROWING COSTS (continued)

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs fo
the date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period over which capitalisation is suspended.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended when the acquisition or construction activities are interrupted
abnormally and the interruption lasts over three months and the borrowing costs are recognized in the income

statement until the construction or production acfivities resume.

(16) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assefs are recognized and initially measured at cost when it is probably that the related economic
benefits will flow to the Group the cost of which can be reliably measured. The intangible assets acquired in
the business combination the fair value of which can be reliably measured are separately recognized as infangible

assets at fair value.

The useful lives of infangible assets are determined on the basis of the useful economic life. If it is impossible to

forecast the useful economic life, the intangible asset is regarded to have an indefinite useful life.

The useful lives of various intangible assets are presented as follows:

Useful lives
land use rights 50 years
Patented fechnology 10 years
Software 5 years
Non-patented fechnology 5-10 years

The land use rights acquired by the Group are generally accounted for as intangible assets. For self development
and consfruction of plant and buildings, the related land use rights and buildings are accounted for as infangible
assefs or fixed assefs respectively. The costs for acquiring land and buildings are apportioned between the land

use rights and buildings, or accounted for as fixed assets if they cannot be reasonably apportioned.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using the straight line method over its useful life. The
amortisation period and the amortization method for an infangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each balance sheet date and are adjusted when necessary.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(16)

(17)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group categorizes the research and development costs info research costs and development costs. All
research costs are charged fo the consolidated income statement as incurred. Expenditure incurred on projects
fo develop new products is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the infangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its infention to complete and its ability
fo use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product

development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

For defails of impairment test and provision methods of intangible assefs, please refer to Note 2 (22).

PROVISION

Except for the confingent consideration and contingent liabilities under business combination, a provision is

recognized when:

[a)  a present obligation has arisen as a result of a past event;

(b) it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required o seftle the obligation; and
(c] areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are initially measured based on the best estimate of the expenditure for performing the current
obligation, taking into account the related risks, uncertainties and time value factor. At each balance sheet date,
the amount of provisions is reassessed and if there is solid evidence that the carrying value cannot reflect the

best estimate, the provisions should be adjusted based on the best estimate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(18) REVENUE

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group, the revenue can

be reliably measured and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold and related costs incurred or fo be incurred
can be measured reliably. Revenue from the sale of goods is determined according to amounts received or
receivable from buyers stipulated in confracts or agreements, unless such amounts are deemed unfair. The receipt
of amounts sfipulated in contracts or agreements is recognized on a deferred basis. Those with a financing nature

are measured af the fair value of amounts stipulated in contracts or agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis and the applicable effective interest rate.

(19) GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions can be complied with. If the fair value could not be reasonably defermined,
the government grant is measured based on the nominal value. Where the grant relates to an expense ifem, it
is recognized as income over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that
it is intended o compensate. Where the grant is for compensation of expenses or losses incurred, the grant is
recongnised in the current year's consolidated income statement. VWhere the grant relates fo an asset, the fair
value is credited fo a deferred income account and is released fo the income statement over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments. Government grants measured based on the nominal value

are recognized in the consolidated income statement directly.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(20) INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income fax is recognized in the consolidated income statement
as a fax expense or income, except that it is a goodwill adjusiment arising from business combination, or items

directly recognized in equity, in which case they are recognized in equity.

Current fox assefs and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected fo be

recovered from or paid fo the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting period

between the fax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(a)  where the taxable temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, or inifial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the fime of the fransaction,

affects neither the accounting profit nor faxable profit or loss; and

(b) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, investments in jointly-
controlled entities and investments in associates, where the fiming of the reversal of the temporary differences

can be confrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will nof reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assefs are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tox credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

[a)  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of

the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(b) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, investments in
jointly-controlled entities and investments in associates, deferred tax assefs are only recognized fo the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit

will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLCIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(20) INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is sefiled, based on tax rafes (and tax laws| that have been enacted or

substantively enacted af the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced fo the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assefs fo be utilised. The Group reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date and
recognizes deferred tax assets fo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Where the taxable entity has a sfatutory right fo set off current tax assets against current fax liabilities, and the
deferred tax is related to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority, the net deferred tax assets or deferred

fax liabilities will be presented in the financial statements.

(21) LEASE

leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assefs were transferred fo the lessee are

accounted for as financial leases, otherwise as operating leases.

As a lessee under operating lease

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged o the income statement on the straightline basis over the

lease terms. Contingent renfals are charged fo the consolidated income stafement when they are incurred.

(22) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The impairment of an asset other than inventories, deferred income tax and financial assets is defermined as

follows:

The Group assesses if there is any indicator that an asset may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If there
is any indicator that an asset may be impaired, the Group will assess its recoverable amount and perform
impairment test. Goodwill recognized from business combination and infangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are tested at least annually for impairment, irespective of whether there is any indication that the asset may be

impaired. Assef impairment test is conducted annually for intangible assets which are not yet available for use.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's value in use and ifs fair value less costs fo sell, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are mainly independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for cash-

generating unit fo which the asset belongs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(22)

(23)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ifs recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged fo the income statement in the period in which it arises. A provision for impairment

loss of the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, which

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, and is within the business segment of the Group.

The Group first measures the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit on groups of cash-generating units
without allocating goodwill, and if it is less than the carrying amount, there is an indication that impairment may
exist. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units with allocated
goodwill is compared with its carrying amount. If the impairment loss is recognized, it is first deducted from the
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the asset group or sefs of asset groups, and then deducted from the
carrying amount of the remaining assets of the asset group o sets of asset groups executions goodwill on a pro

rata basis.

An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given and other related expenditure incurred in exchange for
services rendered by employees. Employee benefits are recognized as a liability in the period which the
associated services are rendered by employees. The amount of the employee benefits should be discounted to

its present value if the amount is material and is due over one year affer the balance sheet date.

All employees of the Group are covered by the social insurances administrated by the local government, including
pension, medical care and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund, and the contributions are recognized

as cost of assets or charged fo the income statement.

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is voluntarily terminated before the normal
refirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The
Group recognizes refirement benefits in the income sfatement when it is demonsirably commitied fo terminafing

the employment of current employees according to a defailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(24) PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

The cash dividends of the Company are recognized as a liability upon the approval by the shareholders af a

general meeting.

(25) RELATED PARTIES

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice
versa, or where two or more parties are subject fo common control, joint control or significant influence from

another party, they are considered fo be related parties.

(26) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements requires management fo make judgements and esfimates that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of confingent liabilities on
the balance sheet date. However, uncertainty about those estimates could result in outcomes that could require

a material adjustment fo the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimates with uncertainty

On the balance sheet date, the following uncertainties about those key assumptions and estimates could result
in oufcomes that could require a material adjustment fo the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Fair valve of unlisted equity investments

The valuation of unlisted equity investments represents the expected future cash flows discounted at the prevailing
discount rate of other financial instruments with similar confract ferms and risk features. It requires the Group fo

estimate the expected future cash flows, credit risks, fluctuation and discount rates, so the valuation is uncertain.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assefs are recognized for all unused income fax losses fo the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
fo determine the amount of deferred tax assefs that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level

of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(26) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for doubtful debt

The Group adopts the allowance method to account for bad debt loss. The Group conducts impairment tests
for the individually significant or insignificant receivables but with relatively large risk after combination in line
with the credit risk characteristics. If there is objective evidence indicating that an amount receivable is impaired,
then an impairment loss will be recognized and a provision for bad debts will be made according to the difference
when the present value of future cash flows is fewer than ifs carrying amounts. For other receivables, management
divides the amount together with other receivables which are unimpaired through separately test of impairement
info certain profofolio according to similar credit risk characteristics, then determines the impairement loss in

proportion fo the balance at the balance sheet date for provision of bad debs.

Provision for inventory obsolescence

According to the Group's accounting policy of inventories, which are stated af the lower of cost and nef realisable
value, provision for inventory impairment is made for obsolete and slow moving items, when its cost is higher
than its net realisable value. The Group will reassess whether specific inventory is obsolete and slow moving,
or its nef realisable is lower than ifs cost on the balance sheet date. The difference between the reassessment

results and the current esfimates will have an effect on the carrying amount of inventories for the period of change.
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3. TAXATION
(1) MAJOR TAXES AND TAX RATES

Value added tax

Taxable revenue is subject fo value added tax ("VAT") at a tax rate of 17%. The

VAT payable is determined by the oufput VAT net of deductible input VAT of the

period.
Urban maintenance = 5-7% on tumover tox paid.
and construction tax
Education surcharge = 3% on fumover tox paid.
Individual income tax = The Group withholds individual income tax on salaries paid fo staff in accordance

with the tax laws.

Corporate income tax = Except for the following entities of the Group which are entitled fo tax concession
under the income fax concession policies, the entities comprising the Group are

subject fo enferprise income fax at a rate of 25% of their taxable income.

(2) TAX CONCESSION AND APPROVAL DOCUMENTS

According to the Document (Ji Ke Ban Zi [2009] No. 115] issued by the Department of Science and Technology,
the Department of Finance, the Bureau of State Taxation and the Bureau of Local Taxation of Jilin province, Siping
Steering Gear Co., lid., a subsidiary of the Company, was recognized as a hightech enferprise, and was subject

fo an enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2009 to 2011,

According to the Document (Zhe Ke Fa Gao [2008] No.250) issued by the Department of Science and
Technology, the Department of Finance, the Bureau of State Taxation and the Bureau of Local Taxation of Zhejiang
province, Hangzhou Shibao Auto Steering Gear Co., lid., a subsidiary of the Company, was recognized as
a hightech enferprise, and was subject to an enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2008 to 2010. In 2011,
Hangzhou Shibao Auto Steering Gear Co., Lid. was re-accepted for the qualifications as a hightech enterprise

and is subject fo an income tax rate of 15% from 2011 1o 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continue

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

4. CONSOLIDATION SCOPE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(1) Particulars of subsidiaries (continued)
Notes:

(1) On 11 March 2011, the Company acquired the 1% interest in Hangzhou Shibao from Ms. Zhang Hai Qin, the spouse
of Zhang Shi Quan.

(2)  On 12 December 2010, the Company increased its investment in Hangzhou New Shibao, the registered capital of which
increased from RMB 40 million to RMB 60 million, representing an increase of 20 million. Among which, the Company
increased its investment by RMB 2 million to RMB 42 million, representing 70% of the revised registered capital. Mr. Wang
Chao Jiu invested in Hangzhou New Shibao with non-patented proprietary technology valued at RMB18 million, representing
30% of the revised registered capital.

(3] Beijing Aufonic was the acquiree of the Group in 2010, not involving enterprises under common control.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
(1) CASH
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Original Conversion Equivalent Original Conversion Equivalent
currency rafe RMB currency fole RMB
Cosh
-RMB 153,654.33 1.00 153,654.33 126,251.37 1.00 126,251.37
Bank deposit
-RMB 40,527,148.18 100 40,527,148.18 48,787 416.98 100 48,787,416.98
-US§ 1,612.91 7.32 11,802.04 1,611.09 .02 11.791.61
-HK§ 23,339.25 081 19.016.82 15,176.62 0.85 12,444 83
-CHF 5541 6.49 359.36 5541 7.06 359.36
Other monefary funds
-RMB 252213061 100 252213081 16,363,229.50 100 16,363,229.50
Total cash on hand
and af banks 43,234,111.34 65,301 493.65
less: Restricted cash
on hand and at banks [note) 2522,130.61 16,363,229.50
Cash and cash equivalents 40.711,980.73 48,938,264.15

Note: As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the restricted cash on hand and at banks of the Group refers to the

deposits for issuance of bank bills and letters of credit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(1) CASH (continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, defails of the monetary funds of the Group placed in overseas banks are

as follows:
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Bank deposits
- HK$ 23,339.25 14,246.97
Converted into RMB 19,016.82 11,682.52

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods between seven days and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements

of the Group, and earn inferest af the respective shortterm time deposit rates.

(2) NOTES RECEIVABLE

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Banker's acceptances 137,538,266.04 60,152,693.51

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no notes receivable converted fo accounts

receivables, because of the drawer’s inability to perform.

As at 31 December 2011, notes receivable with a carrying value of RMB43,710,760.44 have been endorsed
fo other parties, but not yet expired (31 December 2010: nil).

As at 31 December 2011, nofes receivable with a carrying value of RMB11,006,590.00 have been pledged
fo obtain notes payable {31 December 2010: nil).

As at 31 December 2011, banker's acceptances with a carrying value of RMB4,079,832.00 have been

discounted to obtain shortterm borrowings {31 December 2010: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Within 1 year 199,521,502.26 125,202,408.62
1-2 years 3,459,272.27 1,667,438.80
2-3 years 550,022.61 1,388,162.62
Over 3 years 2,378,172.51 2,010,394.29

205,908,969.65  130,268,404.33
less: Provision for impairment (2,290,074.23) (2,379,833.69)

203,618,895.42  127,888,570.64

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:

At the Provision Decrease during the year At the

beginning of year during the year Reversal Write-off end of year

2011 2,379,833.69 105,350.44 (195,109.90) = 2,290,074.23
2010 4,981,002.69 161,731.00 [2,762,660.00) (240.00) 2,379,833.69
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Analysis of accounts receivable by categories is as follows:

Individually significant balance
Individually insignificant

but significant based

on credit risk characterisfics

Other insignificant balances

Individually significant balance
Individually insignificant

but significant based

on credit risk characterisfics

Other insignificant balances

31 December 2011

Carrying balance Bad debt provision
Amount (%) Amount (%)
190,367,370.40 92.45 1,414,779.55 0.74
2,337,424 41 1.14 875,294.68 37.45
13,204,174.84 641 _ _
205,908,969.65 100.00 2,290,074.23
31 December 2010
Carrying balance Bad debt provision
Amount (%) Amount (%)
111,497,017.63 85.59 1,262,726.35 1.13
5,089,125.70 3.91 1,117,107.34 21.95
13,682,261.00 10.50 — —
130,268,404.33 100.00 2,379,833.69

Individually insignificant but significant based on credit risk characteristics mainly refers to the individually

insignificant receivables with long ageing.

In 2011, no significant accounts receivable were reversed or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

In 2010, the particulars of the reversed and recovered significant accounts receivable are as follows:

Tian He Fu Ao Commercial
Vehicle Steering
Gear Changchun
Co., ltd.

Accounts receivable write-off instructions: in 2011 and 2010, the Group did not write off any significant accounts

receivable.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not hold accounts receivable for shareholding

Reasons for
being reversed or

recovered

Remaining
balances

recovered

Accumulated
accrual bad debt

provision before

Basis for
determining
the original bad being reversed

debt provision or recovered

Unrecovered for more  1,182,025.42
than 2 years, and
no business relations

maintained

units with 5% [inclusive) or more of the voting rights of the Company.

As at 31 December 2011, the five largest accounts receivable are as follows:

FAW Jiefang Qingdao
Automobile
Co., ltd.
FAW Car Co., ltd.
Wuhu Sterling Steering
System Co., ltd.
Shanghai Dinfech
International Corp. lid.
Dongfeng Liuzhou
Motor Co,. ltd

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Relationship
with the Group

Third parly customer
Third parly customer
Associate

Third parly customer

Third party customer

Amount  Ageing
46,421,191.81  Within 1 year
31,329,970.69  Within 1 year
25,391,425.25  Within 1 year
22,192,872.00  Within 1 year

5,607,613.56  Within 1 year

130,943,073.31

Amounts being
reversed or

recovered

1,182,025.42

Percentage of
total accounts

receivable (%)

22.54

15.22
12.33

10.78

2.72

63.59
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(3) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the five largest accounts receivable are as follows:

Percentage of

Relationship total accounts
with the Group Amount  Ageing receivable (%)
FAW Car Co., lid.  Third party customer 25,622,691.17  Within 1 year 19.67
FAW Jiefang
Qingdao Third party customer 22,491,289.99  Within 1 year 17.27
Automobile
Co. ld.
Wuhu Sterling Associate 17,063,803.27  Within 1 year 13.10
Steering
System Co., Lid.
Zhejiang Yuanjing  Third party customer 8,213,472.75  Within 1 year 6.31
Auto Parts Co., Lid.
Dongfeng livzhou  Third party customer 6,104,264.57  Within 1 year 4.69
Motor Co,. Lid

79,495,521.75 61.04

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, an amount due from a related party is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Wouhu Sterling Steering Sysfem Co., Lid. 25,391,425.25 17,063,803.27

On 9 October 2011, Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited undertook the domestic factoring of recourse rights
with the Yi Wu branch of ICBC, pledged by its accounts receivable, so as to obtain a loan of RMB
30,000,000.00, details of which set out in note 5(17).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(4) PREPAYMENTS

Within 1 year
1-2 years

As at 31 December 2011,

Hang zhou cusfoms
of PRC
Benxi City Juxinda Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Lid.
Siping City Dongda Indusiry
and Trade Co., lid.
Zhejiang Yuantong Auto
Group Co., lid.
GEBR.SAACKR
GMBH & COKG

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
6,104,440.66 96.06 6,635,413.26 95.19
250,511.95 3.94 335,591.50 48]
6,354,952.61 100.00 6,971,004.76 100.00

the five largest prepayments are as follows:

Relationship Prepayment
with the Group Amount  time

Thidpaty  1,770,67142 Wi 1 year
Third party 039,040.00  With 1 year
Third parly 650,901.50  With 1 vear
Third parly 344,600.00 Wi 1 year
Third party 329,595.24  With 1 year

4,034,808.16

Reasons for

outstanding

Tariff margin unsettled

Prepayment for

materials unseftled
Prepayment for processing
charge unseffled
Prepayment for

materials unseftled
Prepayment for

materials unsetled
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(4) PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the five largest prepayments are as follows:

Relationship Prepayment  Reasons for
with the Group Amount  time outstanding

Yuhuan Shengda Third party 729,815.55  With 1 year  Prepayment for
Automobile & materials unsefiled
Motorcycle Parts
Industrial Co., lid.

Jianrong Precision Third party 553,244.00  With 1 year  Prepayment for
Machinery [Shanghai) materials unsetiled
Co., ld.

Shanghai Beite Metal Third party 501,000.00  With 1 year  Prepayment for
Works Co., ltd. materials unsettled

Jilin Province Ange Trade  Third party 408,685.45  With 1 year  Prepayment for
Co., ld. materials unseftled

Ningbo Jiwang Forging ~ Third party 400,393.29  With 1 year  Prepayment for
Co., ld. materials unseftled

2,593,138.29

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not hold any prepayment for shareholding

units with 5% (inclusive] or more of the voting rights of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(5) OTHER RECEIVABLES

Ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Within 1 year 6,483,059.12 3,526,088.70
1-2 vears 2,473,963.40 162,843.00
2-3 years 130,159.60 49,241.00
Over 3 years 129,184.86 176,067.00
9.216,366.98 3,914,239.70
less: bad debt provision for other receivables — —
9,216,366.98 3,914,239.70
Analysis for other receivables by categories is as follows:
31 December 2011
Carrying balance Bad debt provision
Amout Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
Individually significant balance 5,864,256.76 63.63 —
Individually insignificant
but significant based
on credif risk characteristics 1,203,307.86 13.06 —
Other insignificant other
receivables 2,148,802.36 23.31 =
9,216,366.98 100.00 —

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

31 Decmber 2010

Carrying balance Bad debt provision

Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)

Individually significant balance 1,635,590.86 41.78 — —
Individually insignificant
but significant based

on credit risk characteristics 388,151.00 0.92 — —
Other insignificant other

receivables 1,890,497 .84 48.30 — —

3,914,239.70 100.00 - -

Individually insignificant but significant based on credit risk characteristics mainly refers to the individually

insignificant receivables with long ageing.
In 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any other receivables written off.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not hold other receivables for shareholding

units with 5% (inclusive] or more of the voting rights of the Company.

In the opinion of the management of the Company, as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, no
evidence implied that other receivables have been impaired, so there is no need to make any impairment

provision.

100 Annual Report 2071 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



. |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December
RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2011

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(3)

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the five largest other receivables are as follows:

Management Commitiee of Siping Tiedong
Economic Development Zone
Among: provisional borrowings

provisional borrowings

Listing expense

Zhang liang

Hang zhou customs of PRC

Ministry of Finance in Tiedong District,

Siping Mu City

Amount

4,430,000.00

900,000.00
3,530,000.00
2,334,256.76

517,058.28

400,000.00

100,000.00

7,781,315.04

Ageing

Within 2 years
Within 1 year
Within 1 year
Within 1 year
Within 1 year
Within 3 years

As at 31 December 2010, the five largest other receivables are as follows:

Huang Dan

Management Commitiee of Siping Tiedong

Economic Development Zone

Tang chunijin
Jia Jianfeng

Zheng Xiaogin

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not have other receivables due from related

parties.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not have other receivables fransferred as

financial assets for derecogpnition.

Amount

1,635,590.86
?00,000.00

357,523.33
203,000.00

100,000.00

3,196,114.19

Ageing

Within 1 year
Within 1 year

Within 1 year
Within 1 year
Within 1 year

Percentage of fotal

other receivables

48.07

9.77

38.30
25.33
5.61
4.34
1.09

84.44

Percentage of fotal

other receivables

41.79
22.99

Q.13
519
2.55

81.65

Annual Report 2011

101



102

- o o e oo
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(6) INVENTORIES

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Raw materials 50,096,519.37 49,476,351.98
Work-in-progress 18,143,413.98 10,424,303.09
Finished goods 54,518,023.83 80,9/8,028.20
Llow-value consumables 969,428.73 262,029.26

123,727,385.91 141,140,712.53
less: Provision for impairment of inventories (1,309,267.99) (3,133,918.69)

122,418,117.92  138,0006,793.84

The analysis of provision for impairment of inventories is as follows:

31 December 2011

At the Provision Decrease during the year At the

beginning of year during the year Reversal Write-off end of year

Raw materials 1,791,952.24 — (948,422.01) — 843,510.23
Finished goods 1,341,966.45 112,300.45 (88,136.14) (900,373.00) 465,757.76
3,133,918.69 112,300.45 (1,036,578.15) (900,373.00) 1,309,267.99
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(6)

(7)

INVENTORIES (continued)

31 December 2010

At the Provision Decrease during the year At the

beginning of year during the year Reversal Wiite-off end of year

Raw materials 1,791,952.24 — — — 1,791,952.24
Finished goods 441 593.45 900,373.00 — — 1,341,966.45
2,233,545.69 900,373.00 — — 3,133,918.69

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group made provision for impairment of inventories,

which is mainly attributable o long ageing and obsolefe inventories.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no inventories as debt guarantees or with

restricted ownership.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Prepaid expenses 1,876,410.23 1,004,992.67

Prepaid expenses are mainly amortization for the moulds purchased and heating expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Defails of the associate of the Group are as follows:

Type of Placeof  Authorized Nature of Registered  Organization
entity registration  representative  business capital  code
Wuhu Sterling Other Limited ~ Wuhu Zhang Shi Quan  Development, manufacture  20,000,000.00  76900919-4
Steering System liability and sale of automobile
Co., lid. company steering systems and related

("Wuhu Sterling”) products, and provision of
after-sale service

The Company previously held 36% of equity of Wuhu Sterling.On 8 April 2011, the Company and Sun Ya
Hong (one of the shareholders of VWuhu Sterling) entered into an equity fransfer agreement, pursuant fo which
Sun Ya Hong agreed to transfer 10% of the equity of Wuhu Sterling to the Company, the total consideration
was RMB4,840,000.00 in cash. Meanwhile, the Company assumed the relevant tax and expenses arising
from equity transfer, amounting fo RMB 569,936.00. Sun Ya Hong transferred the remaining 5% of equity fo
another shareholder of Wuhu Sterling, VWuhu Qirui Technology Co., Lid. Pursuant fo the equity fransfer agreement,
the maior shareholder rights and obligations in relation to the farget equity shall be assumed by the Company
since the date when the Company complete the payment of the equity fransfer proceedings. VWuhu Sterling has
completed the change of industrial and commercial registration. The Company has paid the fransfer consideration
in one fime on 21 November 2011. As af 31 December 2011, the Company held 46% of equity in VWuhu
Sterling.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the summarized financial information of the Group's

associate is as follows:

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Total assets 108,938,265.52 93,464,244 .36
Total liabilities 89,136,450.16 73,376,038.73
Total net assefs 19,801,815.36 20,088,205.63
Revenue 101,993,746.36  100,038,992.09
Net profit/(loss) (286,390.27) 3,183,355.93
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December
RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

2011

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(9)

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, details of longterm equity invesiments in associates are

as follows:

Unlisted investments:

Equity method:

[nvestment cost

Balance at the beginning of the year
Increase/decrease during the year
Balance at the end of the year
Percentage of shareholding
Percentage of voting rights

Impairment provision

Impairment provision made in the year

Cash bonus in the year

In the opinion of the management of the Company, as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, there

was no need fo make impairment provision for the above long-term equity investments.

31 December
2011

12,609,936.00
6,615,273.15
5,081,626.95
11,696,900.10
46%

46%

31 December
2010

/,200,000.00
5,853,270.97
762,002.18
6,615,273.15
36%

36%

In 2011 and 2010, the Group had no longferm equity investments accounted using the cost method.
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) FIXED ASSETS

Cost:
At 31 December 2009
Addltions
Transfer from
consfruction in progress
Addltion due fo acquisition
of a subsidiary
Disposal

At 31 December 2010

Addifions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Disposal

At 31 December 2011

Annual Report 2071

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Office

Buildings and Machinery and Motor equipment
structures equipment vehicles and others Totol
104,363,477.09 172,686,266 81 15,712,389.72 4,476,089.02  297,238,222.64
2,652,890.31 9.411,928.57 1,714,733.00 1,202,086.00  14981,63/.88
26,214,898.00  55,9680,279.33 74361501 391,776.98  83,330,569.32
- - — 292,488.00 292,488.00
- (4,071,129.98)  (1,034,528.00] [642,971.00]  [5,748,628.98)
133,231,265.40  234,007,34473  17,136,209.73 5719,469.00 390,004,288 .86
264,049.00 5,728,560.97 1,619,154.06 1475713.73 9,087,477.76
1122457100 24,990,520.07 1,302,412.58 431992.32  27.949,.495.97
- (1,818,001.306) (314,587.00] - 2,132,588.36)
134,719,885.40  262,908,424.41 19.743,189.37 702717505 424,998 674.23
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Office
Buildings and Plant and Transportation equipment
sfructures equipment vehicles and others Tofol
Less: accumuloted
depreciation:
At 31 December 2009 1875221175 59,521,531.95 8,076,180.40 3,548,462.56  89,898,386.66
Provision 3,155,998.52  17,024,694.40 1,360,772.40 1,260,572.84  22,801,638.16
Addltion due fo acquisifion
of a subsidiary — — — 228,946.00 228,946.00
Disposal - (3,807,282.82) (/28,043.04] [600,570.56]  (5,135,896.42)

At 31 December 2010 2190781027 72,738,943.53 8,708,900.76 4,437,410.84  107,793,074.40

Provision 3,007.994.60  21,604,389.84 1,276,400.98 1,837,567 51 28,386,352.93
Disposal — (1,230,789.49) (254,183.66) - (1,484,973.15]
At 31 December 2011 25,515,804.87  93,172543.88 9,731,127.08 6,274978.35  134,694,454.18
Book value:

A 31 December 2010 111,323,455.13  161,268,401.20 8,427,299.97 1,282,058.16  282,301,214.46
At 31 December 2011 109,204,080.53  169,735,880.53  10,012,062.29 1,352,196.70  290,304,220.05

The management of the Company believes that there is no need to make impairment provisions for the aforesaid
fixed assets as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no fixed assets with restricted ownership,
no fixed assets which were temporarily idle, no fixed assets for lease financing, no fixed assefs for operating

lease, and no fixed assets held for sale.

On 31 December 2011, the original value of fixed assets that had been fully depreciated but still in use was
RMB32,066,706.86 (31 December 2010: RMB26,396,281.40)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) FIXED ASSETS (continued)

On 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the fixed assefs that had not obtained ownership certificates

were as follows:

Reasons for not yet obtaining

Project ownership certificates

Main workshop of Hangzhou New Obtaining ownership cetificates
Shibao Electric Power Steering is in progress
Co., ld.

Building complex and plants of Jilin Obitaining ownership cefificates
Shibao Machinery Manufacturing is in progress
Co., ld.

As at 31 December 2011, the carrying value of the fixed assets that had not obtained ownership certificates

amounted to RMB29,361,219.05 (31 December 2010: RMB30,164,883.83).

(17) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Buildings 38,492,326.82 4,424,372 96

Machinery equipment 101,223,194.97 /.872,694.85
Transportation equipment 86,664.27
Other equipment 1,174,228.75

140,976,414.81 12,297,067.81

Impairment provision for construction in progress — —

140,976,414.81 12,297,067.81

In the opinion of the management of the Company, as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, there

was no need to make impairment provision for the above construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

In 2011

Capacity expansion project
of Siping Steering

Capacity expansion project
of Hangzhou New Shibao

Capacity expansion project
of Hangzhou Shibao

Jlin precision casfing,
processing and

consfruction project

Balance ot Transferred from Balance
the beginning Increase fixed assets attheend  Fund
of the year in the year in the year ofthe year  resources
251598.81 20,224,318.37 (205128.20)  20,270,788.98  Self-owned funds
990,014.80 22,267,297 .62 (7,648,239378)  15,608918.64  Self-owned funds
7,460,191.20 7533232369 (20,071,97399)  62,720,540.90  Self-owned funds
3,595,263.00 38,804,903.29 (24000.00)  42,376,166.29  Sell-owned funds
12,297,067.81  156,628,842.97  (27,949,495.97)  140,976,414.81

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(11) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

In 2010

Capacity expansion project
of Siping Steering

Capacity expansion project
of Hangzhou New Shibao

Capacity expansion project
of Hangzhou Shibao

Jlin precision casfing,
processing and

consfruction project

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Balance Transferred from Balance

af the beginning Increase fixed asses at the end
of the year in the year in the year of the year
1,124,998 81 251,600.00  {1,125,000.00} 251,598.81
611,344.80 378,670.00 — 990,014.80
8,388,870.36  31,366,/75.16  (32,295454.32)  7,460,191.20
33,168,196.00 337,182.00  [49.910,115.00)  3,595,263.00
63,293,409.97  32,334,227.16  (83,330,569.32] 12,297,067 81

Fund

resources

Selfowned funds

SelFowned funds

Selfowned funds

Selfowned funds

In 2011 and 2010, there was no capitalization interest attributed to the Group's construction in progress.

The Group had no consfruction in progress used as pledges and guarantees.
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31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT

STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
As at 31 December 2009
Addition
Addltion due fo acquisition
of a subsidiary
Addltion by investment
of minority shoreholders

of a subsidiary
As at 31 December 2010

As at 31 December 2011

less: accumulated

amortization
As at 31 December 2009

Amortization

As at 31 December 2010

Amortization
As at 31 December 2011

Book value:

As ot 31 December 2010

As at 31 December 2011

R e e e
EMENTS (continued)

Patented Non-patented
Land use right technology Software technology Tofol
30,204,436.50 - 450,550.00 —  30,654,980.50
27 447 042 .50 - - — 2744704250
- 1,281,666.67 - 7,963,095.33 9,244,762.00
- - — 18,000,000.00  18,000,000.00
57,651,479.00 1,281,606.67 45055000 2596309533  85,346,791.00
57,651,479.00 1,281,606.67 450,550.00 2596309533  85,346,791.00
4,952,908.00 - 196,871.69 - 5,149,779.69
1,287,448.25 21,361.11 90,110.31 157,108.62 1,556,028.29
6,240,356.25 21,361.11 286,982.00 157,108.62 6,705,807.98
1,340,572.42 128,166.62 76,702.90 2,742,653.38 4,288,095.32
7.580,928.67 149,527 73 363,684.90 2,899,76200  10,993,903.30
S1A11122.75 1,260,305.56 163,568.00 2580598671  78,040,983.02
50,070,550.33 1,132,138.94 80,805.10 2306333333  74,352,88770

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The leased land is located in Mainland China, and is held under a medium ferm lease.

The management of the Company believes that there is no need to make impairment provisions for the aforesaid
infangible assefs as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no infangible assets with restricted ownership

or formed through internal research and development.

The original values of the patented technology, the EPS controller of Beijing Autonic, was RMB1,281,666.67,
with its patent number of ZL200630098869.0.This patent fakes the evaluation report no. Zhe Tian Hui Evaluation
report [2011] 2 offered by Zhejiang Tian Hui Asset Evaluation Company as a reference basis. The value

defermined affer negotiation was recognized as the entry value of the intangible assets.
Details of the non-patented technology with original values totalling RMB25,963,095.33 are as follows:

Carrying value
31 December

Name of the non-patented technology Original values 2011
EPS control software copyright (nofe1) 2,990,555.56 2,641,657 .41
Test plateform of the EPS controller (nofe 1) 2,136,111.10 1,886,898.14
EPS controller (note 1) 1,281,666.67 1,132,138.89
EPS electronic control units [note 1) 1,554,762.00 1,202,638.89
Propriefary technology for the EPS controller {note 2) 18,000,000.00 16,200,000.00
Total 25,963,095.33 23,063,333.33
Notes:

(1) The four non-patented technologies are owned by Beijing Autonic, taking the evaluation report no. Zhe Tian Hui Evaluation
report [2011]2 offered by Zhejiang Tian Hui Asset Evaluation Company as a reference basis. The value defermined after

negotiation was recognized as the enfry value of the intangible assefs.

(2] The proprietary fechnology for the eleciric power sfeering system amounts to RMB18,000,000.00 with which (valued af
RMB18,000,000.00) the natural person Wang Chao Jiv became a shareholder of Hang Zhou New Shibao, and held
its 30% of shares. This non-patented technology takes the evaluation report no. Zhe Tian Hui Evaluation report [2010] no.
20 offered by Zhejiang Tian Hui Asset Evaluation Company as a reference basis. The value determined affer negotiation

was recognized as the entry value of the infangible assefs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(13) GOODWILL

As ot 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010,the goodwill was nil. In 2010, the Company incurred

goodwill of RMB178,027.50 because of the business combination under the common control. The management

of the Company considered that the amount is insignificant, so it was written off in the year.

(14) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are not stated at the net amount affer offset:

Recognized deferred fax assets and liabilifies:

Deferred tax assets

Bad debt provision

Provision for decline in price of inventories
Warranty fee

Deductible loss

Other

Deferred tax liabilities

Ajustment to fair value of the business combination

not under the common control

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
382,513.34 392,349.40
207,620.18 526,326.05
934,931.62 1,344,827.59

= 1,289,232.00
= 143,845.93
1,525,065.14 3,696,580.97

31 December
2011

1,698,208.33

31 December
2010

1,890,458.33

Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(14) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The deductible loss of the unrecognized deferred tax assets will expire in the following years:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

2015 6,378,868.81 6,378,868.81
2016 25,710,278.19 —

32,089,147.00 6,378,868.81

The temporary differences corresponding fo the asset or liability items giving rise to the temporary differences

are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Taxable temporary differences
Ajustment to fair value of the business combination
not under the common control 6,792,833.32 7.561,833.32
Deductible temporary differences
Bad debt provision 2,290,074.23 2,379,833.69
Provision for decline in price of inventories 1,309,267.99 3,133,918.69
Warranty fee 6,232,877 .44 8,965 517.27
Deductible loss — 5,156,928.00
Other — 780,793.00
9,832,219.66 20,416,990.65

(15) OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other non-current assets are prepayments for purchasing fixed assefs and land.

Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

16. PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

31 December 2011

Balance af
the beginning Provision Decrease in the year Balance ot the
of the year during the year Reversal Write-off end of the year
Bad debt
provision 2,379,833.69 105,350.44 (195,109.90) - 2,290,074.23
Provision for
decline in price
of invenfories 3,133,918.69 112,300.45 (1,036,578.15) (900,373.00) 1,309,267.99
Goodwil 178,027.50 = = (178,027.50) =
5,691,779.88 217,650.89 (1,231,688.05) (1,078,400.50) 3,599,342.22
31 December 2010
Bolonce af
the beginning Provision Decrease in the year Balance at the
of the year during the year Reversal Wiite-off end of the year
Bad debt
provision 4,981,002.69 161,731.00 2,762,660.00] [240.00) 2,379,833.69
Provision for
decline in price
of invenfories 2,233,545.69 900,373.00 - - 3,133,918.69
Goodwil - 178,027.50 - - 178,027.50
7,214,548.38 1,240,131.50 (2,762,660.00] (240.00) 5,691,779.88

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(17) SHORT-TERM LOANS

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Guaranteed loans 60,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Secured loans 25,000,000.00 —
Pledged loans 4,079,832.00 —
Credit loans 25,000,000.00 —

114,079,832.00 30,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2011, interest rates for the above loans were between 5.85% to 8.50% per annum (31
December 2011: 5.31%)

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited obtained a loan of RMB5,000,000.00 from the Xia Sha branch of Industrial
Bank Co.,lid. on 19 April 2011, for a term of 12 months, expiring on 18 April 2012, the annual interest rate
of which was the national benchmark inferest rate of the same grade af the same time. The loan was guaranteed
by Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., ltd. and Zhang Shi Quan. The Company obtained a loan of
RMB30,000,000.00 from the Yi Wu branch of ICBC on 9 October 2011, for a term of 12 months, expiring
on 20 September 2012, the annual interest rate of which was 1% higher than the national benchmark interest
rate of the same grade af the same time, floating every three months. The loan was secured by the accounts
receivable of Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited, which applied domestic factoring of recourse rights with the
Yi Wu branch of ICBC and repaied RMB5,000,000.00 on 15 November 201 1. The Company obtained a
credit loan of RMB25,000,000.00 from the Yi Wu branch of ICBC on 16 November 2011, for a term of 12
months, expiring on 14 November 2012, the annual inferest rate of which was 1% higher than the national
benchmark inferest rate of the same grade af the same time, floating every three months. Hangzhou Shibao Auto
Steering Gear Co., Lid. obfained a loan of RMB25,000,000.00 from the Xia Sha branch of Industrial Bank
Co. lid. on 18 April 2011, for a term of 12 months, expiring on 17 April 2012, the annual inferest rate of which
was the national benchmark interest rate of the same grade af the same time. The loan was guaranteed by
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., ltd. and Zhang Shi Quan. The Company obtained a loan of
RMB30,000,000.00 from the Hang Zhou branch of Industrial Bank Co., lid. on 5 September 2011 for a term
of 12 months, expiring on 4 September 2012, the annual interest rafe of which was the national benchmark
interest rafe of the same grade at the same time. The loan was guaranteed by Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group
Co., lid. and Zhang Shi Quan. Jilin Shibao Machinery Manufacturing Co., ltd. transferred banker's acceptances
amouting fo RMB4,079,832.00 to the Jilin branch of China Construction Bank for discount at the discount rafe
of 8.50%. The expiry date of the banker's acceptances was 17 February 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(17) SHORT-TERM LOANS (continued)

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited obtained a loan of RMB5,000,000.00 from the Hang Zhou branch of
Industrial Bank Co.,lid. on 3 June 2010, for a term of 11 months, expiring on 18 April 2011, the annual interest
rate of which was the national benchmark interest rate of the same grade ot the same time. The loan was
guaranteed by Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. and Zhang Shi Quan. Hangzhou Shibao Auto Steering
Gear Co., lid. obtained a loan of RMB10,000,000.00 from the Hang Zhou branch of Industrial Bank Co., Lid.
on 12 May 2010, for a term of 11 months, expiring on 15 April 2011, the annual interest rate of which was

the national benchmark inferest rate of the same grade at the same time. The loan was guaranteed by Zhejiang

Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. and Zhang Shi Quan.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no shorterm loans which were past due

but remained unpaid.

(18) NOTES PAYABLE

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, all notes payable of the Group were banker's accepfances.
Notes payable were non-interestbearing and were normally settled on terms of six months o one year.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December2010, all notes payable of the Group would be due in the next

accounting year.

(19) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Within 1 year 158,573,598.72 112,449 747 54
1-2 years 3,781,087.89 6,096,755.33
2-3 years 931,376.11 238,0609.29
Over 3 years 1,833,773.68 662,639.43

165,119,836.40  119,44/,751.59

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no amounts payable to the shareholders

or related parties holding 5% (inclusive) or more of the voting rights of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (. continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(19) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

2o e ol

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no significant balance of accounts payable which was aged over

one year.

Significant balance of accounts payable which was aged over one year as at 31 December 2010 is set forth

below:
Company Amount payable
Yangzhong Municipal Huari Plasfic 1,195,009.17

Electrical Apparatus Plant
(BRmEREBESR)

Reason

Not seffled
by supplier

The above significant balance of accounts payable which was aged over one year was fully repaid affer the

balance sheet date.

(20) ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS

31 December

31 December

2011 2010

Within 1 year 1,151,145.72 313,174.23
1 to 2 years 1,084,117.11 790,977.03
2,235,262.83 1,104,151.26

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, there were no receipts in advance due from shareholders

or other related parties holding 5% (inclusive] or more of the voting rights of the Company. There was no significant

balance of receipts in advance which was aged over one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(21) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies
Staff welfare
Social insurances
Including:
Medical insurance
Basic pension insurance
Unemployment insurance
Work injury insurance
Maternity insurance
Housing funds
Labour union funds and

employee education funds

Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies
Staff welfare
Social insurances
Including:
Medical insurance
Basic pension insurance
Unemployment insurance
Work injury insurance
Maternity insurance
Labour union funds and

employee education funds

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

[ January Increase Decrease 31 December
2011 duringthe year  during the year 2011
7,150,052.93  47,059,337.61 51,101,592.47 3,107,798.07
— 4,528,677.34 4,528,677.34 —
780,793.45 7,150,655.83 7,931,449.28 —
286,399.94 2,343,718.38 2,630,118.32 —
389,434.05 4,148,052.41 4,537 486.46 —
58,982.67 226,490.01 285,472.68 —
22,383.72 58,627.12 81,010.84 —
23,593.07 127,805.91 151,398.98 —

= 245,962.00 245,962.00 —
807,061.97 158,420.11 548,525.64 416,956.44
8,737,908.35  58,897,090.89  64,110,244.73 3,624,754.51
| January Increase Decrease 31 December
2010 during the year during the year 2010
4,112,206.84  40,072,127.97  37,034,281.88 7,150,052.93
195,833.90 3,384,837.20 3,580,671.10 —
780,793.45  4,802,928.72  4,802,928.72 780,793.45
230,205.54 1,291,645.16 1,235,450.76 286,399.94
445,628.45 2,.927,514.75 2,983,709.15 389,434.05
58,982.67 323,817.30 323,817.30 58,982.67
22,383.72 156,856.82 156,856.82 22,383.72
23,593.07 103,094.69 103,094.69 23,593.07
Q11,183.62 479,865.33 583,986.98 807,061.97
6,000,017.81  48,739,759.22  46,001,868.68 8,737,908.35
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(21) EMPLOYEE BENEFITES PAYABLE (continued)

As ot 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no balance in arrears.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, all employee benefits cost payable would be sefiled in

the next accounting period.

(22) TAXES PAYABLE

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Value added tax (10,749,453.17) (4,807,265.75)

Corporate income fax 14,861,666.55 17,324,715.42

Business tax 22,442.75 101,227.00
Urban maintenance and

Construction tax 724,104.59 105,017.76

Individual income tax 89,674.08 141,045.00

Others 794,602.36 93,923.25

5,743,037.16 12,958,662.68

The basis of taxes payable and the fax rates are disclosed in Nofe 3.

(23) INTERESTS PAYABLE

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Interest of longferm borrowings 1,160,633.33 1,110,158.00
Interest of shortterm borrowings 205,838.43 57,571.19

1,366,471.76 1,167,729.19

Interest of long-term borrowings refers to the loan interest attached to the special funds for treasury bonds on key

technological improvement projects of the State granted by the Minisiry of Finance in Siping.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(24) OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Deposits 95,050.00 96,050.00
Merger and reorganization costs = 2,336,740.11
Labour service company management fees 680.13 216,8628.14
Taxes 569,936.00 —
Others 286,122.04 1,071,932.99

951,788.17 3,721,551.24

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no amounts payable to the shareholders

or other related parties holding 5% (inclusive) or more of the voting rights of the Company.

As at 31 December 2011, there was no significant balance of other payables which was aged over one year.
Significant balance of other payable which was aged over one year as at 31 December 2010 is set forth below:
Type Amounts payable  Reason for non-repayment

Merger and reorganization costs 2,336,740.11 Unpaid merger

and reorganization costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(25) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

Long-term borrowings due within
one year-guaranteed loans 13,000,000.00 5,000,000.00

Jilin Shibao Machinery Manufacturing Co., Lid. obtained a loan of RMB20,000,000.00 from the Siping Branch
of China Construction Bank, the annual interest rate of which was 5.96% to 6.90% , and it was secured by
Siping Steering Gear Co., Lid. Among such amount, RMBS5,000,000.00 was due and repaid on 30 November
2011, RMB13,000,000.00 will be due for repayment on 30 November 2012, and the remaining
RMB2,000,000.00 will be due for repayment on 30 November 2013.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no amounts which were past due but were

granted with extensions among the longterm borrowings due within one year.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no longterm borrowings which were past

due but remained unpaid.

(26) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Deferred income 2,592,960.39 433,313.00
Accrued expenses 8,060,419.17 10,211,536.00

10,653,379.56 10,644,849.00

Deferred income was the govemment grants related to assets which would be recognized as income in the next
year, including the subsidies granted by the National Development and Reform Commission ["NDRC") in respect
of the precious casfing and processing of automotive components project, the special subsidies granted by NDRC
fo support the development of the Group's steering knuckle assembly project for sedans and the subsidies granted
by the Management Committee of the Tiedong Economic Development Zone in Siping in respect of the precious

casting and processing of automotive components project.

Accrued expenses mainly include warranty fee and accrued auditing costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December
RMB Yuan

2011

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(27) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Special fund for a freasury bond

Special fund for a treasury bond

China Construction Bank
China Construction Bank

China Construction Bank

Administrative commitiee of

Tiedong Economic
Development Zone

of Siping

Tofal

Special fund for @ freasury bond

Special fund for a freasury bond

China Construction Bank

China Construction Bank

Total

Currency Amount
RMB 2,830,000.00
RMB 1,390,400.00
RMB 2,000,000.00
RMB  11,000,000.00
RMB  4,000,000.00
RMB 8,800,000.00

30,020,400.00
Currency Amount
RMB 2,830,000.00
RMB 2,260,000.00
RMB13,000,000.00
RMB2,000,000.00

20,090,000.00

31 December 2011

Conditions

Credit borrowings
Credit borrowings
Guranteed borrowings
Guranteed borrowings

Guranteed borrowings

Other borrowings

31 December 2010

Conditions

Other borrowings
Other borrowings
Guranteed borrowings

Guranteed borrowings

Interest rate

5.00%
5.00%
6.90%
8.28%
8.28%

Not yet

contracted

Inferest rate

5.00%
5.00%
5.96%
5.96%

Maturity date

31 Dec. 2020
31 Dec. 2016
30 Nov. 2013
30 Nov. 2013
30 Nov. 2014

1 Dec. 2014

Maturity date

31 Dec. 2020
31 Dec. 2016
30 Nov. 2012
30 Nov. 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(27) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)
The analysis of long-term borrowings by their maturity date is as follows:
31 December 2011 31 December 2010

longterm borrowings:

Due within 1 year or payable on demand 13,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
Due within 2 vears 13,000,000.00 13,000,000.00
Due within 3 to 5 years, inclusive 14,190,400.00 2,000,000.00
Over 5 vyears 2,830,000.00 5,090,000.00

43,020,400.00 25,090,000.00

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had no longerm borrowings which were past

due but remained unpaid.

Special funds for freasury bonds refer to the loans under the special funds for freasury bonds on the key projects
of technological fransformation of the State granted by the Siping Municipal Bureau of Finance. The borrowings
from the Management Commitiee of the Tiedong Economic Development Zone in Siping refer fo the capital loan

for Jilin Shibao to expand production.

(28) OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
Government grants related to assets 26,202,378.62 4,748,573.33

Other non-current liabilities were government grants related to assefs, including the subsidies granted by NDRC
in respect of the precious casfing and processing of automotive components project, the special subsidies granted
by NDRC fo support the development of the Group's steering knuckle assembly project for sedans and the
subsidies granted by the Management Commitiee of the Tiedong Economic Development Zone in Siping in

respect of the precious casting and processing of aufomotive components project.

124 Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



31 December 201 1
RMB Yuan

NOTES TO THE FI

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(29) SHARE CAPITAL

Unlisted shares
Promoter’s shares
Including:
Shares held by domestic legal persons

Shares held by domestic natural persons
Total unlisted shares

Listed shares

Overseas listed foreign shares
Total listed shares

Total of shares

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011

and
31 December 2010

No. of shares Percentage
175,943,855.00 66.99%
165,387,223.00 62.97%
10,556,632.00 4.02%
175,943,855.00 06.99%
86,714,000.00 33.01%
86,714,000.00 33.01%
262,657,855.00 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

s T Y |

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(30) CAPITAL RESERVE

Share premium

Other capital reserve

Share premium

Other capital reserve

Annual Report 2011

Amount at Amount at

31 December Increase Decrease 31 December
2010 duringtheyear  during the year 2011
21,143,008.19 — 21,143,008.19
6,357,764.40 86,624.64 — 6,444,389.04
27,500,772.59 86,624.64 — 27,587,397.23
Amount af Amount af

31 December Increase Decrease 31 December
2009 during the year during the year 2010
21,143,008.19 — —  21,143,008.19
5,736,148.00 621,616.40 — 6,357,764.40
26,879,156.19 621,616.40 — 27.500,772.59
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(31) SURPLUS RESERVE

31 December Increase Decrease 31 December

2010 during the year ~ during the year 2011

Statutory surplus reserve 84,961,353.85 10,126,187.67 — 95,087,541.52
31 December Increase Decrease 31 December

2009 during the year during the year 2010

Statutory surplus reserve 69,233,445.61 15,727 908.24 —  84,961,353.85

Pursuant to PRC Company Law and the Company's Articles of Association, the Company is required fo
appropriate 10% of ifs net profit fo the sfatufory surplus reserve. The appropriation may cease if the balance of

the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Company's registered capital.

(32) RETAINED EARNINGS

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

Refained earnings at the beginning of the year 176,929,012.57  107,639,921.00
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 112,872,143.11  103,403,049.81
less: transfer fo statutory reserve funds 10,126,187.67 15,727,908.24
Cash dividends payable (Note) 23,639,206.95 18,386,050.00
Retained eamings af the end of the year 256,035,761.06  176,929,012.57

Note: cash dividends for the previous year were approved at the 2010 and 2011 general meetings.

Pursuant fo the resolution of the board of the Company dated 18 March 2010, a cash dividend of RMB0.07
per share based on 262,657,855 shares in total with a nominal value of RMB1 each was paid to all

shareholders, which was approved and passed at the 2010 general meeting.

Pursuant fo the resolution of the board of the Company dated 18 March 2011, a cash dividend of RMBO.09
per share based on 262,657,855 shares in total with a nominal value of RMB1 each was paid to all

shareholders, which was approved and passed at the 2011 general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(32) RETAINED EARNINGS (continued)

Pursuant fo the resolutions of the Company's first exiraordinary general meefing and class meefings on 20 June
2011, the refained eamings upon the issuance of A Shares of the Company will be shared by all shareholders
of the Company (including new A shareholders, existing domestic shareholders and H shareholders) after the
complefion of the A Share issue; for the avoidance of doubt, new A shareholders are not entifled to any dividend

declared prior to the A Share issue.

(33) MINORITY INTERESTS

The balance of minority inferests of subsidiaries of the Company is as follows:

128

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
Siping Steering 3,250,000.00 3,250,000.00
Hangzhou Shibao — 1,282,101.24
Beijing Autonic 2,246,301.85 2,816,589.36
Hangzhou New Shibao 15,120,001.88 17.378,383.60
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(34) REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

Revenue, also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced value of goods sold less goods refumed and

trade discounts.

Revenue is as follows:

Revenue from principle operations

Other revenue

Costs are as follows:

Costs from principle operations
Other costs

The above operating costs include depreciation and amortization expenses amounting to RMB24,469,015.93

(2010: RMB19,522,033.60).

Principal operations by products are as follows:

Power recirculating ball steering
gears and its components
Steering knuckles
Power rack-and-pinion
steering gears
Manual recirculating
ball steering gears

Spare parts and others

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

2011

623,423,137.12

2010

545,344,703.15

2,493,982.09 599,223.37
625917,119.21  545,943,926.52
2011 2010
403,659,490.72  349,794,180.37
227,627.68 100,000.00
403,887,118.40  349,894,180.3/

2011 2010

Revenue Costs Revenue Costs
262,191,095.26  178,956,835.39 256,216,512.28 174,848,058.51
134,406,458.54 80,868,082.74 140,879,658.16  74,876,530.57
151,018,295.02 94,618,115.69  86,303,617.47  58,474,075.02
10,691,736.74 9.205,886.64  13,364,800.48  11,551,244.01
65,115,551.56 40,010,570.26  48,580,114.76  30,044,272.26
623,423,137.12  403,659,490.72 545,344,703.15 349,794,180.37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(34) REVENUE AND COSTS (continued)

Revenue from the five largest customers in 2011 was as follows:

Proportion fo

Amount revenue (%)

FAW Car Co., ltd. 164,808,106.24 26.33
Dintech Infernational Corp., Lid. 89,684,497 42 14.33
FAW Jiefang Qingdao Auto Co., Lid. 77,091,795.97 12.32
Anhui Jianghuai Automobile Co., Lid. 66,831,791.48 10.68
Wuhu Sterling Co., lid. (Mt EIRERAR]) 36,750,390.25 587
435,166,581.36 69.53

Revenue from the five largest customers in 2010 was as follows:

Proportion to

Amount revenue (%)

FAW Car Co., ltd. 177,436,509.47 32.50
FAW Jiefang Qingdao Auto Co., Lid. 86,794,831.73 15.90
Anhui Jianghuai Automobile Co., lid. 52,363,271.97 9.59
Wuhu Sterling Co., ltd. (Bt FinBRAR]) 27,573,702.91 5.05
Dintech Infernational Corp., Lid. 21,504,091 .45 3.96
365,763,307.53 67.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(35)

(36)

SALES TAXES AND SURCHARGES
2011 2010
City construction and maintenance tax 3,017,590.34 898,678.19
Education surcharges 2,086,430.85 650,994.33
Others 52,863.43 49,389.17
5,156,884.62 1,599,061.69

For the standards of calculation and payment of sales taxes and surcharges, please refer to Note 3.

SELLING EXPENSES

2011 2010
Transporfation cost 13,302,721.96 13,116,042.03
Wages, welfare and bonuses 6,704,375.05 7.266,545.13
Warranty fee 7,842,173.66 10,066,805.46
Travelling expenses 3,167,263.24 2,894,270.09
Enfertainment charge 1,906,139.46 1,773,608.62
Depreciation of fixed assefs 361,038.43 5,480.10
Others 2,597,827.23 2,385,619.15

35,881,539.03 37,508,370.58
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(37) GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Wages, welfare and bonuses

Including:basic pension insurance
Medical insurance
Unemployment insurance
Work injury insurance
Maternity insurance

R&D expenses

Office cost

Professional service fee

Depreciation of fixed assefs

Amortization of infangible assets

Other taxation

Travelling expenses

Enfertainment charge

Others

2011 2010
15,874,276.14 14,288,273.34
4,148,052.41 2,927,514.75
2,343,718.38 1,291,645.16
226,490.01 323,817.30
58,627.12 156,856.82
127,805.91 103,094.69
14,678,574.46 12,329,396.46
4,254,776.26 4,303,514.95
2,943,977.12 2,243,065.86
3,801,084.97 3,694,100.84
4,043,308.92 1,136,051.91
3,280,687.13 2,485,400.23
1,571,936.46 1,467,182.27
955,116.36 602,338.52
3,149,441.78 1,328,176.99
54,553,179.60 43,877,501.37

The above general and administrative expenses include auditors” remuneration amounting to RMB1,200,000.00

(2010: RMBT,200,000.00).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 201 1
RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(38) FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Inferest expense

Including:inferests of other loans fully repayable

within 5 years
interests of other loans not fully

repayable within 5 years

less: interest income

Others

(39) PROVISION FOR ASSET IMPAIRMENT

Reversal of provision for bad debts

Provision/[reversal of provision) for impairment of inventories

Provision on impairment of goodwill

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

2011 2010
6,727,724.17 1,240,759.87
6,586,224.17 086,259.87

141,500.00 254,500.00
880,761.72 791,368.76
(152,068.77) 66,615.76
5,694,893.68 516,006.87
2011 2010
(89,759.46) (2,600,929.00)
(924,277.70) 900,373.00
= 178,027.50
(1,014,037.16) (1,522,528.50)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(40) INVESTMENT GAINS

2011 2010
Unlisted investments:
Investment gains / (losses) from long-term equity
investments under equity method of accounting (127,683.62) (1,146,008.13)
Including: Investment gains / (losses) from associates (127,683.62) (1,146,008.13)

In 2011 and 2010, the Group had no investment income from long-term equity invesiments under the cost method

of accounting.

In 2011 and 2010, none of the Group's investment losses from longterm equity investments under the equity

method of accounting accounted for more than 5% of the total investment.

(41) NON-OPERATING INCOME

2011 2010
Gains from disposal of fixed assets 5,641.63 231,178.59
Government grants 5,195,677.72 3,637,306.95
Others 204,730.67 601,331.44

5,406,050.02 4,469,816.98
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December
RMB Yuan

2011

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(41)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (continued)

Government grants recognized in profit or loss during the period were as follows:

Steering knuckle system for sedans

Subsidies for the precious casting and processing
of automotive components project

Subsidies for investment plan for adjustment and
improvement project for fradifional industry bases
including the Northeast Area within National Budget

Financial subsidy for economic compensation of
the fermination of employment relationship with
employees by enferprise

Patent subsidies from Science and Technology
Bureau of Jilin Province

Famous Brand awards given by Technical Supervision
Bureau of Jilin Province

R&D center of high-new technology

Patent subsidies

Science and technology awards from Hangzhou
Economic and Technological Development Zone

First batch of specific funds for auto indusiry
development in 2010

Employment subsidies for university students

Economic policy rewards

Subsidy for enferprise fraining base fo
university students in 2009

Subsidy for employment of fresh graduates
in development zone in 2009

Advanced collective amount for job attachment
and fraining to university students

Inferest subsidy on imported products

Provincial specific funds for auto industry
development in 2009

Subsidy for listing

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

2)

(3]

(4)
5]
(6]
7]
(8)
()
(10
(1)
(12)

(13)

2011 2010
173,313.00 1,370,341.00
40,734.32 216,6060.67
1,072,500.00 —
3,448,130.40 —
5,000.00 —
50,000.00 —

= 200,000.00

6,000.00 11,000.00
400,000.00 —
= 700,000.00

— 31,185.28

= 445,700.00

= 23,414.00

= 2,000.00

= 6,000.00

= 131,000.00

= 400,000.00

= 100,000.00
5,195,677.72 3,637,300.95
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(41) NON-OPERATING INCOME (continued)

(1) Pursuant fo "Forward of Notice on First Batch of Specific Fund (Treasury Bond| Investment Plan for Adjustment

and Improvement Project for Traditional Industry Bases Including the Northeast Area within National Budget
lssued by NDRC in 2004" ((BEERERENEEMPN TiF 2004 FRILHE F2 T E R FHEL
EEHE-MBEREEAZRE S (BE) REFEHBA)) (i Fa Gai Tou Zi Zi [2004] No. 801)
issued by the Deve\opmenf and Reform Commission of Jilin Province on @ November 2004, Siping Steering
received subsidies for ifs steering knuckle project for sedans of RMB5,670,000.00 on 28 December
2004. Revenues of RMB173,313.00 and RMB1,370,341.00 were recognized in 2011 and 2010

respectively.

(2)  Pursuant to "Description of Subsidy Funds for the Precious Casting and Processing of Automotive
Components Project” ({BR A B ZEHET HM M INTEHRTE B A E S HIRA) )issued by Siping
Tiedong Economic and Technology Development Zone Management Committee, Jilin Shibao received
subsidies for the precious casting and processing of automotive components project of RMB2,000,000.00
and RMB3,225,240.00 on 1 February 2009 and 24 December 2009 respectively, totaling
RMB5,225,240.00. Revenues of RMB40,734.32 and RMB216,666.67 were recognized in 2011 and
2010 respectively.

(3)  Pursuant to “Reply of the Office of NDRC on Investment Project for Adjustment and Improvement for
Traditional Industry Bases Including the Northeast Area within National Budget in 2010"  ((BIZ % /&
BEZMRARBARRILTZ TREMAELCE 2010 FHREENIREBEBE MEK)) issved by
NDRC (Fa Gai Ban Chan Ye [2010] No.2684 ), Jilin Shibao received subsidies for the precious casting
and processing of aufomotive components project of RMB24,900,000.00 in fotal on 27 April 2011
8 June 2011, 11 August 2011 and 31 December 2011 respectively. Revenues of RMBT,072,500.00

were recognized in 2011

(4] Pursuant to “Issues on the Reform Pilot Scheme Relafing fo Large Collective Enferprises Including Siping
City No.3 Steel Sling Factory” (R EF I = SMBME M AR B XN EARNEBRRE))
, meeting minutes for the special fopic of Siping people’s government office dated 9 December 2010,
Zhejiang Shibao received a financial subsidy for the economic compensation of the termination of

employment relationship with employees of RMB3,448,130.40 on 21 January 2011

(5] Pursuant fo “Notice on Event Fund Relafing to Patent Development Fund of Jilin Province for 2010 ({#
RTE20105FE <EMEBNNERES > AR K EMNBA)) issued by the Science and Technology
Bureau of Jilin Province on 10 February 2011, Siping Steering received patent subsidies of RMB5,000.00

18 March 2011

136 Annual Report 2011 Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(41) NON-OPERATING INCOME (continued)

(6)  Pursuant to “Decision on Rewarding Manufacturers with Famous Brand Products in Jilin Province in 2010
by Jilin Province Famous Brand Products Promotion Commission” (& #1& % i E it L B @ R &
2010 FEMERIBEMEELFERIRTE)) issued by the Jilin Province Famous Brand Products
Promotion Commission on 20 December 2010, Siping Steering received Famous Brand awards of

RMB50,000.00 on 11 May 2011.

(7] Pursuant to "Hangzhou Science and Technology Development Plan Project Contract” (A BH% %
EETEIIER ARE)) (Plan No. 20082631P09 ) between the Company and the Hangzhou Science
and Technology Bureau, Hangzhou Shibao received subsidies of RMB200,000.00 for its R&D center

of high-new technology on 31 December 2010.

(8] Pursuant to "Hangzhou Patent Special Funds Management Approach” ({H)ih EF|FIBE & & i
/% ))issued by the Science and Technology Bureau and Finance Bureau of Hangzhou on 20 June 2009,
Hangzhou Shibao received patent subsidies of RMB6,000.00 on 18 July 201 1; pursuant to “Policies
on Encouraging Science and Technology Development (2010)" ({BER 2 BIEH B 2 E #)E TEER (2010
F&))) implemented on 1 January 2010 by the Hangzhou Economic and Technology Development
Zone, Hangzhou Shibao received patent subsidies of RMB11,000.00 on 27 September 2010.

(9)  Pursuant fo “Notice on the Establishment Plan of Second Batch of R&D Center in Provincial High-New
Technology Enterprises Issued by Science and Technology Bureau of Zhejiang Province in 2009" (C#f
TEMBRMERER TE2009FF —#ERSHRMEERRFHEST DERFEIEBA)) (Zhe Ke
Fa Tioo [2009] No.293) issued by the Zhejiang Science and Technology Bureau on 31 December 2009
and "Policies on Encouraging Science and Technology Development (2010)" (CBAR St B BHZ R #)
& T (201056 %)))implemented on 1 January 2010 by the Hangzhou Economic and Technology
Development Zone, Hangzhou Shibao received science and technology awards of RMB400,000.00
on 12 February 2011.

(10) Pursuant fo "Notice on Issuance of Hangzhou First Batch of Specific Funds for Auto Industry Development
in 2010" (BN TE2010F E—HMM T TEEXERFIBE T HEA))issued by the Hangzhou
Finance Bureau and Economic Commission (Hang Cai Kuai [2010] No./86) on 10 August 2010,
Hangzhou Shibao received specific funds for auto industry development of RMB700,000.00 on 12
October 2010.
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NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS ( cont/nued)

31 December 201
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(41) NON-OPERATING INCOME (continued)

(11) Pursuant to “Notice on Implementation Measures (Trial] for Job Attachment and Training to University
Students in Hangzhou issued by the Office of Hangzhou People’s Government” ({HL/N T A R BT
ABERDEMMTARERBIRERIVE (F17) HBA)) (Hang Zheng Ban [2009] No.74)
dated 23 February 2009, Hangzhou Shibao received employment subsidies for providing job attachment

and fraining fo university students of RMB31,185.28 on 12 January 2010.

(12) Pursuant to “Circular on Awards in Recognition of Indusfrial Advanced Enterprises in 2009" ({BR %
2009F 8 T ERFE T URZERHEIR)) (Hang Jing Kai Guan Fa [2010] No.64] issued by the
Hangzhou Economic and Technology Development Zone Management Commitiee on 1 March 2010
and “Circular on Awards in Recognition of Science and Technology Advanced Enterprises in 2009" ({2
PA¥1 2009 FREBB ST (R E T AR EEHBIR)) (Hang Jing Kai Guan [2010] No.74) issued by
the Hangzhou Economic and Technology Development Zone Management Committee on 2 March 2010
Hangzhou Shibao received awards amounting to RMB445,700.00 in total with respect to high-new
technology enterprise award, R&D center award, patent award and double-digit growth award on 1 April

2010.

(13] Pursuant to “Notice on 'University Student Training in Enferprises in Hangzhou' (CBIRENEE <A TR
BEPEEITERSR > H@A)) (Hang Ren [2008] No.163) issued by the Personnel Bureau and
Finance Bureau of Hangzhou on 29 April 2008, Hangzhou Shibao received a subsidy of RMB23,414.00

for enterprise fraining base to university students on 1 September 2010

(14) Pursuom fo "Notice on 'University Student Training in enterprises in Hangzhou'" ({BRAENEE <#)H T K
EREBINTERR >HEA)) (Hang Ren [2008] No.163) issued by the Personnel Bureau and
Finance Bureau of Hangzhou on 29 April 2008, Hangzhou Shibao received a subsidy for employment

of fresh graduates of RMB2,000.00 on 1 September 2010

(15) Pursuant fo “Circular on Awards in Recognifion of Advanced Collectives and Individuals for job attachment
and training fo university students in Hangzhou in 2010 (BARERE 2010 FHMNTTAZE & R BIIR
TEFHESEBMTEEARNBER))(Hang Lao She Jiu [2010] No.303) issued by the Labour and Social
Security Bureau, the Personnel Bureau and the Finance Bureau of Hangzhou, Hangzhou Shibao received
an amount for advanced collectives of job attachment and fraining to university students of RMB6,000.00

n 15 December 2010

(16] Pursuant fo "Notice on appropriation of Interest Subsidy for imported products in 2009"(B# #172009
FREAEMIESEREBED)|i Cai Qi Zhi [2010] No.1164] issued by the Finance Bureau of Jilin
Province on 25 October 2010 , Jilin Shibao received an interest subsidy for imported products of

RMB131,000.00 on 29 December 2010
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(41) NON-OPERATING INCOME (continued)

(17) Pursuant fo "Nofice on Issuance of Specific Funds for Provincial Auto Industry Development in 2009" (€ #
RTE2009 24 TEERERFEESEATEIRBEA)) (i Gong Xin Ban [2009] No.603)
issued by the Industry and Information Technology Bureau of Jilin Province on 27 September 2009, Jilin
Shibao received specific funds for auto indusiry development of RMB400,000.00 on 13 May 2010.

(18) Pursuant fo “Circular of Yiwu People’s Government on Encouraging the Establishment of Corporation Limited
and Nurturing Its listing” ((ESMARBRBERSERIRHEBRLRBERELTHETER))
(Yi Zheng Fa [2004] No.63) issued by the People’s Government of Yiwu on 22 June 2004, Zhejiang
Shibao received subsidies for listing of RMB100,000.00 on 27 December 2010.

(42) NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

2011 2010
Loss on the disposal of fixed assets 318,526.97 126,458.03
Water conservancy fund 392,983.21 289,768.91
Loss on setflement of debts — 143,618.50
External donations — 150,000.00
Others 429,901.45 315,782.19

1,141,411.63 1,025,627.63
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
(43) INCOME TAX EXPENSES

No provision for Hong Kong profits fax has been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong

Kong in 2011 (2010: Nil).

Current income fax expense

Deferred income fax expense

Relationship between income tax expense and fotal profi:

Total profit
Tax payable by the Company and
its subsidiaries under the statutory rafe
Tax adjustment during the year as a result of
evenfs in previous year
Tax on profit and loss of an associate

Tax on non-deductible expense

Effect of different tax rates applicable fo cerfain subsidiaries

Unrecognized losses deductible for fax

Tax exemption for domestic equipment purchase

Tax exemption for fax-exempt income — financial subsidy
Additional deduction for R&D expenses

Tax charge af the Group's effective rate

2011 2010
13,267,232.70 14,134,380.02
1,979,265.83 188,002.28
15,246,498.53 14,322,382.30
2011 2010
125,894,495.81 118,601,531.62
31,473,623.95 29,605,382.91
(8,963,243.85) 331,512.53
82,077.26 (190,500.55)
453,281.58 361,716.77
(12,079,320.13)  (15,591,908.77)
5,909,556.26 1,594,717.20
= (1,064,639.18)
(268,125.00) —
(1,361,351.54) (783,898.61)
15,246,498.53 14,322,382.30

The income fax of the Group is estimated based on the taxable income in Mainland China and applicable fax

rates, please refer fo Note 3.
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31 December 201 1

RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(43)

(44)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Siping Steering met “Implementation Provisions Regarding Separation between Main Business and Auxiliary
Business of Large and Medium-sized State-owned Enterprises, Reform of the System of Auxiliary Business and
Arrangement for Redundant Workers” ((BERBEIBEAPRGETHABRBMENGI DAL EEHRABNER
#%)) (Guo Jing Mao Qi Gai [2002] No.859) from 1 January 2003 to 30 June 2004, and it was entifled
fo income tax exemption. However, as it did not get the approval reply from the tax authority during the year,
Siping Steering fully provided for the corporate income tax for the relevant period. In November 2011, Siping
Steering got the approval reply from the State Administration of Taxation in the Siping Economic Development
Zone, which agreed fo implement the provisions of “Implementation Provisions Regarding Separation between
Main Business and Auxiliary Business of Large and Mediumsized State-owned Enterprises , Reform of the System
of Auxiliary Business and Arrangement for Redundant Workers” ({ BR BB A R 2L 1b 3% F 8 /3 B S S Bl 9
ML E BHRABNERHZ))|Guo Jing Mao Qi Gai [2002] No.859) from 1 January 2003 to 30 June 2004
fo exempt Siping Steering from corporate income tax, and therefore Siping Steering offset the provision for
corporate income fax of RMB8,963,243.85 for the relevant period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic eamings per share is calculated based on the net profit affributable fo the ordinary equity holders of

the Company in the current year and the weighted average number of the ordinary shares in issue.
In 2011 and 2010, the Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The defailed calculation information for basic eamings per share is presented as follows:

2011 2010

Earnings
Net profit afiributable fo the ordinary

equity holders of the Company 112,872,143.11  103,403,049.81
Shares
Weighted average of ordinary shares issued

by the Company 262,657,855.00  262,657,855.00
Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.43 0.39
Diluted eamings per share (RMB) 0.43 0.39
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(45) NOTES TO ITEMS OF THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Other cash received in relation o operating acfivities:

2011 2010
Recovery of restricted monetary funds 13,841,098.89 —
Subsidy income 3,909,130.40 2,050,299.00
Non-operating income 204,730.67 601,331.44
Others 291,057.97 300,000.28
Total 18,246,017.93 2,951,630.72
Other cash payable in relation fo operafing activities:
2011 2010
Selling expense 30,967,242.38 30,236,345.48
General and administrative expenses 25,580,399.55 18,337,367.47
Compensation of the termination of employment
relationship with employees by enterprise 4,310,163.00 —
Non-operating expense 822,884.66 899,169.60
Financial expenses 138,989.20 66,615.76
Petty cash advanced 317,237.73 640,454.67
Increase of restricted monetary funds — 10,563,229.50
Others 4,525,009.31 1,473,373.73
Total 66,661,925.83 62,216,556.21
Other cash received in relation fo investment activities:
2011 2010
Interest income 880,761.72 791,368.76
Subsidy income 24,900,000.00 —
Total 25,780,761.72 791,368.76

Annual Report 2011

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited



e

rid
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RMB Yuan

(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(46) SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(1)

Supplemental information on the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of net profit fo cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit

Add:

Provision/ (reversal) for impairment of assets

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortisation of infangible assets

Amortisation of deferred revenue

Unrealized gains sold to an associate

losses/(gains) on disposal of fixed assefs,
infangible assefs and other longterm assets

Financial expenses

Investment losses/(gains)

Decrease/[increase) in deferred tax assets

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities

Decrease/increase in inventories

Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

Closing balance of cash
less: Opening balance of cash
Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents

less: Opening balance of cash equivalents

Net increase/[decrease] in cash and cash equivalents

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

2011 2010
110,647,997.28 104,339,149.32
(1,014,037.17) (1,522,528.50)
28,386,352.93 22,801,638.16
4,288,095.32 1,556,028.29
(1,286,547.32) (1,587,007.67)
200,625.44 384,005.95
312,885.34 (104,720.56)
5,846,962.45 44939111
127,683.62 (1,146,008.13)
2,171,515.83 (1,702,456.05)
(192,250.00) (32,041.67)
16,512,953.62 [471,069,023.95)
(142,408,274.89) (63,728,995.00)
21,364,337.96 48,105,688.73
44,958,300.41 66,743,120.03
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
153,654.33 126,251.37
126,251.37 60,514.51
40,558,326.40 48,812,012.78
48,812,012.78 32,748,271.56
(8,226,283.42) 16,129,478.08
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

5. NOTES TO THE MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(46) SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(2] Information on acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and other operating entities

Information an acquisition of subsidiaries and other operating entities

2010

Price for acquisition of subsidiaries and other operating entfities 7,000,000.00
Cash and cash equivalents paid for acquisition of

subsidiaries and other operating enfities 7,000,000.00
less: Cash and cash equivalents held by

subsidiaries and other operating entfities being acquired 808,032.84
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and other operating entfities 6,191,967.16

(3]  Cash and cash equivalent:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010

Cash
Including:  Cash on hand 153,654.33 126,251.37
Bank deposit readily available 40,558,326.40 48,812,012.78
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 40,711,980.73 48,938,264.15
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
OPERATING SEGMENT

For business management purposes, the Group is organised into one single operating segment that represents primarily
the sale of automotive steering products and its corresponding components in Mainland China. Accordingly, no defailed

information about operating segment is presented.

OTHER INFORMATION
Geographical information

Almost all external revenue of the Group was generated from Mainland China.

Almost all non-current assets of the Group were located in Mainland China.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Information on customers from whom the revenue individually accounted for 10% or more of the tfofal revenue of the

Group in 2011 is as follows:

Proportion fo

Amount revenue (%)
FAW Car Co., lid. 164,808,106.24 26.33
Dintech Infernational Corp., Lid. 89,684,497 .42 14.33
FAW Jiefang Qingdao Auto Co., lid. 77,091,795.97 12.32
Anhui Jianghuai Automobile Co., Lid. 66,831,791.48 10.68

Information on customers from whom the revenue individually accounted for 10% or more of the tofal revenue of the

Group in 2010 is as follows:

Proportion to

Amount revenue (%)
FAW Car Co., ld. 177,436,509.47 32.50
FAW Jiefang Qingdao Auto Co., Lid. 86,794,831.73 15.90

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011 145



146

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (. continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

2o e ol

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
Within 1 year 18,242,228.66 17,307,693.08
1-2 years 97,042.94 —
2-3 years = —
Over 3 years 292,979.00 353,743.20
18,632,250.60 17,661,436.28
less: Provision for impairment (390,021.94) (353,743.20)
18,242,228.66 17,307,693.08

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:
Atthe  Provision during  Reversal during At the
beginning of year the year the year end of year
2011 353,743.20 36,278.74 - 390,021.94
2010 353,743.20 — — 3583,743.20
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(1)  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Analysis of accounts receivable by categories is as follows:

31 December 2011

Carrying balance Bad debt provision
amount (%) amount (%)
Individually significant balance 18,242,228.66 97.91 — —

Individually insignificant but

significant based on

credif risk charactrisfics 390,021.94 2.09 390,021.94 100.00
Other insignificant balances — — —

18,632,250.60 100.00 390,021.94

31 December 2010

Carrying balance Bad debt provision
amount (%) amount (%)
Individually significant balance ~ 17,261,724.62 Q7.74 — —
Individually insignificant but
significant based on
credit risk charactrisfics 353,743.20 2.00 353,743.20 100.00
Other insignificant balances 45,968.46 0.26 — —
17,661,436.28 100.00 3583,743.20

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, no significant accounts receivable were reversed or

recovered.
In 2011 and 2010, no significant accounts receivable were written off.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group did not hold accounts receivable for shareholding

units with 5% [inclusive) or more of the voting rights of the Company.
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RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(1)  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
As at 31 December 2011, the five largest accounts receivable are as follows:

Percentage of

Relationship total accounts
with the Group Amount  Ageing receivable(%)
Wuhy Sterling Steering
System Co., lid. Associated company 18,242,228.66  Within 1 year 97.91
Ganzhou Jianghuan Automobile
Manufacturing Co., lid. Third party customer 12500000 Over 3 years 0.67
Nanjing Donghua Automotive
Steering Co., Lid. Third party customer 97,042.94 12 years 0.52
Hubei Sanhuan Company Sepcial
Vehicle Plant Third party customer 43,400.00  Over 3 years 0.23
Dongfeng Shiyan Transmission
Shaft Company Third party customer 36,000.00  Over 3 years 0.19

18,543,671.60 99.52

As af 31 December 2010, the five largest accounts receivable are as follows:
Percentage of
Relationship fofal accounts

with the Group Amount  Ageing receivable(%)

Wuhy Sterling Steering

System Co., lid. Associated company 17,063,803.27  Within 1 year 96.62
Ganzhou Jianghuan

Automobile Manufacturing

Co., lid. Third party customer 125,000.00  Over 3 years 0.71
Nanjing Donghua Automotive

Steering Co., lid. Third party customer 97,839.46  Within 1 year 0.55
Hubei Sanhuan Company

Sepcial Vehicle Plant Third party customer 43,400.00  Over 3 years 0.25
Dongfeng Shiyan

Transmission

Shaft Company Third party customer 36,000.00  Over 3 years 0.20

17,366,042.73 98.33
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
(1)  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, an amount due from a related party is as follows:

Wuhu Sterling Steering System Co., ltd.

31 December
2011

18,242,228.66

31 December
2010

17,063,803.27

In 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have other receivables transferred as financial assets for derecognition.

(2) OTHER RECEIVABLES

Ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Within 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
Over 3 years

less: bad debt provision for other receivables

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
85,874,740.18  101,1/9,868.86
70,005,762.60 92,040,022.00
67,775,909.80 1,030.00

25,447.21 82,391.33
223,681,859.79  193,304,212.19
223,681,859.79  193,304,212.19
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(2) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Analysis for other receivables by categories is as follows:

31 December 2011

Carrying amount Bad debt provision
amount (%) amount (%)
Individually significant balance ~ 223,358,374.92 99.86 — —
Individually insignificant but
significant based on
credif risk characteristics 29,159.22 0.01 — —
Other insignificant
other receivables 294,325.65 0.13 — —
223,681,859.79 100.00 —
31 December 2010
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
amount (%) amount (%)
Individually significant balance ~ 193,087,453.00 09.89 — —
Individually insignificant but
significant based on
credit risk characteristics 87,321.33 0.04 — —
Other insignificant
other receivables 129.437.86 0.07 — —
193,304,212.19 100.00 —

Individually insignificant but significant based on credit risk characteristics mainly refers to the individually

insignificant receivables with long ageing.
In 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have any other receivables written off.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Company did not hold other receivables for

shareholding units with 5% (inclusive] or more of the voting rights of the Company.

In the opinion of the management of the Company, as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, there

was no need to make impairment provision for the abovementioned other receivables.
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(2) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

In 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have any other receivables written off.

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Company did not hold other receivables for

shareholding units with 5% [inclusive] or more of the voting rights of the Company.

As ot 31 December 2011, the five largest other receivables are as follows:

Relationship Percentage of fotal

with the Company Amount  Ageing (%)
Hangzhou Shibao Subsidiary of the Comoany 100,357,960.39  Within 3 years 44.87
Jilin Shibao Subsidiary of the Comoany 66,070,000.00  Within 3 years 29.54
Hangzhou New Shibao Subsidiary of the Company 33,000,000.00  Within 1 year 14.75
Siping Steering Subsidiary of the Comoany 17,696,157.77  Within 1 year 7.91
Beijing Autonic Subsidiary of the Comoany 3,900,000.00  Within 1year 1.74

221,024,118.16 98.81

As ot 31 December 2010, the five largest other receivables are as follows:

Relationship Percentage of fofal

with the Company Amount  Ageing (%)
Hangzhou Shibao Subsidiary of the Comoany 140,817,453.00  Within 2 years 72.85
Jilin Shibao Subsidiary of the Comoany 52,270,000.00  Within 2 years 27.04
Sifang Comany Third party 69,666.71  Within 1 year 0.04
CAAM Third party 47,619.23  Within 1 year 0.02
Zhang Gen Fu Staff of the Company 12,297.46  Within 1 year 0.01

193,217,036.40 99.96

In 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have other receivables transferred as financial assets for derecognition.
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
(3) LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Unlisted investments:
Equity investments under
cost method of accounting

- subsidiaries

Equity investments under
equity method of accounting

- equity holding in an associate

Balance at the end of year

li)  Subsidiaries

Investee

Hangzhou Shibao
Siping Steering

Jilin Shibao

Hangzhou New Shibao
Beijing Autonic

Note: details are set out in Note 4.{1).

152 Annual Report 2071

31 December
2011

128,000,000.00

31 December
2010

126,850,000.00

(if) 11,696,900.10 7,229,378.10

139,696,900.10  134,079,378.10

Percentage

in investee's

31 December 2011 31 December 2010 registered

Carrying amount Carrying amount capifal

40,750,000.00 39,600,000.00 Note

8,250,000.00 8,250,000.00 Note

30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 Nofe

42,000,000.00 42,000,000.00 Note

7,000,000.00 7,000,000.00 Note
128,000,000.00 126,850,000.00
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7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(3) LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (continued)

(i) Equity in an associate

Percentage

in investee's

31 December 2011 31 December 2010 registered

Investee Carrying amount Carrying amount capital
Wouhu Sterling 11,696,900.10 /,229,378.10 Note

Note: According fo the capital investment agreement, the Company paid ifs contribution of RMB 7,200,000 before 10
November 2004 and held 36% of equity of Wuhu Sterling. On 8 April 2011, the Company and Sun Ya Hong
[one of the shareholders of Wuhu Sterling] entered info an equity fransfer agreement, pursuant fo which Sun Ya Hong
agreed to fransfer 10% of the equity of Wuhu Sterling fo the Company. The Company paid the fransfer consideration
in full on 21 November 2011 and increased its equity shareholding to 46% in Wuhu Sterling.

The summarized financial information of the Company’s associate is set out in Note 5. (8).

(4) REVENUE AND OPERATING COSTS

Revenue is as follows:

2011 2010
Revenue from principal operations 46,431,236.29 44,644,895.85
Costs is as follows:

2011 2010
Cost froms principal operations 35,782,492.96 37.654,232.91
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
[English Translation for Reference Only)

7. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE PARENT’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
(5)  INVESTMENT GAINS

Unlisted investments:
Investment gains from
long-term equity investments under
cost method of accounting
- Hangzhou Shibao
- Siping Steering

Unlisted investments:

Investment gains/(losses) from
long-term equity investments under
equity method of accounting
- Wuhu Sterling

Annual Report 2011

2011 2010
14,850,000.00 9,900,000.00
15,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
29,850,000.00 19,200,000.00

(942,414.00) 1,146,008.13
28,907,586.00 21,046,008.13
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

8. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS
(1) PARENT COMPANY

Shoreholding Voling
percent. proportion
Place of Corporale Business Registered in the inthe  Organization
Nome registation Corporate fype  representafive nafure copital Company Company ~ code
Zhejiong Shibao Yiwy Limited liabiliy ~ Zhang Shi Zhong  Indlustrial investment 50 million 63% 63% 751935354
Holding Group Co.,
lid.

The ultimate holding parties of the Group are Zhang Shi Quan and his family members, i.e., Zhang Bao Vi,
Tang Hao Han, Zhang Lan Jun and Zhang Shi Zhong.

(2) SUBSIDIARIES

The Company's subsidiaries are listed in Note 4 — consolidation scope of the consolidated financial statements.

Other receivables from and payables to subsidiaries in current assets and liabilities of the Company were
RMB221,024,118.16 (2010: RMB193,087,453.00) and RMBO.00 (2010: RMB4,679,549.14)

respectively, which were unsecured, inferestHree and repayable on demand or due within one year.

(3) ASSOCIATE

Defails of the Company's associate are disclosed in Nofe 5. (8).

(4) OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Relationship

Zhang Shi Quan and his family members, Ultimate holding parties
i.e., Zhang Bao Yi, Tang Hao Han,
Zhang lan Jun and Zhang Shi Zhong

Zhang Hai Qin Family members with a close

relation with main investors

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited Annual Report 2011 155



"_h;r.M—m

-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( continue-d) |

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

8. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(5) MAJOR TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE GROUP AND RELATED PARTIES
(a)  Transactions of goods and services with related parties

Purchase of goods from a related party
2011 2010

Wouhu Sterling 698,434.95 3,886,042.00

In 2011, purchase of goods from a related party accounted for 0.23% of the Group's fofal purchases
(2010: 1.22%).

In 2011 and 2010, the Group purchased steering gears from Wuhu Sterling Steering System Co., lid.

at the market price.
Sales of goods to a related party
2011 2010

Wouhu Sterling 36,750,390.25 27,573,702.91

In 2011, sales of goods to a related party accounted for 5.87% of the Group's fofal sales (2010: 5.05%).

In 2011 and 2010, the Group sold spare parts and fittings to Wuhu Sterling Steering System Co., ltd.
at the market price.
(b)  Equity transactions with a related party

Purchase of equity from a related party

The Company purchased the 1% equity in Hangzhou Shibao from Zhang Hai Qin on 11 March 2011
at the consideration of RMB1.15 million, which was determined with reference to the net assets of Hanzhou

Shibao as at 31 December 2010 after deduction of the distributed profits of 2010.
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8. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(5) MAJOR TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE GROUP AND RELATED PARTIES (continued)
[c]  Guarantees with related parties

Receipt of guarantees from related parties

31 December 2011

Guaranteed ~ Commencement Expiry date of Guaranee
amount  date of guarantee  guarantee fully fulflled
('0,000)
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. 2000 29 Apri 2010 18 April 2014 No
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. 3000  4May2010 17 April 2014 No
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. 9,000 23 August 2011 4 September 2014~ No
Zhang Shi Quan 7,50 11 April 2011 10 October 2013 No
Zhang Shi Quan 2,500 18 Apri 2011 17 April 2014 No
Zhang Shi Quan 500 19 April 2011 18 April 2014 No
Zhang Shi Quan 9,000 23 August 2011 4 September 2014 No

As at 31 December 2011, Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. provided a maximum guarantee
of bank credit business fo the Group, and the maximum principal balance of secured claims was RMB140
million. The Group's bank borrowings drawn and outstanding under this guarantee were RMB6O million.
Zhang Shi Quan provided joint and several liability guarantees for the bank borrowings of the Group
amounting fo RMB6O million.

31 December 2010

Guaranteed ~ Commencement Expiry date of Guarantee
amount  dafe of quaranfee  guarantee fully fulfiled
(0,000]
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. 2,000 29 Apiil 2010 28 Apiil 2011 No
Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., lid. 3,000 4 May2010 28 Apiil 2011 No
Zhang Shi Quan 1000 12May 2010 15 April 2011 No
Zhang Shi Quan 2,000 3June 2010 18 April 2011 No

As at 31 December 2010, Zhejiang Shibao Holding Group Co., ltd. provided a maximum guarantee
of bank credit business to the Group, and the maximum principal balance of secured claims was RMB50
million. The Group's bank borrowings drawn and outstanding under this guarantee were RMB30 million.
Zhang Shi Quan provided joint and several liability guarantees for the bank borrowing of the Group
amounting to RMB30 million.
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

8. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(5)  MAJOR TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE GROUP AND RELATED PARTIES (continued)
[c]  Guarantees with related parties (continued)

Provision of a guarantee to a related party

31 December 2011

Guaranteed ~ Commencement Expiry date of Guarantee
amount  dafe of guarantee  guarantee fully fulfilled
Wuhy Sterling Steering System Co., lid. 10,000,000 19 January 2011 18 Jonuary 2012~ No

As at 31 December 2010, no guarantee was provided to the related party.

As af 31 December 2011, the Company provided a maximum guarantee in ferms of bank credit business
to Wuhu Sterling (a related party), with a maximum principal balance of RMB10 million, of which RMBS
million was already utilized by Wuhu Sterling. The guarantee contract expried on 18 January 2012,

(d)  Other related party transactions
2011 2010

Key management personnel remuneration 2,394,592.14 1,866,107.00

(6) BALANCE OF RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE) FROM/(TO) A RELATED PARTY
2011 2010

Accounts receivable

Wuhu Sterling Steering System Co., Lid. 25,391,425.25 17,063,803.27

Amounts receivable from the related party are free of interest, unsecured and have no fixed repayment term.
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9.

10.

11.

LEASING ARRANGEMENT

As lessee:

Significant operating leases: According fo the lease contract signed with the lessor, the Group had the minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

31 December

2011
Within 1 vear [incl. the Tst year) 354,615.75
1-2 years (incl. the 2nd year) 161,100.50
2-3 years (incl. the 3rd year] —
515,716.25

COMMITMENTS
31 December 31 December
2011 2010

Capital commitment

Confracted, but not provided for 22,350,312.62 64,144,432.00

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank and other borrowings as well as monetary funds. The main
purpose of these financial insiruments is fo raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assefs and liabilities such as accounts and nofes receivables, other receivables, accounts and bills payables and other

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Management

reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.
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11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses arising from default of the counterparty.

Credit risk of the Group is mainly related fo receivables. The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, accounts receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis fo ensure that the Group's

exposure fo bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assefs, which comprise monetary funds, arises from default of the

counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal fo the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had specific
concentration of credit risk as 63.59% (31 December 2010: 61.04%) of the Group's accounts receivable were due
from the five largest customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over the balance

of receivables.

The amounts of financial assets that are not past due or impaired, and the ageing analysis of the financial assets that

are past due but are not impaired are as follows:

31 December 2011

Neither past due Past due but not impaired
Total nor impaired Within 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
Cash 43,234,111.34 43,234,111.34 - — —
Notes receivable 137 538,266.04 137 538,266.04 — — -
Accounts receivable 203,618,895.42 154,292,963.05 41,843,270.26 6,502,327.53 980,334.58
Other receivables 9,216,366.98 9,216,366.98 — — —
393,607,639.78 344,281,707 41 41,843,270.26 6,502,327.53 980,334.58
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11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
CREDIT RISK (continued)
31 December 2010

Tolal  Neither past due Past due but not impaired

nor impaired Within 1 year I to 2 years Over 2 years

Cash 65,301,493.65  65,301,493.65 — — —
Notes receivable 60,152,693.51 60,152,693.51 — — —
Accounts receivable 127,888,570.64  98,158,959.66 27,043,448 .94 1,667438.80 1,018,723.22
Other receivables 3,014,239.70 3,014,239.70 — — —
257,256,997.50  227,527,386.52 27,043,448 96 1,667438.80 1,018,723.22

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

Liquidity risk may arise when an enfity is not able to sell financial assets at fair value in a timely manner; or the
counterparties encounter difficulty in repaying contractual liabilities; or the entity could be required to pay its liabilities

earlier than expected; or the entity could not obtain sufficient cash flow as expected.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of several
financing methods such as notes setlement and bank borrowings, as well as optimizing financing sfructure through
the combination of long and short ferm financing. The Group has obtained banking facilities from several commercial

banks fo fund the working capital requirements and capital expenditure.

Management of the Group monitors the liquidity position of the Group on an ongoing basis fo ensure the availability
of sufficient liquid funds fo meet all obligations as they fall due and to make the most efficient use of the Group's financial

resources.
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11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets based on the remaining maturity:

31 December 2011

Cash

Notes receivable
Accounts receivable

Other receivables

31 December 2010

Cash

Notes receivable
Accounts receivable

Other receivables

Annual Report 2011

Carrying value

43,234,111.34

Contractual
undiscounted

amount

43,234,111.34

Within

1 year

43,234,111.34

137,538,266.04 137,538,266.04 137,538,266.04
203,618,895.42 203,618,895.42 203,618,895.42
9,216,366.98 9,216,366.98 9,216,366.98
393,607,639.78 393,607,639.78 393,607,639.78
Contractual
undiscounted Within
Carrying value amount 1 year
65,301,493.65 65,301,493.65 65,301,493.65
60,152,693.51 60,152,693.51 60,152,693.51
127,888,570.64 127,888,570.64 127,888,570.64
3,914,239.70 3,914,239.70 3,914,239.70
257,256,997.50 257,256,997.50 257,256,997.50
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11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabiliies based on the remaining maturity:

31 December 2011

Bank borrowings
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Employee benefits
payable
Inferest payable

Other payables

31 December 2010

Bank borrowings
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Employee benefits
payable
Interest payable

Other payables

Contractual

undiscounted
Carrying value amount Within 1 year 1 to 3 years Over 3 years
157,100,232.00  167,128,086.68  133,941,173.35 27,978 ,473.33 5,208,440.00
14,771,590.00 14,771,590.00 14,771,590.00 — —
165,119,836.40  165,119,836.40  165,119,836.40 — —
3,524,754.51 3,524,754.51 3,524,754.51 — —
1,366,471.76 1,366,471.76 1,366,471.76 — —
951,788.17 951,788.17 951,788.17 = —
342,834,672.84  352,862,527.52  319,675,614.19 27,978 ,473.33 5,208,440.00

Confractual

undiscounted
Carrying valve amount Within 1 year I o 3 years Over 3 years
55,090,000.00  59,802,154.79  36,932,152.05 16,448,720.55 6,421,282.19
14,730,000.00  14,730,000.00  14,730,000.00 — —
119,447,751.59  119,447,751.59  119,447,751.59 — —
8,737,908.35 8,737,908.35 8,737,908.35 — —
1,167,729.19 1,167,729.19 1,167,729.19 — —
3,721,551.24 3,721,551.24 3,721,551.24 — —
202,894,940.37  207,607,095.16  184,737,092.42 16,448,720.55 6,421,282.19
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11. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes

in market prices. Market risk mainly includes interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure fo interest rate risk for changes in interest rates relafes

primarily to the longterm interestbearing borrowings with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2011, the bank borrowings of the Company with floating interest rates were
RMB140,000,000.00 (31 December 2010: RMB50,000,000.00), and a reasonable and possible 50% base
point change in inferest rates, with all other variables held constant, will not have any significant impact on total

profit and shareholders’ equity of the Company.

2. Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in Mainland China, and transactions of its main operation are presented in RMB. Therefore,
the Group's exposure o foreign exchange risk is not significant.

3. Fair valves

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts. Fair value esfimates are made at a specific point in time and are based on relevant market information
and information about the financial insfruments. These estimates are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties
and matters of significant judgement and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions

could significantly affect the esfimates.

12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS
(1) OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2011 2010
The Group The Company The Group The Company
Net current assets 192,811,168.15  185,380,086.36 195,727,185.46 182,859,670.57
Total assefs less
current liabilities 719,905,845.49  337,384,063.14 603,505,099.87 329,837,116.26
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RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS (continued)
(2) RETIREMENT BENEFITS

According fo the “labour law of the People’s Republic of China” and the relevant laws and regulations, the
Company and ifs subsidiaries should participate in the basic pension insurance. Annual pension of all employees
is equal 1o a fixed proportion of the average basic salary of the last employment areas. In the areas where
employees are hired by the Company and its subsidiaries, the Company and its subsidiaries contribute fo the
local social security departments based on 25-30% of the average basic salary. The Company and its subsidiaries
have no obligation to pay fo the local social security departments other than the annual contributions described

above.

(3) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year is disclosed as follows:

Group
2011 2010
Fees 195,833.00 180,000.00
Other emoluments:
Wages, allowances and non-cash benefit amount 1,826,660.00 1,468,555.00
Pension scheme confributions 35,370.54 32,858.00
2,057,863.54 1,681,413.00

(1) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

2011 2010

Chau Kam Wing, Donald 120,000.00 120,000.00
Zhao Chun Zhi 30,000.00 30,000.00
Chen Guo Feng 30,000.00 30,000.00
Zhang Hong Zhi 15,833.00 —
195,833.00 180,000.00
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12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS (continued)
(3) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(2] Executive directors and non-executive directors

Wages,
allowances and
non-cash benefit Pension scheme Total
amount contributions remuneration
2011
Executive directors
Zhang Shi Quan 400,000.00 — 400,000.00
Tang Hao Han 300,000.00 7,680.00 307,680.00
Zhang Bao Yi 300,000.00 7,276.58 307,276.58
Zhu Jie Rong 240,000.00 — 240,000.00
Zhang Lan Jun 222,000.00 5,031.30 227,031.30
1,462,000.00 19,987.88 1,481,987.88
Non-executive directors
Zhang Shi Zhong 80,000.00 7,276.58 87,276.58
Zhang Mei Jun 40,000.00 3,840.00 43,840.00
Lou Run Zheng 30,000.00 — 30,000.00
150,000.00 11,116.58 161,116.58
1,612,000.00 31,104.46 1,643,104.46
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31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS (continued)
(3) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(2)  Executive directors and non-executive directors (continued)

Wages,
allowances and
non-cash benefit Pension scheme Total
amount contributions remuneration
2010
Executive directors
Zhang Shi Quan 300,000.00 4,604.00 304,694.00
Tang Hao Han 200,000.00 4,694.00 204,694.00
Zhang Bao Yi 200,000.00 4,694.00 204,694.00
Zhu Jie Rong 240,000.00 — 240,000.00
Zhang Lan Jun 150,000.00 4,694.00 154,694.00
1,090,000.00 18,776.00 1,108,776.00
Non-executive directors
Zhang Shi Zhong 80,000.00 4,604.00 84,694.00
Zhang Mei Jun 80,000.00 4,694.00 84,694.00
Lou Run Zheng 30,000.00 — 30,000.00
190,000.00 9,388.00 199,388.00
1,280,000.00 28,164.00 1,308,164.00

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration during

the year 2011 and 2010.

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited
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12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS (continued)
(3) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
(3] Supervisors

Wages,

allowances and

non-cash benefit Pension scheme Total
amount contributions remuneration
2011

Wu Llang Ping 93,120.00 4,266.08 97,386.08
Du Min 48,000.00 — 48,000.00
Shen Song Sheng 25,540.00 = 25,540.00
Yang Di Shan 24,000.00 — 24,000.00
Wang Kui Quan 24,000.00 — 24,000.00
214,660.00 4,266.08 218,926.08

Wages,

allowances and
non-cash benefit Pension scheme Total
amount contributions remuneration

2010

Wu lang Ping 68,555.00 4,694.00 73,249.00
Du Min 48,000.00 — 48,000.00
Shen Song Sheng 24,000.00 — 24,000.00
Yang Di Shan 24,000.00 — 24,000.00
Wang Kui Quan 24,000.00 — 24,000.00
188,555.00 4,694.00 193,249.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31 December 2011
RMB Yuan
(English Translation for Reference Only)

12. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS (continued)
(4) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2010: four] directors, details of whose
remuneration are sef out in Note 12. (3) (2) above. Defails of the remuneration of the remaining one (2010:

one| nondirector employee for the year are as follows:

Group
2011 2010

Wages, allowances and
non-cash benefit amount 517,228.22 490,193.00

Pension scheme contributions — —

517,228.22 490,193.00

The remuneration of the non-director employee fell within the range of nil to RMB1,000,000.00.

13. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved by the board of directors on 16 March 2012.
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l. - NON-RECURRING GAIN AND LOSS

According to Declaration of the China Securities Regulatory Commission [2008] No. 43 “Declaration on Explanation

of Information Disclosure of companies issuing Securities Publicly No. 1 = non-recurring gain and loss” (AR 1T
BFNAAEERBERELELSEE 157 —IFEFIHER) ), the Group recognized nonecurring gain and loss.

2011 2010
Net profit afiributable fo shareholders
of ordinary shares of the Group 112,872,143.11 103,403,049.81
less: Non-ecurring gain and loss item
Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets (312,885.34) 104,720.56
Govemment grants recognized in gain or loss
during the period 5,195,677.72 3,637,306.95
Reversal of impairment provision on receivables
tested for impairment on an individual basis 195,109.90 2,762,660.00
Net donation income or expenditure — (150,000.00)
Income tax exemption for the previous year
recognized in the current period (Note) 8,963,243.85 —
Other nef non-operating income and expenses
other than aforesaid items (225,170.78) 141,930.75
Total non-recurring gain or loss 13,815,975.35 6,496,618.26
less: Income fax effect on non-ecurring gain or loss 1,160,474.33 1,070,591.81
less: Effect on non-recurring gain or loss attributable
fo minority shareholders 130,358.84 839,047.12
Effect on non-recurring gain or loss affributable o shareholders
of ordinary shares of the Company, net of fax 12,525,142.18 4,586,079.33
Net profit affributable to shareholders of ordinary shares
of the Company, net of non-recurring gain or loss 100,347,000.93 08,816,970.48

Note: Siping Steering met “Implementation Provisions Regarding Separation between Main Business and Auxiliary Business of Large and
Medium-sized State-owned Enterprises, Reform of the System of Auxiliary Business and Arrangement for Redundant Workers” ({2
REEARPRCEFHHIEBERG D RLERHRA BN ERIDE)) (Guo Jing Mao Qi Gai [2002] No.859) from 1 January
2003 1o 30 June 2004, and it was entiled to income tax exemption. However, as it did not get the approval reply from the tax
authority during the year, Siping Steering fully provided for the corporate income tax for the relevant period. In November 2011,
Siping Steering got the approval reply from the State Administration of Taxation in the Siping Economic Development Zone, which
agreed to implement the provisions of “Implementation Provisions Regarding Separation between Main Business and Auxiliary
Business of Large and Medium-sized State-owned Enferprises, Reform of the System of Auxiliary Business and Arrangement for
Redundant Workers” BB BB R BISE T S5 BEE EHI D RELE = A BN EEDNE)) (Guo Jing Mao Qi Gai [2002]
No.859) from 1 January 2003 1o 30 June 2004 to exempt Siping Steering from corporate income tax, and therefore Siping Steering
offset the provision for corporate income tax of RMB8,963,243.85 for the relevant period.
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DIFFERENCES IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BETWEEN

DOMESTIC AND OVERSEAS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

There is no substantial difference between the financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards of Business Enterprises and the financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards for the year ended 2010, and therefore no reconciliation on adjustments is required. In 2011,
according to"Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong” issued by the Stock Exchange in December

2010, the Company decided to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards of Business

Enterprises for information disclosure on the Stock Exchange.

The overseas auditors of the Company was Emst & Young in 2010.

RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

2011

Net profit affributable to shareholders
of ordinary shares of the Company

Net profit, affer deduction of non-recurring
gain and loss, atfributable to
shareholders of ordinary shares

of the Company

2010

Net profit afiributable fo shareholders
of ordinary shares of the Company

Net profit, after deduction of non-recurring
gain and loss, atfributable to
shareholders of ordinary shares

of the Company

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

Weighted
average
return on net

assets ratio (%)

18.98

16.87

Weighted
average
refurn on net

assets rafio (%)

20.38

19.48

Earnings per share

Basic Diluted
0.43 0.43
0.38 0.38

Eamings per share

Basic Diluted
0.39 0.39
0.38 0.38
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IV. DESCRIPTION ON IRREGULAR MOVEMENTS IN MAJOR ITEMS OF THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REASON

_ o e e e

The statement items which data change 30% or more for both periods, or account for 5% of total assets as at the balance

sheet date or more than 10% of fofal profit for the reporting period are analyzed as follows:

1.

llems of the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2011 with relatively material changes as compared

with those as at 31 December 2010 are set forth below:

Cash
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Other current assefs
long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Shortterm borrowings
Accounts payable
Advance from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities

due within one year

longterm borrowings

Other non-current
liabilities
Suplus reserve

Refained earnings

Annual Report 2011
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31 December 2011

43,234,111.34
137,538,266.04
203,618,895.42
9,216,366.98
122,418,117.92
1,876,410.23
11,696,900.10
290,304,220.05
140,976,414.81
74,352,887.70
1,525,065.14
8,239,189.54
114,079,832.00
165,119,836.40
2,235,262.83
3,524,754.51
5,743,037.16
951,788.17

13,000,000.00
30,020,400.00

26,202,378.62
95,087,541.52
256,035,761.06

31 December 2010

65,301,493.65
60,152,693.51
127,888,570.64
3,014,239.70
138,000,793.84
1,004,992.67
6,615,273.15
282,301,214.46
12,297,067.81
78,640,983.02
3,696,580.97
24,226,795.00
30,000,000.00
119,447,751.59
1,104,151.26
8,737,908.35
12,958,662.68
3,721,551.24

5,000,000.00
20,090,000.00

4,748,573.33
84,961,353.85
176,929,012.57

Unit: RMB

change (%)

(33.79)
128.65
59.22
135.46
(11.30)
86.71
76.82
2.83
1,046.42
(5.45)
(58.74)
(65.99)
280.27
38.24
102.44
(59.66)
[55.69)
(74.42)

160.00
49.43

451.79
11.92
44.71
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(English Translation for Reference Only)

IV. DESCRIPTION ON IRREGULAR MOVEMENTS IN MAJOR ITEMS OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REASON (continued)

1. ltems of the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2011 with relatively material changes as compared

with those as at 31 December 2010 are set forth below: (continued)

(1)
(2)
(3]

(4)

(5]

(6]

/)

(8]

(@)

The decrease in cash was mainly due to cash oufflow used in investment acfivities;
The increase in notes receivable was mainly due to the increase of sales;
The increase in accounts receivable was mainly due to the increase of sales;

The increase in other receivables was due fo the increase atfributable fo the borrowings of the Tiedong

Economic Development Zone and listing expense;
The decrease in inventories was due fo the consumption of finished goods reserved in the previous year;

The increase in other non-current assefs was due fo the increase of moulds purchased in the current year

amortized within one year;

The increase in longerm equity investments was due fo the increase of investment in VWuhu Sterling during

the current year;
The increase in fixed assefs was mainly due to the addition to manufacture equipment in the current year;

The increase in construction in progress was mainly due fo the increase of equipment which is not ready

for use to expand productivity;
The decrease in infangible assets was mainly due fo amortization during the year;

The decrease in deferred tax assets was mainly due fo the decrease in deductible temporary differences

and deductible loss which probably will be available in the future;
The decrease in other non-current assets was mainly due to a prepayment of fixed assets;

The increase in shortterm and longferm borrowings was mainly due fo the increase of bank borrowings

fo meet the requirements of operation;
The increase in accounts payable was mainly due to the increase of purchase during the year;

The increase in advance from customers was mainly due fo the increase of sales order from sporadic

cusfomers, to whom a “delivery upon payment” setlement method was adopted;

The decrease in employee benefits payable was mainly due to the payment of yearend bonus provided

for at the end of last year and the nil provision for yearend bonus during the year;
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(English Translation for Reference Only)

IV. DESCRIPTION ON IRREGULAR MOVEMENTS IN MAJOR ITEMS OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REASON (continued)

1. ltems of the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2011 with relatively material changes as compared

with those as at 31 December 2010 are set forth below: (continued)

(17) The decrease in taxes payable was mainly due fo the increase in purchase of fixed assefs and raw

materials, which resulted in an increase in input of value-added tax payable af the end of the period;

(18) The decrease in other payables was mainly due fo the seftlement of merger and resfructuring charges during

the year;

(19) The increase in non-current liabilities due within one year was mainly due tfo the increase in longferm

borrowings which would mature within one year;

(20] The increase in other non-current liabilities was mainly due fo the receipt of government subsidies relating

fo assefs during the year;

(21) The increase in surplus reserve was mainly due fo the fransfer of 10% of the nef profit for the year to surplus

reserve: and

(22) The increase in refained earnings was mainly due to the eamings recorded during the year.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(English Translation for Reference Only)

IV. DESCRIPTION ON IRREGULAR MOVEMENTS IN MAJOR ITEMS OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REASON (continued)

2.

llems of the consolidated income statement for 2011 with relatively material changes as compared with those

for 2010 are set forth below:

Revenue
Cost of sales
Sales taxes
and surcharges
Selling expenses
General and
administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Provision for asset impairment
Investment gains/ (losses)

Income tax expenses

Zhejiang Shibao Company Limited

O 0 N O On

2011

625,917,119.21
403,887,118.40

5,156,884.62
35,881,539.03

54,553,179.60
5,694,893.68
(1,014,037.17)
(127,683.62)
15,246,498.53

2010

545,943,926.52
349,894,180.37

1,599,061.69
37,508,370.58

43,877,501.37
516,006.87
(1,522,528.50)
1,146,008.13
14,322,382.30

Unit: RMB

Change (%)

14.65
15.43

222.49
(4.34)

24.33

1003.65
(33.40)
(111.14)

6.45
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(English Translation for Reference Only)

IV. DESCRIPTION ON IRREGULAR MOVEMENTS IN MAJOR ITEMS OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REASON (continued)

2. ltems of the consolidated income statement for 2011 with relafively material changes as compared with those

for 2010 are set forth below: (continued)

(1) The increase in revenue was mainly due to the rapid development of the industry, the substantial growth
in market demand and the improvement in production capacity due fo the scalable commissioning of the

Group's production lines for passenger cars.
(2)  The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the increase in raw material prices and sales;

(3] The increase in sales taxes and surcharges was mainly because Siping Steering started to pay city
consruction taxes and education surcharges and sales increased during the year, while it was exempt

from such taxes and surcharges before December 2010 as a foreign invested enterprise;

(4)  The decrease in selling expenses was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs as a result of the
management's decision of not to pay yearend bonus in view of the sales for the year and the decrease

in warranty fees as a result of the Group's strengthening of product quality control;

(5)  The increase in general and administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in R&D expenses and

amortization of infangible assets;

(6]  The increase in financial expenses was mainly due to the substantial increase in bank loans in the year

which were used to finance the Group's production expansion plan;

(7)  The decrease in provision for assefs impairment was mainly due fo the write-back of provision for bad debts

and provision for diminution in the value of inventories for the current year to the previous year;

(8)  The decrease in investment gain was mainly due to the decrease in earnings for the year affributable to
the Group due to the decreased profit as a result of the decrease in sales by Wuhu Sterling, an investee

of the Group, fo Chery Automobile; and

(9] The increase in income fax expenses was mainly due to the increase in profit for the year.
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